## THE VIRGINIA REGISTER INFORMATION PAGE

THE VIRGINIA REGISTER is an official state publication issued every other week throughout the year. Indexes are published quarterly, and the last index of the year is cumulative. THE VIRGINIA REGISTER has several functions. The new and amended sections of regulations, both as proposed and as finally adopted, are required by law to be published in THE VIRGINIA REGISTER OF REGULATIONS. In addition, THE VIRGINIA REGISTER is a source of other information about state government, including all emergency regulations and executive orders issued by the Governor, the Virginia Tax Bulletin issued periodically by the Department of Taxation, and notices of public hearings and open meetings of state agencies.

#### ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL OF REGULATIONS

An agency wishing to adopt, amend, or repeal regulations must first publish in the *Virginia Register* a notice of intended regulatory action; a basis, purpose, substance and issues statement; an economic impact analysis prepared by the Department of Planning and Budget; the agency's response to the economic impact analysis; a summary; a notice giving the public an opportunity to comment on the proposal; and the text of the proposed regulation.

Following publication of the proposal in the *Virginia Register*, the promulgating agency receives public comments for a minimum of 60 days. The Governor reviews the proposed regulation to determine if it is necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare, and if it is clearly written and easily understandable. If the Governor chooses to comment on the proposed regulation, his comments must be transmitted to the agency and the Registrar no later than 15 days following the completion of the 60-day public comment period. The Governor's comments, if any, will be published in the *Virginia Register*. Not less than 15 days following the completion of the agency may adopt the proposed regulation.

The appropriate standing committee of each branch of the General Assembly may meet during the promulgation or final adoption process and file an objection with the Registrar and the promulgating agency. The objection will be published in the *Virginia Register*. Within 21 days after receipt by the agency of a legislative objection, the agency shall file a response with the Registrar, the objecting legislative committee, and the Governor.

When final action is taken, the agency again publishes the text of the regulation as adopted, highlighting all changes made to the proposed regulation and explaining any substantial changes made since publication of the proposal. A 30-day final adoption period begins upon final publication in the *Virginia Register*.

The Governor may review the final regulation during this time and, if he objects, forward his objection to the Registrar and the agency. In addition to or in lieu of filing a formal objection, the Governor may suspend the effective date of a portion or all of a regulation until the end of the next regular General Assembly session by issuing a directive signed by a majority of the members of the appropriate standing committees and the Governor. The Governor's objection or suspension of the regulation, or both, will be published in the *Virginia Register*. If the Governor finds that changes made to the proposed regulation have substantial impact, he may require the agency to provide an additional 30-day public comment period on the changes. Notice of the additional public comment period required by the Governor will be published in the *Virginia Register*.

The agency shall suspend the regulatory process for 30 days when it receives requests from 25 or more individuals to solicit additional public comment, unless the agency determines that the changes have minor or inconsequential impact.

A regulation becomes effective at the conclusion of the 30-day final adoption period, or at any other later date specified by the promulgating agency, unless (i) a legislative objection has been filed, in which event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall be after the expiration of the 21-day extension

period; (ii) the Governor exercises his authority to require the agency to provide for additional public comment, in which event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall be after the expiration of the period for which the Governor has provided for additional public comment; (iii) the Governor and the General Assembly exercise their authority to suspend the effective date of a regulation until the end of the next regular legislative session; or (iv) the agency suspends the regulatory process, in which event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall be after the expiration of the 30-day public comment period.

Proposed regulatory action may be withdrawn by the promulgating agency at any time before the regulation becomes final.

#### **EMERGENCY REGULATIONS**

If an agency demonstrates that (i) there is an immediate threat to the public's health or safety; or (ii) Virginia statutory law, the appropriation act, federal law, or federal regulation requires a regulation to take effect no later than (a) 280 days from the enactment in the case of Virginia or federal law or the appropriation act, or (b) 280 days from the effective date of a federal regulation, it then requests the Governor's approval to adopt an emergency regulation. The emergency regulations, unless a later date is specified. Emergency regulations are limited to addressing specifically defined situations and may not exceed 12 months in duration. Emergency regulations are published as soon as possible in the *Register*.

During the time the emergency status is in effect, the agency may proceed with the adoption of permanent regulations through the usual procedures. To begin promulgating the replacement regulation, the agency must (i) file the Notice of Intended Regulatory Action with the Registrar within 60 days of the effective date of the emergency regulation; and (ii) file the proposed regulation with the Registrar within 180 days of the effective date of the emergency regulation. If the agency chooses not to adopt the regulations, the emergency status ends when the prescribed time limit expires.

#### STATEMENT

The foregoing constitutes a generalized statement of the procedures to be followed. For specific statutory language, it is suggested that Article 2 (§ 9-6.14:7.1 et seq.) of Chapter 1.1:1 of the Code of Virginia be examined carefully.

#### CITATION TO THE VIRGINIA REGISTER

The *Virginia Register* is cited by volume, issue, page number, and date. **12:8 VA.R. 1096-1106 January 8, 1996,** refers to Volume 12, Issue 8, pages 1096 through 1106 of the *Virginia Register* issued on January 8, 1996.

"THE VIRGINIA REGISTER OF REGULATIONS" (USPS-001831) is published bi-weekly, with quarterly cumulative indices published in January, April, July and October, for \$100 per year by the Virginia Code Commission, General Assembly Building, Capitol Square, Richmond, Virginia 23219. Telephone (804) 786-3591. Periodical Postage Rates Paid at Richmond, Virginia. POSTMASTER: Send address changes to THE VIRGINIA REGISTER OF REGULATIONS, 910 CAPITOL STREET, 2ND FLOOR, RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219.

The Virginia Register of Regulations is published pursuant to Article 7 (§ 9-6.14:22 et seq.) of Chapter 1.1:1 of Title 9 of the Code of Virginia. Individual copies, if available, may be purchased for \$4.00 each from the Registrar of Regulations.

<u>Members of the Virginia Code Commission</u>: Joseph V. Gartlan, Jr., Chairman; W. Tayloe Murphy, Jr., Vice Chairman; Robert L. Calhoun; Bernard S. Cohen; Jay W. DeBoer; Frank S. Ferguson; J. Randy Forbes; James E. Kulp; E.M. Miller, Jr.; James B. Wilkinson.

Staff of the Virginia Register: Jane D. Chaffin, Registrar of Regulations.

## PUBLICATION SCHEDULE AND DEADLINES

This schedule is available on the Register's Internet home page (http://legis.state.va.us/codecomm/register/regindex.htm).

## April 1999 through March 2000

Volume:Issue	Material Submitted By Noon*	Will Be Published On
15:16	April 7, 1999	April 26, 1999
15:17	April 21, 1999	May 10, 1999
15:18	May 5, 1999	May 24, 1999
15:19	May 19, 1999	June 7, 1999
15:20	June 2, 1999	June 21, 1999
INDEX 3 - Volume 15		July 1999
15:21	June 16, 1999	July 5, 1999
15:22	June 30, 1999	July 19, 1999
15:23	July 14, 1999	August 2, 1999
15:24	July 28, 1999	August 16, 1999
15:25	August 11, 1999	August 30, 1999
15:26	August 25, 1999	September 13, 1999
FINAL INDEX - Volume 15		October 1999
16:1	September 8, 1999	September 27, 1999
16:2	September 22, 1999	October 11, 1999
16:3	October 6, 1999	October 25, 1999
16:4	October 20, 1999	November 8, 1999
16:5	November 3, 1999	November 22, 1999
16:6	November 16, 1999 <b>(Tuesday)</b>	December 6, 1999
16:7	December 1, 1999	December 20, 1999
INDEX 1 - Volume 16		January 2000
16:8	December 14, 1999 (Tuesday)	January 3, 2000
16:9	December 28, 1999 <b>(Tuesday)</b>	January 17, 2000
16:10	January 12, 2000	January 31, 2000
16:11	January 26, 2000	February 14, 2000
16:12	February 9, 2000	February 28, 2000
16:13	February 23, 2000	March 13, 2000
16:14	March 8, 2000	March 27, 2000
INDEX 2 - Volume 16		April 2000

\*Filing deadlines are Wednesdays unless otherwise specified.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

## **CUMULATIVE TABLE OF VIRGINIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTIONS** ADOPTED, AMENDED, OR REPEALED

Cumulative Table ......2163

## NOTICES OF INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION

### **TITLE 9. ENVIRONMENT**

Virginia Waste Management Board2181	Virginia Waste	Management Board	
-------------------------------------	----------------	------------------	--

### TITLE 18. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING

Board of Medicine2	182
Board of Nursing2	184
Board of Pharmacy2	184
Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals2	
Board of Psychology2	186
Board of Veterinary Medicine2	186
TITLE 23. TAXATION	

## Department of Taxation ......2186

## **FINAL REGULATIONS**

### TITLE 9. ENVIRONMENT

## STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (VPDES) General Permit Regulation for Nonmetallic Mineral Mining (amending 9 VAC 25-190-10, 9 VAC 25-190-20, 9 VAC 25-190-50, 9 VAC 25-190-60, and 9 VAC 25-190-70; repealing 9 VAC 25-190-30 and 9 VAC 25-190-40)......2187

## **GENERAL NOTICES/ERRATA**

## STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

### ORDER GRANTING PETITIONS FOR RECONSIDERATION

Investigation of the Termination of Local Exchange for 

## DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Notice of Public Comment - Muddy Creek TMDL ......2211

## **GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF VIRGINIA - 1999 SESSION**

House Joint Resolution No	lo. 741	.2211
---------------------------	---------	-------

## DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program - Drinking	
Water Funding 2212	

## STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

Proposed Consent Special Order - Canaan Valley Estates
Proposed Consent Special Order - Holtzman Oil Company 2213
Proposed Consent Special Order - Massanutten Public Service Corporation

### VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

Notice to State Agencies	2213
Forms for Filing Material for Publication in The Virginia	
Register of Regulations	2214

## CALENDAR OF EVENTS

### EXECUTIVE

Open Meetings and Public Hearings	. 2215
INDEPENDENT	

Open Meetings and Public Hearings22	33
-------------------------------------	----

### LEGISLATIVE

Open Meetings and Public Hearings...... 2234

### CHRONOLOGICAL LIST

Open Meetings	. 2234
Public Hearings	. 2236

Volume 15, Issue 16

## CUMULATIVE TABLE OF VIRGINIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTIONS ADOPTED, AMENDED, OR REPEALED

The table printed below lists regulation sections, by Virginia Administrative Code (VAC) title, that have been amended, added or repealed in the *Virginia Register* since the regulations were originally published or last supplemented in VAC (the Fall 1998 VAC Supplement includes final regulations published through *Virginia Register* Volume 14, Issue 25, dated August 31, 1998). Emergency regulations, if any, are listed, followed by the designation "emer," and errata pertaining to final regulations are listed. Proposed regulations are not listed here. The table lists the sections in numerical order and shows action taken, the volume, issue and page number where the section appeared, and the effective date of the section.

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
Title 1. Administration			
1 VAC 30-130-10	Amended	15:1 VA.R. 44 (4390)	9/15/98
1 VAC 30-140-10	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 978	12/1/98
Title 2. Agriculture			
2 VAC 20-50-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:11 VA.R. 1692	3/17/99
2 VAC 20-51-10 through 2 VAC 20-51-210	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1693-1700	3/17/99
Title 4. Conservation and Natural Resources			
4 VAC 15-320-20	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 574	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-320-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 575	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-320-100	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 575	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-320-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 576	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-320-160	Added	15:5 VA.R. 576	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 577	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 577	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-140	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 577	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-150	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 578	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-160	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 578	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-340-60	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 578	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-360-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 579	1/1/99
4 VAC 20-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 579	10/28/98
4 VAC 20-20-35	Added	15:5 VA.R. 579	10/28/98
4 VAC 20-20-35	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2044	3/1/99
4 VAC 20-260-30	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 320	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-260-40	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 320	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-560-40	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 978	12/1/98
4 VAC 20-560-50	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 979	12/1/98
4 VAC 20-620-30	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1157	1/1/99
4 VAC 20-620-40	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 580	10/28/98
4 VAC 20-620-40	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1157	1/1/99
4 VAC 20-620-42 emer	Added	15:5 VA.R. 718	10/30/98-11/17/98
4 VAC 20-620-50	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2044	3/1/99
4 VAC 20-620-70	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2045	3/1/99
4 VAC 20-720-40	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 321	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-50	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 321	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-60	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 321	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-70	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 322	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-70 4 VAC 20-720-70	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 979	12/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-70 4 VAC 20-720-80	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 322	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-80 4 VAC 20-720-80	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1790	2/1/99
4 VAC 20-720-80 4 VAC 20-720-90	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 322	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-90 4 VAC 20-720-105	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 979	12/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-105 4 VAC 20-720-106 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1845	2/1/99-2/12/99
4 VAC 20-720-106 emer 4 VAC 20-900-10	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1645	3/1/99
4 VAC 20-900-10 4 VAC 20-900-25		15:14 VA.R. 2045	3/1/99
4 VAU 20-300-23	Added	10.14 VA.K. 2040	3/1/33

Volume 15, Issue 16

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
4 VAC 20-900-35	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2045	3/1/99
4 VAC 20-960-45	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 982	1/1/99
4 VAC 20-1020-10 through 4 VAC 20-1020-40	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1790	2/2/99
4 VAC 20-1030-10 through 4 VAC 20-1030-40	Added	15:15 VA.R. 2126-2135	3/15/99
4 VAC 25-30 (Forms)	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1020	
4 VAC 25-30 (Forms)	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1351	
4 VAC 25-35 (Forms)	Amended	15:1 VA.R. 46 (4392)	
4 VAC 25-35 (Forms)	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2075-2077	
4 VAC 25-40 (Forms)	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1020	
4 VAC 25-130-700.5	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 811	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-779.22	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 823	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-779.25	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 824	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-780.23	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 824	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-780.25	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 825	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-780.35	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 826	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-783.25	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 827	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-784.15	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 827	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-784.16	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 828	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-784.23	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 830	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-800.40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 830	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.46	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 832	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.49	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 834	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.74	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 836	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.81	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 837	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.89			
4 VAC 25-130-816.09 4 VAC 25-130-816.104	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 837 15:6 VA.R. 838	1/6/99 1/6/99
	Amended		
4 VAC 25-130-816.105	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 838	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.46	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 838	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.49	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 840	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.74	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 842	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.81	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 843	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.89	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 844	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-840.11	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 844	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-843.14	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 845	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-845.17	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 846	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-845.18	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 846	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-845.19	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 847	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-846.17	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 847	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130 (Forms)	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1736	
4 VAC 25-150-10	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 135	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-50	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 138	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-60	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 138	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-70	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 139	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-80 through 4 VAC 25-150-130	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 139-143	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-90	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150-135	Added	15:2 VA.R. 143	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-160 through 4 VAC 25-150-360	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 143-156	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-380 through 4 VAC 25-150-430	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 156-159	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-435	Added	15:2 VA.R. 159	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-440 through 4 VAC 25-150-460	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 161-162	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-500 through 4 VAC 25-150-530	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 162-163	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-500	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150-540	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 165	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-560	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 167	11/11/98
	7 1101000		11/11/00

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
4 VAC 25-150-570	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 167	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-580 through 4 VAC 25-150-610	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 168-169	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-610	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150-640	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 171	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-650 through 4 VAC 25-150-700	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 171-172	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-690	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150-710	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 172	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-711	Added	15:2 VA.R. 172	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-720 through 4 VAC 25-150-740	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 173	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150 (Forms)	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150 (Forms)	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2077-2078	
Title 8. Education			
8 VAC 35-30-30	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1706	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-50	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1707	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-160	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1707	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-200	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1707	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-210	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1707	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-220	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1708	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-230	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1708	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-240	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1709	1/18/99
Title 9. Environment	7 (11011000		1/10/00
9 VAC 5-20-21	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1799	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-20-204	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 174	1/1/99
9 VAC 5-20-205	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 174 15:2 VA.R. 175	1/1/99
		15:12 VA.R. 175	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-30-20	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1791 15:12 VA.R. 1794	
9 VAC 5-40-880	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1794 15:12 VA.R. 1794	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-890	Amended		4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-900	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1795	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-940	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1795	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1040	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1796	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1660	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1796	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1670	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1796	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1690	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1797	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1750	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1798	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1770	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1798	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1780	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1798	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1810	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1799	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5350 through 9 VAC 5-40-5480	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1793-1794	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5800	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1801	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5810	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1802	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5820	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1804	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5822	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1806	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5824	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1807	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5850	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1808	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5855	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1811	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5860	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1812	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5870	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1815	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5880	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1816	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5890	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1820	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5920	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1822	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5930	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1822	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-50-400	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1822	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-50-400	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1918	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-50-410	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1823	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-50-410	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1918	4/14/99

Volume 15, Issue 16

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
9 VAC 5-50-420	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1828	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-50-420	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1924	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-60	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1924	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-70	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1925	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-80	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1926	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-90	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1927	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-100	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1927	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-70-40	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1791	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-80-30	Repealed	15:11 VA.R. 1717	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-80-2000 through 9 VAC 5-80-2190	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1717-1728	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-80-2010	Erratum	15:13 VA.R. 1955	
9 VAC 5-200-10	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1931	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-200-20	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1931	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-200-30	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1931	4/14/99
9 VAC 20-60-10	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-12	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-12 9 VAC 20-60-14	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-17	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-17 9 VAC 20-60-18	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-18 9 VAC 20-60-60	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-70	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-100		15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-100 9 VAC 20-60-110	Repealed Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-110		15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-120 9 VAC 20-60-124	Repealed Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-124 9 VAC 20-60-130	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-130 9 VAC 20-60-140	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-150	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-160	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-170	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
		15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-180	Repealed		
9 VAC 20-60-190	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-200	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159 15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-210	Repealed		2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-220	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-230	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-240 9 VAC 20-60-250	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159 15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99 2/17/99
	Repealed		
9 VAC 20-60-260	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99 2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-261	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	
9 VAC 20-60-262	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-263	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-264	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-265	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-266	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-268	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-270	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-273	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-279	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-280	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-290	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-300	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-305	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-310	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-315	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
9 VAC 20-60-320	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-325	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-330	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-340	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-350	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-360	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-370	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-380	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-390	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-400	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-410	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-420	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-430	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-440	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-450	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-460	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-470	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-480	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-490	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-500	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-510	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-520	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-530	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-540	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-550	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-560	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-570	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-580	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-590	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
	•		
9 VAC 20-60-600	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-610	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-620	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-630	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-640	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-650	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-660	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-670	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-680	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-710	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-720	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-730	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-740	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-750	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-760	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-770	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-780	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-790	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-800	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-810	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-820	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-830	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-840	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-850	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-860	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-870	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99

Volume 15, Issue 16

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
9 VAC 20-60-880	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-890	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-930	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-940	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-950	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-970	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-980	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-990	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1000	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1010	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1030	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1040	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1050	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1060	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1080	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1090	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1100	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1110	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1120	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1130	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1140	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1150	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1160	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1170	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1180	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1200	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1250	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1260	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1270	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1280	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1310	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1330	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1340	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1350	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1360	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1370	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1380	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1390	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1400	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1410	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1420	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1430	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1440	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1450	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1460	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1470	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1480	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1495	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1505	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 25-150-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-151-10 et seq.	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1160-1224	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-151 (Forms)	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1224	
9 VAC 25-160-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1224	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-170-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1224	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-10	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1225	6/30/99

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
9 VAC 25-180-20	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1227	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-30	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1228	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-40	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1228	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-50	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1228	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-60	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1229	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-70	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1231	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180 (Forms)	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1247-1250	
9 VAC 25-192 (Forms)	Added	15:3 VA.R. 331	
9 VAC 25-192 (Forms)	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1854	
9 VAC 25-192-40	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 323	12/1/98
9 VAC 25-192-50	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 323	12/1/98
9 VAC 25-192-60	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 323	12/1/98
9 VAC 25-192-70	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 324	12/1/98
9 VAC 25-193-70	Erratum	15:2 VA.R. 241	
9 VAC 25-430-20	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 849	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-430-30	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 853	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-430-40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 861	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-430-60	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 864	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-440-150	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 872	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-440-151	Added	15:6 VA.R. 880	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-610-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 581	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-10	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 582	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-90	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 582	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-90 9 VAC 25-610-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 586	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-110 9 VAC 25-610-130	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 589	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-130 9 VAC 25-610-140		15:5 VA.R. 589 15:5 VA.R. 590	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-140 9 VAC 25-610-160	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 590	1/1/99
	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 591	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-250	Amended		
9 VAC 25-610-330	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 592	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-400	Added	15:5 VA.R. 592	1/1/99
Title 12. Health	A un o u do d	45-01/A D 000	4/0/00
12 VAC 5-90-10	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 880	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-10	Erratum	15:8 VA.R. 1099	
12 VAC 5-90-40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 882	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-50	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 883	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-60	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 883	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-70	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 883	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-80	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 883	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-90	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 885	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-90	Erratum	15:8 VA.R. 1099	
12 VAC 5-90-100	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-110	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-120	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-130	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-150	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-160	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-170	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-180	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 889	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-190	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 889	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-210	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 889	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-220	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 889	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-230	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4250	10/14/98
12 VAC 5-90-240	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4250	10/14/98
12 VAC 5-90-250	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4251	10/14/98
12 VAC 5-90-260	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4251	10/14/98

Volume 15, Issue 16

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
12 VAC 5-90-270	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4251	10/14/98
12 VAC 30-10-140 emer	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1942	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-10-150 emer	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1943	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-20-170	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4252	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-30 emer	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1943	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-50-70 emer	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1944	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-50-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 593	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-140	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 593	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-140	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 893	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-50-150	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 894	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-50-160	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4252	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-210	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 595	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-270 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1342	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-50-320 emer	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1944	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-60-40	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4254	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-60-40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 895	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-60-120	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 896	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-60-130 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1343	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-60-320	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4257	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-60-340	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4259	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-80-30	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 900	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-80-30 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1345	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-90-264	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4261	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-90-290	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4264	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-120-61 through 12 VAC 30-120-69 emer	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1944-1947	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-130-480 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1346	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-130-490 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1346	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-130-530 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1347	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-140-10 through 12 VAC 30-140-50 emer	Added	15:4 VA.R. 478-480	10/23/98-10/22/99
12 VAC 30-150-10 and 12 VAC 30-150-20 emer	Added	15:4 VA.R. 481-483	10/23/98-10/22/99
12 VAC 30-160-00 through 12 VAC 30-160-299 emer	Added	15:4 VA.R. 483-486	10/23/98-10/22/99
12 VAC 30-170-10 and 12 VAC 30-170-20 emer	Added	15:4 VA.R. 487	10/23/98-10/22/99
Title 13. Housing			
13 VAC 5-51-20 emer	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2069	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-51-130 emer	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2070	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-51-135 emer	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2070	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-51-136 emer	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2070	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-61-200 emer	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2071	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-61-440 emer	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2072	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-100-10 emer	Added	15:10 VA.R. 1349	1/6/99-1/5/00
13 VAC 5-100-20 emer	Added	15:10 VA.R. 1350	1/6/99-1/5/00
13 VAC 10-40-20	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1829	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-130	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1832	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-160	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1834	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-210	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1835	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-220	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1835	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-230	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 424	10/21/98
13 VAC 10-40-230	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1835	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-180-10	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2050	3/10/99
13 VAC 10-180-50	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2051	3/10/99
13 VAC 10-180-50	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2053	3/10/99
13 VAC 10-180-00	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2000	3/10/99
13 VAC 10-180-70	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2063	3/10/99
Title 14. Insurance	Amenueu	10.14 VA.N. 2000	3/10/33
14 VAC 5-170-20	Amondod	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 0-170-20	Amended	13.13 VA.R. 2130	4/20/99

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
14 VAC 5-170-30	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-40	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-50	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-60	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-70	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-80	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-90	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-100	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-105	Added	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-110	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-120	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-130	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-140	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-150	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-160	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-170	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170-180	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170 Appendix A	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170 Appendix B	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-170 Appendix C	Amended	15:15 VA.R. 2136	4/26/99
14 VAC 5-395-10	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4266	8/20/98
14 VAC 5-395-10	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4266	8/20/98
14 VAC 5-395-50	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4266	8/20/98
	Amended	14.20 VA.R. 4207	0/20/90
Title 16. Labor and Employment	A	45 5 V/A D 000	4/4/00
16 VAC 25-50-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 600	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-15	Added	15:5 VA.R. 603	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-20	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 603	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-50	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 604	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-70	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 605	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-80	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 606	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-90	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 606	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 606	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-150	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 607	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-190	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-240	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-250	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-270	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-290	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-350	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-360	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-370	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 612	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-380	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 615	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-390	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 616	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-430	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 616	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-440	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 617	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-50-480	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 617	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.109	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.111	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.141	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.142	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.151	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.156	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.183	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.261	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99

Volume 15, Issue 16

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
		-	
16 VAC 25-90-1910.262	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.265	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.267	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.268	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.1017	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.1018	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.1029	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-90-1910.1052	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 628	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-100-1915.1001	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 633	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-175-1926.31	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-175-1926.50	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-175-1926.152	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-175-1926.906	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 631	1/1/99
16 VAC 25-175-1926.1101	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 633	1/1/99
Title 18. Professional and Occupational Licensing			
18 VAC 40-20-20	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1313	3/3/99
18 VAC 40-20-110	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1313	3/3/99
18 VAC 40-20-120	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1313	3/3/99
18 VAC 40-20-130	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1313	3/3/99
18 VAC 40-20-140	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1313	3/3/99
18 VAC 40-20-150	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1314	3/3/99
18 VAC 40-20-170	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1314	3/3/99
18 VAC 45-20-10	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1251	3/1/99
18 VAC 45-20-20	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1251	3/1/99
18 VAC 45-20 (Forms)	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1252-1253	
18 VAC 50-22-100	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1837	5/1/99
18 VAC 50-22-140	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1837	5/1/99
18 VAC 50-30-90	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1838	5/1/99
18 VAC 60-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 636	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-15	Added	15:5 VA.R. 637	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-16	Added	15:5 VA.R. 637	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 637	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-20	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 646	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-20 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1729	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 60-20-20 emer 18 VAC 60-20-30		15:5 VA.R. 638	12/23/98
	Amended		
18 VAC 60-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 647	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-30 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1729	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 60-20-50	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 638	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-60	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 639	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-70	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 639	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-80	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 640	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-90	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 640	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 641	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 641	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-130	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 641	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-140	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 641	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-150	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 642	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-160	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 642	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-170	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 642	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-180	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 642	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-190	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 643	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-195	Added	15:5 VA.R. 644	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-220	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 644	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-230	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 644	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-240	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 645	12/23/98
	Amenueu	10.0 VA.N. 040	12/20/30

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 65-20-10	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 982	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-20	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 984	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-30	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 984	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-40	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 984	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-50	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 984	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-60	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 984	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-70	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 426	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-20-70 emer	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1846	2/2/99-2/1/00
18 VAC 65-20-80	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 426	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-20-90	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 427	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-20-100	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 427	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-20-110	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 984	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-120	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-120 emer	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1846	2/2/99-2/1/00
18 VAC 65-20-130	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-130 emer	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1846	2/2/99-2/1/00
18 VAC 65-20-140	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-150	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-160	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-170	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-180 through 18 VAC 65-20-230	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 986	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-235	Added	15:7 VA.R. 986	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-240	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 986	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-250 through 18 VAC 65-20-340	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 987	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-350	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 987	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-360 through 18 VAC 65-20-390	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-400	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-410	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-430	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-435 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1846	2/2/99-2/1/00
18 VAC 65-20-440	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-450 through 18 VAC 65-20-490	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 988-989	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-500	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 989	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-510	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-520	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-530	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-540	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-550	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-560	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-580	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-590	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-600	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-610	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-620	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-630	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-640 through 18 VAC 65-20-690	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 992-994	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-700	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 992-994	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-700	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 994 15:7 VA.R. 995	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-20	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 995	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-30	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 997 15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-30	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 997 15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-50	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-60	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-70	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-80	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99

Volume 15, Issue 16

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 65-30-90	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 998	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-110	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 998	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-120	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-140	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-150	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-160	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-170	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-180	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-190	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1000	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-200	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1000	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-210	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1000	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-220	Added	15:7 VA.R. 1001	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-220	Added	15:7 VA.R. 1003	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-10	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1003	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-10 18 VAC 65-40-20	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
	•		
18 VAC 65-40-30	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99 12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-40	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 433	
18 VAC 65-40-50	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 433	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-60	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 433	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-70	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 433	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-80	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 433	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-90	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-100	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-110	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-120	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-130	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-140	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-150	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-160	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-170	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-180	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-190	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-200	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-201	Added	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-210	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-220	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-230	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-240	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-250	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-260	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-270	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-280	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-290	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-300	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-310	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-320	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-330	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1011	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-340	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1011	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-350 through 18 VAC 65-40-630	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1011-1014	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-640	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1014	1/20/99
18 VAC 85-40-10 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1730	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-25 emer	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-40 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-45 emer	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-50 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 85-40-60 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-65 emer	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-70 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-80 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1732	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-80-10 emer	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1847	1/29/99-1/28/00
18 VAC 85-80-11 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1848	1/29/99-1/28/00
18 VAC 85-80-12 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1848	1/29/99-1/28/00
18 VAC 85-80-35 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1848	1/29/99-1/28/00
18 VAC 85-80-40 through 18 VAC 85-80-90 emer	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1848-1849	1/29/99-1/28/00
18 VAC 85-110-10	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 436	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-20	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 437	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-30	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 437	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-35	Added	15:4 VA.R. 437	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-40	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 438	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-50	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 438	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-60	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 438	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-00	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-70	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-90	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-30	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-100		15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
	Repealed		
18 VAC 85-110-150	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-160	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-170	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 440	12/9/98
18 VAC 90-20-10	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 333	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-20	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 334	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-35	Added	15:3 VA.R. 334	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-40	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 334	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-50	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 335	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-60	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 335	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-70	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 335	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-80	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 335	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-90	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 336	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-95	Added	15:3 VA.R. 337	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-100	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 337	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-110	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 337	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-120	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 338	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-130	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 338	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-140	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 339	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-150	Repealed	15:3 VA.R. 339	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-160	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 339	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-170	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 339	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-180	Repealed	15:3 VA.R. 340	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-190	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 340	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-210	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-250	Repealed	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-260	Repealed	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-275	Added	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-280	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-280	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-290 18 VAC 90-20-300			12/3/98
	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 342	
18 VAC 90-20-300 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1733	1/26/99-1/25/00
18 VAC 90-20-310	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 342	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-330	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 342	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-340	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 346	12/3/98

Volume 15, Issue 16

18         VAC 90-20-400         Acc           18         VAC 90-20-410         Acc           18         VAC 90-20-420 through 18 VAC 90-20-460 emer         Acc           18         VAC 90-30-10         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-30         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-40         Re           18         VAC 90-30-70         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-80         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-80         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-90         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-90         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-120         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-140         Re           18         VAC 90-30-150         Re           18         VAC 90-30-160         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210         Re           18         VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18         VAC 95-20-20         Re           18         VAC 95-20-30         Re           18         VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18         VAC 95-20-10         Re           18         VAC 95-20-100         Re <t< th=""><th>Ided15::Ided15::Ided15::Ided15::nen</th><th>3 VA.R. 346 3 VA.R. 347 3 VA.R. 347 11 VA.R. 1733-1735 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454</th><th>12/3/98 12/3/98 12/3/98 1/26/99-1/25/00 1/20/99</th></t<>	Ided15::Ided15::Ided15::Ided15::nen	3 VA.R. 346 3 VA.R. 347 3 VA.R. 347 11 VA.R. 1733-1735 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/3/98 12/3/98 12/3/98 1/26/99-1/25/00 1/20/99
18         VAC         90-20-410         Acc           18         VAC         90-20-420         through 18         VAC         90-20-460         emer         Acc           18         VAC         90-30-10         Ar         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-30         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-40         Re         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-70         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-80         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-90         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-120         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-150         Re         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-160         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-170         through 18         VAC         90-30-210         Re           18         VAC         90-30-160         Ar         Ar         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         95-20-10         Ar         Ar         Ar         Ar           18         VAC	Ided15::Ided15::nended15::nended15::spealed15::nended15::nended15::nended15::nended15::nended15::nended15::nended15::nended15::spealed15::spealed15::spealed15::spealed15::spealed15::spealed15::spealed15::spealed15::nended15::spealed15::nended15::nended15::nended15::spealed15:: <t< td=""><td>3 VA.R. 347 11 VA.R. 1733-1735 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454</td><td>12/3/98 1/26/99-1/25/00 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98</td></t<>	3 VA.R. 347 11 VA.R. 1733-1735 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/3/98 1/26/99-1/25/00 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18         VAC 90-20-420 through 18         VAC 90-20-460 emer         Act           18         VAC 90-30-10         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-30         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-40         Re           18         VAC 90-30-70         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-70         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-70         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-90         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-120         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-140         Re           18         VAC 90-30-150         Re           18         VAC 90-30-160         Ar           18         VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210         Re           18         VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18         VAC 95-20-10         Re           18         VAC 95-20-20         Re           18         VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18         VAC 95-20-10         Re           18         VAC 95-20-10         Re           18         VAC 95-20-10         Re           18         VAC 95-20-10         Re           18         VAC 95-20-10         Re <tr< td=""><td>Ided15:nended15:nended15:spealed15:nended15:nended15:nended15:nended15:nended15:nended15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:nended15:spealed15:nended15:spealed&lt;</td><td>11 VA.R. 1733-1735 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454</td><td>1/26/99-1/25/00 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98</td></tr<>	Ided15:nended15:nended15:spealed15:nended15:nended15:nended15:nended15:nended15:nended15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:spealed15:nended15:spealed15:nended15:spealed<	11 VA.R. 1733-1735 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/26/99-1/25/00 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-10         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-30         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-40         Re           18 VAC 90-30-70         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-70         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-70         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-80         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-90         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-120         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-140         Re           18 VAC 90-30-150         Re           18 VAC 90-30-170         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-170         Re           18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210         Re           18 VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-20         Re           18 VAC 95-20-30         Re           18 VAC 95-20-30         Re           18 VAC 95-20-10         Re <td>nended 15: nended 15: pealed 15: nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: pealed 15: peale</td> <td>7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 451 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454</td> <td>1/20/99 1/20/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98</td>	nended 15: nended 15: pealed 15: nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: pealed 15: peale	7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 451 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-30         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-40         Re           18 VAC 90-30-70         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-80         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-90         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-120         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-120         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-140         Re           18 VAC 90-30-150         Re           18 VAC 90-30-160         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210         Re           18 VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-20         Re           18 VAC 95-20-30         Re           18 VAC 95-20-30         Re           18 VAC 95-20-30         Re           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-100         Re           18 VAC 95-20-100         Re <td>nended 15: pealed 15: nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: pealed 15: peale</td> <td>7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454</td> <td>1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98</td>	nended 15: pealed 15: nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: pealed 15: peale	7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18         VAC         90-30-40         Ref           18         VAC         90-30-70         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-80         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-90         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-120         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-140         Ref           18         VAC         90-30-150         Ref           18         VAC         90-30-160         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-170         through 18         VAC         90-30-210           18         VAC         90-30-170         through 18         VAC         90-30-210         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-10         Ar         Ar         18         VAC         95-20-20         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-30         Ref         Ref         18         VAC         95-20-30         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-70         Ar         Ref         18         VAC         95-20-70         Ar           18         VAC         95-20-100         Ref         18         VAC         95-20-100         Ref <td< td=""><td>spealed15:nended15:nended15:nended15:nended15:spealed15:<td< td=""><td>7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454</td><td>1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98</td></td<></td></td<>	spealed15:nended15:nended15:nended15:nended15:spealed15: <td< td=""><td>7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454</td><td>1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98</td></td<>	7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-70       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-80       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-90       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-120       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-140       Re         18 VAC 90-30-150       Re         18 VAC 90-30-160       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-10       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-20       Re         18 VAC 95-20-30       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC	spealed15:nended15:nended15:nended15:nended15:spealed15: <td< td=""><td>7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454</td><td>1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98</td></td<>	7 VA.R. 1015 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-70       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-80       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-90       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-120       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-120       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-140       Re         18 VAC 90-30-150       Re         18 VAC 90-30-160       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-10       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-20       Re         18 VAC 95-20-30       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VA	nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: nended 15: pealed 15: peale	7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-80       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-90       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-120       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-120       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-140       Re         18 VAC 90-30-150       Re         18 VAC 90-30-160       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-10       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-20       Re         18 VAC 95-20-30       Re         18 VAC 95-20-40       Re         18 VAC 95-20-40       Re         18 VAC 95-20-50       Re         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-150       Re         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         1	nended 15: nended 15: pealed 15: peale	7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-120       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-140       Re         18 VAC 90-30-150       Re         18 VAC 90-30-160       Ar         18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210       Re         18 VAC 95-20-10       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-20       Re         18 VAC 95-20-20       Re         18 VAC 95-20-30       Re         18 VAC 95-20-30       Re         18 VAC 95-20-40       Re         18 VAC 95-20-50       Re         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-70       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-110       Re         18 VAC 95-20-120       Re         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar	nended 15: pealed 15: peale	7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-140         Ref           18 VAC 90-30-150         Ref           18 VAC 90-30-160         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-20         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-30         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-30         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-40         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-50         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-100         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-100         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-110         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-120         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-130         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-140         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-150         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-170         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-175         Ac           18 VAC 95-20-170         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-190         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-190	nended 15: pealed 15: peale	7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-150         Ref           18 VAC 90-30-160         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-20         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-20         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-30         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-40         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-50         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-100         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-110         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-120         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-140         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-150         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-175         Ac           18 VAC 95-20-175         Ac           18 VAC 95-20-190         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-200	pealed15:nended15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:pealed15:	7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18         VAC         90-30-150         Ref           18         VAC         90-30-160         Ar           18         VAC         90-30-170 through 18         VAC         90-30-210         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-10         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         95-20-20         Ref         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-30         Ref         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-40         Ref         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-40         Ref         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-50         Ref         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-70         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         95-20-70         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         95-20-70         Ar         Ar           18         VAC         95-20-90         Ref         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-100         Ref         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-120         Ref         Ref           18         VAC         95-20-130         Ar           18 </td <td>ppealed15:nended15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:</td> <td>7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454</td> <td>1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98</td>	ppealed15:nended15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:	7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-160         Ar           18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210         Re           18 VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-20         Re           18 VAC 95-20-30         Re           18 VAC 95-20-40         Re           18 VAC 95-20-40         Re           18 VAC 95-20-50         Re           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-90         Re           18 VAC 95-20-100         Re           18 VAC 95-20-100         Re           18 VAC 95-20-120         Re           18 VAC 95-20-130         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-140         Re           18 VAC 95-20-150         Re           18 VAC 95-20-170         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-180         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-190         Re           18 VAC 95-20-200         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-210         Re	nended 15: pealed 15: pealed 15: pealed 15: pealed 15: pealed 15: pealed 15: pealed 15: nended 15: pealed 15: pealed 15: pealed 15: pealed 15:	7 VA.R. 1016 7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-10         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-20         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-30         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-40         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-40         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-40         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-50         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-70         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-100         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-100         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-110         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-120         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-130         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-140         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-150         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-170         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-180         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-190         Ref           18 VAC 95-20-200         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-210         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-210	ppealed15:nended15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:nended15:nended15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:ppealed15:	7 VA.R. 1017 4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	1/20/99 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-10       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-20       Re         18 VAC 95-20-30       Re         18 VAC 95-20-30       Re         18 VAC 95-20-30       Re         18 VAC 95-20-40       Re         18 VAC 95-20-50       Re         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-110       Re         18 VAC 95-20-120       Re         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-150       Re         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-210       Re	nended 15:- pealed 15:- pealed 15:- pealed 15:- pealed 15:- pealed 15:- nended 15:- nended 15:- pealed 15:- pealed 15:-	4 VA.R. 452 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-20       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-30       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-40       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-50       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-100       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-110       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-120       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-150       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-160       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-210       Ref	spealed15:-spealed15:-spealed15:-spealed15:-spealed15:-nended15:-spealed15:-spealed15:-spealed15:-spealed15:-	4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-30       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-40       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-50       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-100       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-100       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-110       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-120       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-120       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-150       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-160       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-210       Ref	ppealed15:-ppealed15:-ppealed15:-opealed15:-opealed15:-opealed15:-opealed15:-opealed15:-	4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-40       Re         18 VAC 95-20-50       Re         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-80       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-90       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-120       Re         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-150       Re         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-210       Re	pealed 15:- pealed 15:- nended 15:- nended 15:- pealed 15:- pealed 15:-	4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-50       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-80       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-90       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-100       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-120       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-150       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-160       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar	pealed 15:- nended 15:- nended 15:- pealed 15:- pealed 15:-	4 VA.R. 453 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98 12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-70       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-80       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-90       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-110       Re         18 VAC 95-20-120       Re         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-150       Re         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-210       Re	nended 15:4 nended 15:4 epealed 15:4 epealed 15:4	4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-80       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-90       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-110       Re         18 VAC 95-20-120       Re         18 VAC 95-20-120       Re         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-150       Re         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-210       Re	nended 15:4 epealed 15:4 epealed 15:4	4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-90       Re         18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-110       Re         18 VAC 95-20-120       Re         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-150       Re         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-210       Re	epealed 15:4 epealed 15:4	4 VA.R. 454	
18 VAC 95-20-100       Re         18 VAC 95-20-110       Re         18 VAC 95-20-120       Re         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-150       Re         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-210       Re	pealed 15:4		12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-110       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-120       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-150       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-160       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-210       Ar		4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-120       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-140       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-150       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-160       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar	epealeu 15.4	4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-130       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-150       Re         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar	noolod 15	4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-140       Re         18 VAC 95-20-150       Re         18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar			
18 VAC 95-20-150       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-160       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Ref         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-210       Ref		4 VA.R. 454 4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98 12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-160       Re         18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-210       Re			
18 VAC 95-20-170       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-210       Re		4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-175       Ac         18 VAC 95-20-180       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-190       Re         18 VAC 95-20-200       Ar         18 VAC 95-20-210       Re		4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-180         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-190         Re           18 VAC 95-20-200         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-210         Re		4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-190         Re           18 VAC 95-20-200         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-210         Re		4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-200         Ar           18 VAC 95-20-210         Re		4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-210 Re		4 VA.R. 456	12/9/98
		4 VA.R. 456	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-220 Ar		4 VA.R. 456	12/9/98
	nended 15:4	4 VA.R. 456	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-225 Ac	Ided 15:4	4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
		4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-240 Re	epealed 15:4	4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-250 Re	epealed 15:4	4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
_18 VAC 95-20-260 Re	epealed 15:4	4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-270 Re	epealed 15:4	4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-280 Re	pealed 15:4	4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-290 Ar	nended 15:4	4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-300 Ar	nended 15:4	4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
		4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
		4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
	•	4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
		4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
		4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
	•	4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
	pealed 154	4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
	•		12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-300 Ar	pealed 15:4	4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 95-20-400	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-410	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-420	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-430	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-440	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-450	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-460	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-470	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-480 through 18 VAC 95-20-740	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460-463	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20; Appendices I, II and III	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 463-464	12/9/98
18 VAC 105-20-10	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 902	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-15	Added	15:6 VA.R. 902	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-20	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 903	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-30	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 903	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 903	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-45	Added	15:6 VA.R. 904	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-50	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 905	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-50	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 906	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-00	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 906	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-70	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1839	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-10	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1839	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-20	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1839	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-35	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1839	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-40	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1839	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-50		15:12 VA.R. 1840	3/31/99
	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1840	
18 VAC 105-30-60	Amended		3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-70	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1840 15:12 VA.R. 1841	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-90	Amended		3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-100	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1841	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-110	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1841	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-120	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1841	3/31/99
18 VAC 110-20-10 emer	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 926	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-10	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1070	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-20	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1073	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-30	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1074	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-40	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1074	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-50	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1074	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-60	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1075	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-70	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1075	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-90	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1075	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-100	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1076	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-110	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1077	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-130 emer	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 928	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-130	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1077	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-130	Erratum	15:12 VA.R. 1865	
18 VAC 110-20-135 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 928	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-140 emer	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 929	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-170	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1077	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-190	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1077	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-200	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1078	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-210	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1078	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-220	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1079	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-230	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1079	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-240	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1079	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-260	Repealed	15:8 VA.R. 1080	2/3/99

Volume 15, Issue 16

		OITE	
	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 110-20-270	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1080	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-280	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1081	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-290	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1081	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-330	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1082	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-350	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1082	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-355	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1082	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-360	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1082	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-395	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1083	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-400	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1083	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-420	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1083	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-470	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1084	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-500	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1084	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-540	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1085	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-550	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1085	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-555	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1085	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-570	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1086	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-580	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-590	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-620	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-621	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-622	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-640	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1088	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-650	Repealed	15:8 VA.R. 1088	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-680	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1088	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-690 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 929	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-700 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 929	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-710 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 930	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-720 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 930	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 130-20-130	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2066	5/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-130	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 648	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-10 18 VAC 135-20-20		15:5 VA.R. 649	1/1/99
	Amended		
18 VAC 135-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 650	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-40	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 650	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-45	Added	15:5 VA.R. 650	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-50	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 651	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-60	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 651	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-80	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 652	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-90	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 652	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-100	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 652	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 653	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 654	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-150	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 654	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-160	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 654	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-170	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 654	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-180	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 655	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-190	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 656	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-200	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 657	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-210	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 657	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-220	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 657	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-240	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-250	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-260	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-200	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-280	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-280 18 VAC 135-20-290		15:5 VA.R. 659	1/1/99
10 VAC 100-20-290	Amended	19.9 VA.R. 099	1/1/99

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 135-20-300	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 659	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-310	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 660	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-320	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 660	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-350	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 660	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-360	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 661	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-370	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-380	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-390	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-400	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-410	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-420	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 663	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-430	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 663	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-440	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 663	1/1/99
18 VAC 140-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 663	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 664	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-35	Added	15:5 VA.R. 664	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-37	Added	15:5 VA.R. 664	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-40	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 664	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-45	Added	15:5 VA.R. 665	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-50	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 665	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-60	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 667	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-70	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 668	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-80	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 668	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-90	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 668	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 668	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-150	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 669	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 687	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-40	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-50	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-60	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-70	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-75	Added	15:5 VA.R. 690	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-80	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 690	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-90	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 690	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-100	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 690	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 691	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-115	Added	15:5 VA.R. 691	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 692	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-130	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 692	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-140	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 692	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-150	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 693	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-160	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 693	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-170	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 693	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-180	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 694	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-185	Added	15:5 VA.R. 694	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-190	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 694	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-190	Erratum	15:9 VA.R. 1276	
18 VAC 150-20-195	Added	15:5 VA.R. 696	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-200	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 696	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-200	Erratum	15:9 VA.R. 1276	
18 VAC 150-20-205	Added	15:5 VA.R. 701	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-210	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 701	12/23/98
18 VAC 155-20-40	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1938	5/1/99

Volume 15, Issue 16

SECTION NUMBER	I NUMBER ACTION CITE		EFFECTIVE DATE	
Title 19. Public Safety				
19 VAC 30-20-80	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1254	3/17/99	
19 VAC 30-20-220	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1254	3/17/99	
19 VAC 30-20-250	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1254	3/17/99	
19 VAC 30-20 (Forms)	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2078-2079		
19 VAC 30-70-5	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 177	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-7	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 178	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-10	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 178	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-50	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 180	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-70 through 19 VAC 30-70-100	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 181-184	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-140	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 185	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-160	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 187	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-180	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 190	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-180	Erratum	15:8 VA.R. 1099		
19 VAC 30-70-200	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 192	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-440 through 19 VAC 30-70-500	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 192-203	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-550	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 207	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-570	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 208	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-580	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 209	11/11/98	
19 VAC 30-70-680	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 211	11/11/98	
Title 20. Public Utilities and Telecommunications				
20 VAC 5-400-151	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2068	7/1/99	
Title 22. Social Services				
22 VAC 40-35-10	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 922	1/6/99	
22 VAC 40-35-125	Added	15:6 VA.R. 924	1/6/99	
22 VAC 40-40-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1256	2/17/99	
22 VAC 40-41-10 et seq.	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1256-1258	2/17/99	
22 VAC 40-41 (Forms)	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1258		
22 VAC 40-71-10	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1259	2/18/99	
22 VAC 40-71-490	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1262	2/18/99	
22 VAC 40-140-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:10 VA.R. 1323	3/3/99	
22 VAC 40-141-10 through 22 VAC 40-141-210	Added	15:10 VA.R. 1323-1331	3/3/99	
22 VAC 40-141 (Forms)	Added	15:10 VA.R. 1331-1338		
22 VAC 40-325-10 and 22 VAC 40-325-20 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1849-1850	4/1/99-3/31/00	
Title 23. Taxation				
23 VAC 10-110-225 through 23 VAC 10-110-229 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1851-1853	2/4/99-2/3/00	
23 VAC 10-110-228	Erratum	15:14 VA.R. 2081		
Title 24. Transportation and Motor Vehicles				
24 VAC 30-200-10	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4267	10/14/98	
24 VAC 30-200-10	Erratum	15:1 VA.R. 50 (4396)		
24 VAC 30-200-20	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4268	10/14/98	
24 VAC 30-200-30	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4269	10/14/98	
24 VAC 30-200-40	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4270	10/14/98	
24 VAC 30-200-40	Erratum	15:1 VA.R. 50		
24 VAC 30-350-10	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1939	2/22/99	
74 VAL 30-330-10				

## NOTICES OF INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION

Symbol Key

† Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register

## TITLE 9. ENVIRONMENT

## VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Waste Management Board intends to consider amending regulations entitled: 9 VAC 20-60-12 et seg. Virginia Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (Amendment 15). The purpose of the proposed action is to update the regulations regarding transportation, treatment, storage, and disposal of hazardous waste so as to protect the public health, natural resources and environment; maintain consistency with federal requirements; and maintain authorization. By maintaining the equivalence of its regulations with those issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (RCRA) and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 (HSWA), the Commonwealth remains eligible to carry out its own hazardous waste management program and be an authorized state under the federal acts.

Amendment 15 will consider incorporation of changes in the federal regulations in Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations occurring since Amendment 14 through July 1, 1998, including amendments promulgated in the Federal Register on, at least, the following dates: January 3, 1995, December 6, 1994, January 13, 1995, February 9, 1995, April 17, 1995, May 12, 1995, April 4, 1995, May 19, 1995, June 29, 1995, July 11, 1995, September 29, 1995, October 30, 1995, December 11, 1995, February 9, 1996, March 26,1996, April 8, 1996 (2), April 30, 1996, June 28, 1996, July 10, 1996, August 26, 1996, February 17, 1997, April 12, 1996, July 1, 1996, December 6, 1994, May 19, 1995, September 29, 1995, November 13, 1995, February 9, 1996, June 5, 1996, November 23, 1996, January 14, 1997, February 12, 1997, May 12, 1997, June 13, 1997, June 17, 1997, July 14, 1997, August 28, 1997, December 5, 1997, December 8, 1997, April 15, 1998, May 4, 1998, June 29, 1998, May 6, 1998, July 14, 1998, May 26, 1998, June 8, 1998, and June 19,1998. These amendments of the federal regulations address, at least, the following items:

1. Revisions of the Universal Treatment Standards regarding land disposal restrictions or related changes;

2. Revisions to listings and exemptions of certain carbamate chemicals production wastes (U and K listings);

3. Housekeeping changes related to adoption errors and obsolete provisions;

4. Adoption of additional test methods related to rules that prohibit liquids in landfills;

5. New rules about the public participation process in the permitting of storage, treatment and disposal facilities and for test burns at incinerators and combustion facilities;

6. Correction of adoption errors in the exclusion rules for recovered oil which is recycled;

7. Addition of rules related to Phase III of the land disposal restriction and treatment standards concerning carbamate pesticide production wastes, primary aluminum production wastes, characteristic wastes, listed wastes, and wastes that are diluted;

8. Identification of import and export wastes subject to the graduated system of controls under the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development;

9. Revisions of rules for disposal of wastes from conditionally exempt small quantity generators;

10. Adoption of additional air standards for the control of organic emissions from tanks, surface impoundments, containers and miscellaneous units, including during accumulation of waste on-site;

11. Extensions of the national capacity variance (under Phase III of the Land Disposal Restrictions) for spent potliners for primary aluminum production;

12. Adoption of Military Munitions Rule, which identifies when conventional and chemical military munitions become a hazardous waste, provides rules for the safe storage and transport of such waste, changes rules regarding emergency responses involving munitions and explosives, and exempts generators and transporters from manifest requirements on right-of-ways that are on or along the border of contiguous properties under the control of the same person;

13. Adoption of land disposal restrictions - Phase IV, which establishes treatment standards under the land disposal restrictions for waste from wood preserving operations, revises record keeping related to land disposal restrictions, regulates polymerizations as a treatment alternative, clarifies de minimis amounts exemption of characteristic wastewaters, and excludes processed circuit boards and scrap metal from regulation as hazardous wastes;

14. Update the incorporation by reference citation of SW-846, Third Edition, "Test Methods for Evaluation Solid Waste, Physical/Chemical Methods," to include changes through January 13, 1997 (through Update III);

15. Revisions and withdrawals of certain rules related to listing of carbamate wastes;

16. Extension of alternate treatment standard for carbamate under the land disposal restrictions (Aug. 26, 1997, to Aug. 26, 1998);

17. Clarifications of the rules for authorization of variances from the treatment standards of the land disposal restriction regulations, and incorporation of rules requiring public participation in site specific variance considerations;

18. Amendments and clarifications of the air standards for the control of organic emissions from tanks, surface impoundments, and container;

19. Exclusions from regulation as hazardous waste of the condensates derived from the overhead gases from kraft mill steam strippers under specificed conditions;

20. Additions of specific organobromine production wastes to the list of hazardous wastes and listings of land disposal treatment standards for those wastes;

21. Correction and adoption of rules related to the management standards of used oil contaminated with PCB's and other used oil;

22. Adoption of treatment standards under the land disposal restrictions for metal wastes, mineral processing waste and 12 metal constituents; adoption of land disposal prohibition and treatment standards for mineral processing waste that are ignitable, corrosive or reactive; amendment of the definition of when secondary materials being recycled are solid waste so as to exclude certain mineral processing waste; amendment of the definition; adoption of treatment standards under the Bevill exemption; adoption of treatment standards under the land disposal restrictions for contaminated soils as waste; and adoption of corrections and clarifying provisions to the land disposal restrictions;

23. Exclusion from regulation as solid waste those fuels produced from a hazardous waste which is comparable to some currently used fossil fuels, and addition of provisions to make it easier for existing facilities to make changes to their existing permit.

In addition to the promulgated amendments of federal regulations, Amendment 15 may consider the following items:

1. Errors and omissions resulting from previous amendments of the regulations, including the change in the format of the regulations effected by Amendment 14;

2. Several amendments to the requirements for the transportation of hazardous waste, including insurance requirements; financial assurance requirements for hazardous waste management facilities; and documentation demonstrating compliance with financial assurance requirements which were recommended by commenters regarding Amendment 14, but which could not be addressed in Amendment 14 for procedural reasons;

3. Revision of the schedule of permit application fees to reflect increased cost of permit reviews;

4. Further use or expansion of the format of incorporation by reference of federal regulations;

5. Inclusion of additional waste streams as listed Universal Wastes;

6. Alterations or clarifications of the regulations concerning transfer stations and the definition of transfer stations to prevent inappropriate siting of the transfer station and abusive practices; and

7. Alterations or clarifications of the regulations concerning receipt of waste from conditionally exempt small quantity generators to prevent threats caused by amassing such waste from several generators in an inappropriate manner.

A technical advisory committee will advise the Department of Environmental Quality on what amended regulatory text to recommend to the board as proposed regulations. This panel will advise the department on less intrusive and less burdensome alternatives, where such exist, and during the public participation process, the general public will also be asked to suggest less intrusive and burdensome alternatives. The vast majority of changes to be considered will be the direct result of incorporation of federal regulatory text into Commonwealth regulations, and consistency with federal regulations is required by the Act and necessary for authorization of the Commonwealth's program by USEPA. Many of the changes to federal regulations that would be incorporated are themselves a reduction in intrusion and burden on the regulated community from prior federal requirement currently incorporated into the Commonwealth regulations. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1402 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until June 1, 1999.

**Contact:** Robert G. Wickline, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 698-4213, FAX (804) 698-4327 or (804) 698-4021/TTY

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-127; Filed March 10, 1999, 10:26 a.m.

## TITLE 18. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING

### **BOARD OF MEDICINE**

### Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-20-10 et** 

seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Medicine, Osteopathy, Podiatry, Chiropractic, and Physician Acupuncture. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-130; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-31-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Physical Therapy.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-131; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-40-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Respiratory Care Practitioners.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-132; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:47 a.m.

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-50-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Physician Assistants.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-133; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-80-10 et seq.** Regulations for Licensure of Occupational Therapists. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-134; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-101-10** et seq. Regulations Governing the Licensure of

Volume 15, Issue 16

## Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

**Radiologic Technologists and Radiologic Technologists-Limited.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-135; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

### **Notice of Intended Regulatory Action**

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-110-10** et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Licensed Acupuncturists. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-136; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

### **BOARD OF NURSING**

### Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Nursing intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 90-20-10 et seq. Regulations of the Board of Nursing.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for nurses and nurse aides regulated by the Board of Nursing in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9909 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-137; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:47 a.m.

### **BOARD OF PHARMACY**

### **Notice of Intended Regulatory Action**

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Pharmacy intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 110-20-10 et seq. Virginia Board of Pharmacy Regulations.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners and facilities regulated by the Board of Pharmacy in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Elizabeth Scott Russell, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9911 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-139; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

### Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Pharmacy intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 110-30-10** et seq. Regulations for Practitioners of the Healing Arts to Sell Controlled Substances. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in renewal fees for physicians licensed to sell drugs by the Board of Pharmacy in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Elizabeth Scott Russell, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9911 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-138; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

## BOARD OF LICENSED PROFESSIONAL COUNSELORS, MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPISTS AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT PROFESSIONALS

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 115-20-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Licensed Professional Counseling.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-140; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 115-30-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Certification of Substance Abuse Counselors.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-141; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:47 a.m.

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 115-40-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Certification of Rehabilitation Providers.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-142; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

### Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 115-50-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Marriage and Family Therapists.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-143; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

Volume 15, Issue 16

## Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

## BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGY

## Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Psychology intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 125-20-10** et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Psychology. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Psychology, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-144; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

### **BOARD OF VETERINARY MEDICINE**

### **Notice of Intended Regulatory Action**

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Veterinary Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 150-20-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Veterinary Medicine.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

**Contact:** Elizabeth A. Carter, Ph.D., Executive Director, Board of Veterinary Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9915 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-145; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

## **TITLE 23. TAXATION**

## DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

#### **Notice of Intended Regulatory Action**

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Taxation intends to consider amending regulations entitled: 23 VAC 10-110-10 et seq. Individual Income Tax: Qualified Equity and Subordinated Debt Investments Tax Credit. The purpose of the proposed action is to prescribe procedures for claiming the Qualified Equity and Subordinated Debt Investments Tax Credit Debt Investments Tax Credit and the process for the allocation of tax credits among taxpayers when requests for the credit exceed \$5 million in a calendar year. The result of this action will replace emergency regulations with permanent regulations. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 58.1-203 and 58.1-339.4 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999, to David T. Mason, Department of Taxation, Office of Tax Policy, P.O. Box 1880, Richmond, VA 23220-1880, or e-mail dmason@tax.state.va.us.

**Contact:** Michael M. Melson, Executive Assistant for Tax Policy, Department of Taxation, Office of Tax Policy, P.O. Box 1880, Richmond, VA 23220-1880, telephone (804) 367-8010 or FAX (804) 367-0045.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-146; Filed March 24, 1999, 9:39 a.m.

## **FINAL REGULATIONS**

For information concerning Final Regulations, see Information Page.

Symbol Key

Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. *Italic type* indicates new text. Language which has been stricken indicates text to be deleted. [Bracketed language] indicates a change from the proposed text of the regulation.

## TITLE 9. ENVIRONMENT

## STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The State Water Control Board is claiming an exemption from the Administrative Process Act for the following regulatory action. Section 9-6.14:4.1 C 12 of the Code of Virginia excludes from Article 2 of the Administrative Process Act general permits issued by the State Water Control Board pursuant to the State Water Control Law (§ 62.1-44.2 et seq.), Chapter 24 (§ 62.1-242 et seq.), and Chapter 25 (§ 62.1-254 et seq.) of Title 62.1 of the Code of Virginia if the board proceeds under the following conditions: (i) provides a Notice of Intended Regulatory Action (NOIRA) in conformance with the provisions of § 9-6.14:7.1 B; (ii) forms a technical advisory committee composed of relevant stakeholders, including potentially affected citizens groups, to assist in the development of the general permit; (iii) provides notice and receives oral and written comment as provided in § 9-6.14:7.1 F; and (iv) conducts at least one public hearing on the proposed general permit. The State Water Control Board will receive, consider and respond to petitions by any interested person at any time with respect to reconsideration or revision.

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 9 VAC 25-190-10 et seq. Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (VPDES) General Permit Regulation for Nonmetallic Mineral Mining (amending 9 VAC 25-190-10, 9 VAC 25-190-20, 9 VAC 25-190-50, 9 VAC 25-190-60, and 9 VAC 25-190-70; repealing 9 VAC 25-190-30 and 9 VAC 25-190-40).

Statutory Authority: § 62.1-44.15(10) of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: June 30, 1999.

### Summary:

The State Water Control Board adopted amendments to this general permit regulation in order to continue authorization of the discharge of wastewater and storm water from nonmetallic mineral mining facilities. This regulatory action reissues the general permit for an additional five years beyond the current expiration date of June 30, 1999. Owners covered under the expiring general permit who wish to continue to discharge under a general permit must register for coverage under the new general permit.

The general permit regulation, as amended, sets forth guidelines for the permitting of discharges from nonmetallic mineral mining operations. The general permit covers storm water discharges from all nonmetallic mineral mining activities in Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Major Group 14, and discharges of storm water and process wastewater from facilities classified under SIC Codes 1411, 1422, 1423. 1429. 1442, 1455, 1459 (except bentonite and magnesite mining) and 1499 (except gypsum, graphite, asbestos, diatomite, jade, tripoli and asphaltic mineral mining). The general permit reissuance consists of limitations and/or quarterly monitoring requirements on discharges of commingled storm water, mine pit dewatering and process wastewater to surface waters. There are also yearly monitoring requirements on discharges of storm waters that do not combine with other wastewaters. The requirements for storm water pollution prevention through storm water management and development of a storm water pollution prevention plan are carried over with some modifications. Minimum information requirements for all requests for coverage under the general permit are included in the regulation.

Substantial changes to the regulation amendment since it was last published are (i) a revised definition of "industrial activity" to include all SIC Major Group 14 mining activities and a reworded narrative of the purpose at 9 VAC 25-190-20 in order to allow for storm water only coverage for all Major Group 14 facilities: (ii) added language addressing filing of new registration statements by those presently covered under the nonmetallic mineral mining general permit; (iii) elimination of the second paragraph of the permit cover page; (iv) reworded Permit Part II E storm water pollution prevention plan deadline language; and (v) added storm water visual examination language in the Permit Part II H 3 d that allows identical outfalls to be sampled by representative outfalls and that allows sampling waivers. Several minor changes have been made for clarification.

<u>Summary of Public Comments and Agency's Response:</u> A summary of comments made by the public and the agency's response may be obtained from the promulgating agency or viewed at the office of the Registrar of Regulations.

<u>Agency Contact:</u> Michael B. Gregory, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4065.

### 9 VAC 25-190-10. Definitions.

The words and terms used in this chapter shall have the meanings defined in the State Water Control Law (§ 62.1-44.2 et seq. of the Code of Virginia), and 9 VAG 25-30-10 ( the Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (VPDES) Permit Regulation (9 VAC 25-31-10 et seq.) unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, except that. Additionally, for the purposes of this chapter:

"Co-located facility" means an industrial activity other than mineral mining operating on a site where the primary

industrial activity is mineral mining. Such an activity must have wastewater characteristics similar to those of the mineral mine and be located within the permitted mining area. The term refers to activities that are commonly found at mining sites such as manufacturing of ready-mix concrete (SIC Code 3273), concrete block and pipe (SIC Codes 3271 and 3272), and asphalt paving materials (SIC Code 2951). It does not include asphalt emulsion manufacturing or any other activity specifically excluded from this permit.

"Department" means the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.

*"Director"* means the Director of the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality, or his designee an authorized representative.

"Industrial activity" means the [ facilities ] where the primary purpose is [ classified ] as [ under Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) ] Code [ Codes 1411, 1422, 1423, 1429, 1442, 1446, 1455, 1459, and 1499 (Office of Management and Budget (OMB) SIC Manual, 1987) ]- [ activity associated with mineral mining facilities generally identified by SIC Major Group 14] including active or inactive mining operations that discharge storm water that has come into contact with any overburden, raw material, intermediate products, finished products, by-products or waste products located on the site of such operations. (Inactive mining operations are mining sites that are not being actively mined. but which have an identifiable owner/operator; inactive mining sites do not include sites where mining claims are being maintained prior to disturbances associated with the extraction, benefication, or processing of mined materials, nor sites where minimal activities are undertaken for the sole purpose of maintaining a mining claim.) Industrial activity also includes facilities classified under other SIC codes that may be colocated within the mineral mine permit area, unless they are expressly excluded by this general permit.

"Permittee" means the owner of a nonmetallic mineral mine covered under this general permit.

"Process wastewater" means water used in the process of washing stone, noncontact cooling water, [ wastewater from vehicle/equipment washing activities ] and miscellaneous plant cleanup wastewaters.

"Run-off coefficient" means the fraction of total rainfall that will appear at the conveyance as run-off.

[ "SIC" means the Standard Industrial Classification Code or Industrial Grouping from the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Standard Industrial Classification Manual, 1987 Edition.]

"Significant materials" includes, but is not limited to, raw materials; fuels; materials such as solvents, detergents, and plastic pellets; finished materials such as metallic products; raw materials used in food processing or production; hazardous substances designated under Section 101(14) of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA) (42 USC § 9601 et seq.); any chemical the owner is required to report pursuant to

Section 313 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) Section 313 (42 USC § 11001 et seq.); fertilizers; pesticides; and waste products such as ashes, slag and sludge (including pond sediments) that have the potential to be released with storm water discharges.

"Storm water" means storm water run-off, snow melt run-off, and surface run-off and drainage.

"Storm water discharge associated with industrial activity" means the discharge from any conveyance which is used for collecting and conveying storm water and which is directly related to manufacturing, processing or raw materials storage areas at an industrial plant. The term does not include discharges from facilities or activities excluded from the VPDES program under 9 VAC 25-30-10 9 VAC 25-31-10 et seq. For the categories of industries identified in the "industrial activity" definition, the term includes, but is not limited to, storm water discharges from industrial plant yards; immediate access roads and rail lines used or traveled by carriers of raw materials, manufactured products, waste material, or by-products used or created by the mineral mine; material handling sites; refuse sites; sites used for the application or disposal of process wastewaters; sites used for the storage and maintenance of material handling equipment; sites used for residual treatment, storage, or disposal; shipping and receiving areas; manufacturing buildings; storage area areas (including tank farms) for raw materials, and intermediate and finished products; and areas where industrial activity has taken place in the past and significant materials remain and are exposed to storm water. For the purposes of this paragraph, material handling activities include the storage, loading and unloading, transportation, or conveyance of any raw material, intermediate product, finished product, by-product or waste product. The term excludes areas located on plant lands separate from the plant's industrial activities, such as office buildings and accompanying parking lots as long as the drainage from the excluded areas is not mixed with storm water drained from the above described areas.

# 9 VAC 25-190-20. Purpose; *delegation of authority; effective date of permit.*

A. [ The purpose of this regulation is to establish General Permit Number VAG84 to govern wastewater discharge from nonmetallic mineral mines as follows:

1. For active and inactive nonmetallic mineral mining facilities in SIC Major Group 14 the General Permit covers discharges composed entirely of storm water associated with industrial activity, except as specified in subdivision 2 of this subsection.

2. ] This general permit [ regulation governs authorizes ] the discharge of mine pit dewatering [ $_{\tau}$  and ] process wastewater [ and as well as ] storm water associated with industrial activity from active and inactive mineral mines classified [ as under ] Standard Industrial Classification Codes 1411, 1422, 1423, 1429, 1442, 1446, 1455, 1459 [ excluding bentonite and magnesite mines ], and 1499 [ $_{\tau}$  except as specified in this section.

The following activities shall not have coverage under this general permit: bentonite, magnesite, excluding 1 gypsum, graphite, asbestos, [ diatonite diatomite ], jade, tripoli or asphaltic mineral [ mining operations, coal mines.]

[ 3. Coal ] mining, metal mining, mineral mines which have asphalt operations located within the mineral mine permit area, and oil and gas extraction [ are not covered by this general permit ].

### 9 VAC 25-190-30. Delegation of authority.

B. The director, or his designee an authorized representative, may perform any act of the board provided under this chapter, except as limited by § 62.1-44.14 of the Code of Virginia.

### 9 VAC 25-190-40. Effective date of the permit.

C. This general permit will become effective on June 30, 1994. This general permit 1999, and will expire five years from after [ June 30, 1994 1999 the effective date ]. For any covered owner, this general permit is effective as to any covered owner upon compliance with all the provisions of 9 VAC 25-190-50 and the receipt of this general permit.

### 9 VAC 25-190-50. Authorization to discharge.

A. Any owner governed by this general permit is authorized by this to discharge to surface waters of the Commonwealth of Virginia provided that the owner files and receives acceptance by the director board of the registration statement of 9 VAC 25-190-60, files the required permit fee, complies with the effluent limitations and other requirements of 9 VAC 25-190-70, and provided that:

1. The owner shall not have been required to obtain an individual permit as may be required in the VPDES permit regulation (9 VAC 25-31-10 et seq.);

2. The owner shall not be authorized by this general permit to discharge to state waters where specifically named in other board regulations or policies which prohibit such discharges; and

3. The owner shall obtain the notification from the aoverning body of the county, city or town required by 8 62.1-44.15:3 of the Code of Virginia, 4. The owner shall have a mineral mining permit for the operation to be covered by this general permit which has been approved by the Virginia Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Division of Mineral Mining (or associated waivered program, locality or state agency) under provisions and requirements of Title 45.1 of the Code of Virginia. Mineral mines owned and operated by governmental bodies not subject to the provisions and requirements of Title 45.1 of the Code of Virginia are exempt from this requirement.; and

4. The owner shall implement pollution control measures necessary to comply with the conditions and limitations of this general permit including, but not limited to, the installation, operation and maintenance of sediment control structures.

B. The director board shall deny coverage under this general permit to any owner whose with discharge to state waters may adversely affect a threatened or endangered species listed or proposed to be listed under the Virginia Water Quality Standards Regulation, 9 VAC 25-310-10 et seq., or Section 4 of the Endangered Species Act or if the discharge is likely to adversely affect its critical habitat or storm water discharge-related activities which the board determines cause, may reasonably be expected to cause, or may be contributing to a violation of water quality standards, including discharges or discharge-related activities that are likely to adversely affect aquatic life.

C. Receipt of this general permit does not relieve any owner of the responsibility to comply with any other federal, state or local statute, ordinance or regulation.

### 9 VAC 25-190-60. Registration statement and notice of termination.

A. The owner shall file a complete general VPDES permit registration statement, which will serve as a notice of intent for coverage under the general permit for nonmetallic mineral mining. Any owner proposing a new discharge shall file the registration statement at least 60 30 days prior to the date planned for commencing construction or operation of the mineral mine. Any owner of an existing mineral mine covered by an individual VPDES permit who is proposing to be covered by this general permit shall file the registration statement at least 120 180 days prior to the expiration date of the individual VPDES permit. [ Any owner of an existing mineral mine covered by the general VPDES permit for nonmetallic mineral mining that became effective on June 30, 1994, who wishes to remain covered by this general permit shall file a new registration statement by June 1, 1999, in order to avoid a lapse in coverage. ] Any owner of an existing mineral mine not currently covered by a VPDES permit who is proposing to be covered by this general permit shall file the registration statement within 30 days of the effective date of the general permit. The required registration statement shall be in the following form contain the following information:

#### VIRGINIA POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM GENERAL PERMIT REGISTRATION STATEMENT

FOR NONMETALLIC MINERAL MINING

1. Name of owner:

(please print or type)

2. Mailing address: \_\_\_\_\_

- 3. Telephone number:
- 4. Fax number: \_\_\_\_\_
- 5. Project name:

6. Description of mining activity (mineral mined):

7. Primary standard industrial classification (SIC) code:

Secondary SIC codes: \_\_\_\_\_

8. County: \_\_\_

9. Location:

10. Name of streams receiving discharges (e.g., Clear Creek or unnamed tributary to Clear Creek)

10. Discharge Information:

OUTFALL NO.	OUTFALL TYPE	SOURCE OF DISCHARGE [*]	RECEIVING STREAM	LATITUDE/ LONGITUDE

[ \*Include indication of any outfalls that receive discharges of process wastewater from vehicle/equipment washing facilities or activities.]

Attach additional sheets if necessary.

11. Does this mine currently have a VPDES permit? Yes \_\_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_\_

(If yes, give permit number).

12. Description of wastewater treatment or reuse/recycle systems, or both:

13. List any chemicals added to water that could be discharged: \_\_\_\_\_

14. Indicate any co-located facilities:

15. Is this facility a hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facility?

Yes \_\_\_\_\_ No \_\_\_\_\_

**14.** *16.* Attach to this registration statement a schematic drawing showing the sources of water used on the property, the industrial operations contributing  $to_{\overline{\tau}}$  or using water, and the conceptual design of the methods of treatment and disposal of wastewater and solids.

15. 17. Attach to this registration statement an aerial photo or scale map which clearly shows the property boundaries, plant site, *drainage areas associated with each outfall*,

locations of all mine pit dewatering, *existing, significant* sources of materials exposed to precipitation, storm water or process wastewater discharges outfalls and the receiving streams.

16. The owner of any proposed discharge into or adjacent to state waters or the owner of any discharge into or adjacent to state waters which has not previously been covered by a valid VPDES permit must attach to this registration statement notification from the governing body of the county, city or town in which the discharge is to take place that the location and operation of the discharging facility is consistent with all ordinances adopted pursuant to Chapter 11 (§ 15.1-427 et seq.) of Title 15.1 of the Code of Virginia.

47. 18. Attach to this registration statement evidence that the operation to be covered by this general permit has a mining permit which has been approved by the Virginia Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Division of Mineral Mining (or associated waivered program) under the provisions and requirements of Title 45.1 of the Code of Virginia. Mineral mines owned and operated by governmental bodies not subject to the provisions and requirements of Title 45.1 of the Code of Virginia are exempt from this requirement.

Mining Permit No.:

Certification:

"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is to the best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations."

[ Signatures Signature ]: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

[ Signatures: Date: ]

Name of [persons person] signing above:

(printed or typed)

(printed or typed)

[ Titles Title ]:

Basin

For department use only:

Accepted/Not accepted by: \_\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_

Stream Class Section

Special Standards

Required attachments:

1. Evidence of approved mining permit

#### 2. Local government ordinance form

- 2. Water use schematic drawing
- 4. 3. Aerial photo or map

B. Coverage under this general permit may be terminated by the permittee by filing a completed notice of termination. The notice of termination shall be filed in situations where all discharges associated with industrial activity authorized by this general permit are eliminated, when the mineral mining permit approved by the Division of Mineral Mining (or associated waivered program) expires following mine close out and final bond release or where all discharges associated with industrial activity have been covered by an individual VPDES permit. The required notice of termination shall be in the following form:

## VIRGINIA POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM

**GENERAL PERMIT NOTICE OF TERMINATION FOR** NONMETALLIC MINERAL MINING

1. General VPDES nonmetallic mineral mining permit number:

2. Reason for termination request (Choose one):

a. The discharges associated with industrial activity have been eliminated:

b. The mineral mining permit approved by the Division of Mineral Mining (or associated waivered program) has expired following mine close out and final bond release:

c. All discharges associated with industrial activity have been covered by an individual VPDES permit:

3. On what date do you wish coverage under this general permit to terminate?

4. Facility owner Name: Mailing address: \_ City: \_\_\_\_ State: Zip code: \_\_\_ Phone: \_\_\_\_ 5. Facility location Name: Address: City:----State: Zip code:

6. Certification: "I certify under penalty of law that all discharges associated with industrial activity from the identified facility that are authorized by this general VPDES permit have been eliminated, that the mineral mining permit approved by the Virginia Department of Mines, Minerals, and Energy, Division of Mineral Mining (or associated waivered program) has expired following mine close out and final bond release, or that all discharges associated with industrial activity have been covered by an individual VPDES permit. I understand that by submitting this notice of termination, I am no longer authorized to discharge in accordance with the general permit, and that discharging pollutants to surface waters of the State is unlawful under the Clean Water Act and the State Water Control Law where the discharge is not authorized by a VPDES permit. I also understand that the submittal of this notice of termination does not release an owner from liability for any violations of this permit under the Clean Water Act or the State Water Control Law."

Signatures:

Data:

Date:

Name of persons signing above:

(printed or typed)

(printed or typed)

Titles:

#### 9 VAC 25-190-70. General permit.

Any owner whose registration statement is accepted by the director board will receive the following permit and shall comply with the requirements in it and be subject to all requirements of the VPDES permit regulation, 9 VAC 25-31-10 et sea.

General Permit No.: VAG84

Effective date: [ June 30, 1999 ]

Expiration date: [ June 30, 2004 ]

#### GENERAL PERMIT FOR NONMETALLIC MINERAL MINING AUTHORIZATION TO DISCHARGE UNDER THE VIRGINIA POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM AND THE VIRGINIA STATE WATER CONTROL LAW

In compliance with the provisions of the Clean Water Act. as amended, and pursuant to the State Water Control Law and regulations adopted pursuant to it, owners of nonmetallic mineral mines are authorized to discharge to surface waters within the boundaries of the Commonwealth of Virginia, except those where specifically named in board regulations or policies which prohibit such discharges.

[ This general permit covers all owners or operators of point source discharges associated with activities within Standard Industrial Classifications 1411, 1422, 1423, 1429, 1442, 1446, 1455, 1459, and 1499, except as specified below. Coverage includes active or inactive mineral mines that discharge: (i) storm water associated with industrial activity; (ii) mine pit dewatering; or (iii) process wastewaters. Covered operations shall have a mineral mining permit approved by the Virginia Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Division of Mineral Mining, (or associated waivered program, locality or state agency) under the provisions and requirements of Title 45.1 of the Code of Virginia. Mineral mines owned and operated by governmental bodies not subject to the provisions and requirements of Title 45.1 of

the Code of Virginia are exempt from this requirement. The following activities shall not have coverage under this general permit: *bentonite, magnesite, gypsum, graphite, asbestos, diatonite, jade, tripoli or asphaltic mineral mining operations,* coal mining, metal mining, mineral mines which have asphalt operations located within the mineral mine permit area, and oil and gas extraction.] The authorized discharge shall be in accordance with this cover page, Part I - Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Requirements, Part II - Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans, Part III - Monitoring and Reporting, and Part IV - Management Requirements Management, and Part III - Conditions Applicable to All VPDES Permits, as set forth [here herein].

### Part I. EFFLUENT LIMITATIONS AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS.

#### A. Effluent limitations and monitoring requirements.

1. During the period beginning on the permit's effective date with the permittee's coverage under this general permit and lasting until the permit's expiration date, the permittee is authorized to discharge process wastewater, effluent from mine pit dewatering and commingled storm water associated with industrial activity. Samples taken in compliance with the monitoring requirements specified below shall be taken at the following locations: at the point of discharge, prior to entering state waters from outfall(s).

Such discharges shall be limited and monitored by the permittee as specified below
--

EFFLUENT CHARACTERISTICS	DISCHARGE LIMITATIONS			MONITORING REQUIREMENTS	
	Average	Minimum	Maximum	Frequency	Sample Type
Flow (MGD)	NL	NL NA	NA NL	1/3 Months	Estimate
Total Suspended Solids (mg/l)	30 <del>mg/l</del>	<del>60 mg/l</del> NA	NA 60	1/3 Months	Grab
pH (standard units)	NA	<del>9.0</del> 6.0*	<del>6.0</del> 9.0*	1/3 Months	Grab
Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (mg/l)**	NA	NA	NL	1/3 Months	Grab

### NL = No Limitation, monitoring required

NA = Not applicable

2. Use of any additive chemical will require the discharger to obtain prior written approval from the director. 3. There shall be no discharge of floating solids or visible foam in other than trace amounts.

\* Where the Water Quality Standards (9 VAC 25-260-10 et seq.) establish alternate standards for pH, those standards shall be the maximum and minimum effluent limitations pH effluent limits may be adjusted within the 6 to 9 S.U. range.

\*\* Monitoring for Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons is only required for outfalls that receive discharges of process wastewater from vehicle/equipment washing facilities or activities.

4. 3. During the period beginning on the permit's effective date with the permittee's coverage under the general permit and lasting until the permit's expiration date, the permittee is authorized to discharge storm water associated with industrial activity which does not combine with other wastewaters prior to discharge. Samples taken in compliance with the monitoring requirements specified below shall be taken at the following locations: at the point of discharge, prior to entering state waters from outfall(s).

Such discharges shall be limited and monitored by the permittee as specified below:

EFFLUENT CHARACTERISTICS	DISCHARGE LIMITATIONS			MONITORING REQUIREMENTS		
	Average	Minimum	Maximum	Frequency	Sample Type	
Flow (MGD)	NA	NL NA	NA NL	1/Year	Estimate*	
Total Suspended Solids (mg/l)	NA	NL NA	NA NL	1/Year	Grab**	
pH (standard units)	NA	NL	NL	1/Year	Grab**	
Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (mg/l)	NA	NA	NL	1/Year	Grab	

NL = No Limitation, monitoring required

NA = Not applicable

5. 4. All samples taken to meet the monitoring requirements specified above in A 3 shall be collected from the discharge resulting from a storm event that is greater than 0.1 inches in magnitude and that occurs at least 72 hours from the previously measurable (greater than 0.1 inch rainfall) storm event. The grab sample shall be taken during the first 30 minutes of the discharge. If the collection of a grab sample during the first 30 minutes is impracticable, a grab sample can

be taken during the first hour of the discharge, and the permittee shall submit with the monitoring report a description of why a grab sample during the first 30 minutes was impracticable.

\* Estimate of the total volume of the discharge during the storm event.

\*\* The grab sample shall be taken within the first three hours of the discharge.

### B. Special conditions.

1. Vehicles and equipment utilized during the industrial activity on a site must be operated and maintained in such a manner as to prevent the potential or actual point source pollution of the surface or groundwaters of the state. Fuels, lubricants, coolants, and hydraulic fluids, or any other petroleum products, shall not be disposed of by discharging on the ground or into surface waters. Spent fluids shall be disposed of in a manner so as not to enter the surface or groundwaters of the state and in accordance with the applicable state and federal disposal regulations. Any spilled fluids shall be cleaned up to the maximum extent practicable and disposed of in a manner so as not to allow their entry into the surface or groundwaters of the state.

2. No sewage shall be discharged from this mineral mining activity except under the provisions of another VPDES permit specifically issued therefore for that purpose.

3. There shall be no chemicals added to the discharge, other than those listed on the owner's approved registration statement, unless prior approval is granted by the director.

4. The permittee shall submit a notice of termination in situations where all discharges associated with industrial activity authorized by this general permit are eliminated, when the mineral mining permit approved by the Virginia Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Division of Mineral Mining (or associated waivered program) expires following mine close out and final bond release or where all discharges associated with industrial activity have been covered by an individual VPDES permit. The terms and conditions of this permit shall remain in effect until a completed notice of termination is submitted and approved by the director. The notice of termination shall be signed in accordance with Part III G.

5. 4. The permittee shall submit a new registration statement if the [mineral] mining permit [approved by the Division of Mineral Mining (or associated waivered program)] is modified or reissued in any way that would affect the outfall location or the characteristics of a discharge covered by this general permit. Government owned and operated mines without mining permits shall submit the registration statement whenever outfall location or characteristics are altered. The new registration statement shall be filed within 30 days of the outfall relocation or change in the characteristics of the discharge.

5. The permittee shall notify the department as soon as they know or have reason to believe:

a. That any activity has occurred or will occur which would result in the discharge, on a routine or frequent basis, of any toxic pollutant which is not limited in this permit, if that discharge will exceed the highest of the following notification levels:

(1) One hundred micrograms per liter (100 μg/l);

(2) Two hundred micrograms per liter (200  $\mu$ g/l) for acrolein and acrylonitrile; five hundred micrograms per liter (500  $\mu$ g/l) for 2,4-dinitrophenol and for 2-methyl-4,6-dinitrophenol; and one milligram per liter (1 mg/l) for antimony;

(3) Five times the maximum concentration value reported for that pollutant in the permit application; or

(4) The level established by the board.

b. That any activity has occurred or will occur which would result in any discharge, on a nonroutine or infrequent basis, of a toxic pollutant which is not limited in this permit, if that discharge will exceed the highest of the following notification levels:

(1) Five hundred micrograms per liter (500 μg/l);

(2) One milligram per liter (1 mg/l) for antimony;

(3) Ten times the maximum concentration value reported for that pollutant in the permit application; or

(4) The level established by the board.

6. This permit shall be modified, or alternatively revoked and reissued, to comply with any applicable effluent standard or limitation issued or approved under Sections 301(b) (2) (C), (D), and (E), 304 (b) (2) (3) (4), and or prohibition for a pollutant which is promulgated or approved under § 307 (a) (2) of the federal Clean Water Act, if the effluent standard or limitation so issued or approved:

a. Contains different conditions or is otherwise more stringent than any effluent limitation Is more stringent than any effluent limitation on the pollutant already in the permit; or

b. Controls any pollutant not limited in the permit. The permit as modified or reissued under this paragraph shall also contain any other requirements of the Clean Water Act then applicable.

7. Except as expressly authorized by this permit, no product, materials, industrial wastes, or other wastes resulting from the purchase, sale, mining, extraction, transport, preparation, or storage of raw or intermediate

materials, final product, by-product or wastes, shall be handled, disposed of, or stored so as to permit a discharge of such product, materials, industrial wastes, or other wastes to state waters.

8. There shall be no discharge of process wastewater pollutants from co-located asphalt [ paving materials ] operations. For the purposes of this special condition, process wastewater pollutants are any pollutants present in water used in asphalt [ product paving materials ] manufacturing which [ comes come ] into direct contact with any raw materials, intermediate product, by-product or product related to the asphalt [ product paving materials ] manufacturing process.

### Part II. STORM WATER MANAGEMENT.

A. Recording of results.

1. Additional information. In addition to any reporting requirements of Part III, for each measurement or sample taken pursuant to the storm event monitoring requirements of this permit, the permittee shall record and report with the discharge monitoring report the following information:

4. *a.* The date and duration (in hours) of the storm events sampled;

2. *b.* The rainfall measurements or estimates (in inches) of the storm event which generated the sampled discharge; and

3. *c.* The duration between the storm event sampled and the end of the previous measurable (greater than 0.1 inch rainfall) storm event.

2. Additional reporting. In addition to filing copies of discharge monitoring reports in accordance with Part III, permittees with at least one storm water discharge associated with industrial activity through a large or medium municipal separate storm sewer system (systems serving a population of 100,000 or more) or a municipal system designated by the [ director board ] must submit signed copies of discharge monitoring reports to the operator of the municipal separate storm sewer system at the same time.

B. Representative discharge. When a facility has two or more exclusively storm water outfalls that, based on a consideration of industrial activity, significant materials, and management practices and activities within the area drained by the outfall, the permittee reasonably believes discharge substantially identical effluents, the permittee may test the effluent of one of such outfalls and include with the discharge monitoring report an explanation that the quantitative data also applies to the substantially identical outfalls provided that the permittee includes a description of the location of the outfalls and explains in detail why the outfalls are expected to discharge substantially identical effluents. In addition, for each exclusively storm water outfall that the permittee believes is representative, an estimate of the size of the drainage area (in square feet) and an estimate of the run-off coefficient of the drainage area (e.g., low (under 40%), medium (40% to 65%) or high (above 65%)) shall be provided.

C. Sampling waiver.

1. Adverse conditions. When a permittee is unable to collect samples for the storm event monitoring requirements within a specified sampling period due to adverse climatic conditions, the permittee must submit with the discharge monitoring report a description of why samples could not be collected, including available documentation of the event shall collect a substitute sample from a separate qualifying event in the next period and submit these data along with the data for the routine sampling in that period. Adverse weather conditions which that may prohibit the collection of samples include weather conditions that create dangerous conditions for personnel (such as local flooding, high winds, hurricane, tornadoes, electrical storms, etc.) or otherwise make the collection of a sample impracticable (drought, extended frozen conditions, etc.). Permittees are precluded from exercising this waiver more than once for each outfall during the permit term.

2. Inactive and unstaffed facilities. When a permittee is unable to conduct the storm water sampling required at an inactive and unstaffed facility, the permittee may exercise a waiver of the monitoring requirements as long as the facility remains inactive and unstaffed. The permittee must submit to the [ director department ], in lieu of monitoring data, a certification statement on the discharge monitoring report stating that the facility is inactive and unstaffed so that collecting a sample during a qualifying event is not possible.

D. Storm water pollution prevention plans. A storm water pollution prevention plan shall be developed for each facility covered by this permit. Storm water pollution prevention plans shall be prepared in accordance with good engineering practices. The plan shall identify potential sources of pollution which may reasonably be expected to affect the quality of storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from the facility. In addition, the plan shall describe and ensure the implementation of practices which are to be used to reduce the pollutants in storm water discharges associated with industrial activity at the facility and to assure compliance with the terms and conditions of this permit. Facilities must implement the provisions of the storm water pollution prevention plan required under this part as a condition of this permit.

The storm water pollution prevention plan requirements of this general permit may be fulfilled by incorporating by reference other plans or documents such as an erosion and sediment control plan, a mine drainage plan as required by the Virginia Division of Mineral Mining, a spill prevention control and countermeasure (SPCC) plan developed for the facility under § 311 of the federal Clean Water Act or best management practices (BMP) programs otherwise required for the facility provided that the incorporated plan meets or exceeds the plan requirements of Part II H. If an erosion and

sediment control plan is being incorporated by reference, it shall have been approved by the locality in which the activity is to occur or by another appropriate plan-approving authority authorized under the Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control Regulations, 4 VAC 50-30-10 et seq. All plans incorporated by reference into the storm water pollution prevention plan become enforceable under this permit.

E. Deadlines for plan preparation and compliance.

1. [For a facilities previously covered by this general permit operating under storm water pollution prevention plans in need of updating to meet any new requirements in this reissuance, or for any other storm water discharge associated with industrial activity that is existing on or before the effective date of this permit, the storm water pollution prevention plan shall:

a. Be prepared within 180 days after the date of coverage under this permit; and

b. Provide for implementation and compliance with the terms of the plan within 365 days after the date of coverage under this permit. Existing facilities and new facilities that begin operation on or before June 30, 1999, shall prepare and implement a plan incorporating the storm water pollution prevention plan requirements of this permit, if not included in an existing plan, as expeditiously as practicable, but not later than June 1, 2000. Existing storm water pollution prevention plans being implemented as of June 30, 1999, shall continue to be implemented until a new plan is developed and implemented. ]

2. [The plan for any facility where industrial activity commences on or after the date of coverage under this permit, and except as provided elsewhere in this permit, shall be prepared and provide for compliance with the terms of the plan and this permit on or before the date of submission of a registration statement to be covered under this permit. Facilities that begin operation after June 30, 1999, shall prepare and implement a plan incorporating the requirements of this permit prior to submitting the registration statement.]

3. Upon a showing of good cause, the director may establish a later date in writing for preparing and compliance with a plan for a storm water discharge associated with industrial activity [<u>that submits a registration statement in accordance with the registration requirements</u>].

F. Signature and plan review.

1. The plan shall be signed in accordance with Part III  $\bigcirc$  *K* (signatory requirements), and be retained on-site at the facility covered by this permit in accordance with Part III  $\bigcirc$  *B* (retention of records) of this permit. When there are no on-site buildings or offices in which to store the plan, it shall be kept at the nearest company office.

2. The permittee shall make plans the storm water pollution prevention plan, annual site compliance

*inspection report, or other information* available to the department upon request.

3. The director, or an authorized representative, may notify the permittee at any time that the plan does not meet one or more of the minimum requirements of this part. Such notification shall identify those provisions of the permit which are not being met by the plan, and identify which provisions of the plan require modifications in order to meet the minimum requirements of this part. Within <del>30</del> 60 days of such notification from the director, or as otherwise provided by the director, or an authorized representative, the permittee shall make the required changes to the plan and shall submit to the department a written certification that the requested changes have been made.

G. Keeping plans current. The permittee shall amend the plan whenever there is a change in design, construction, operation, or maintenance, which has a significant effect on the potential for the discharge of pollutants to surface waters of the state or if the storm water pollution prevention plan proves to be ineffective in eliminating or significantly minimizing pollutants from sources identified under Part II H 2 (description of potential pollutant sources) of this permit, or in otherwise achieving the general objectives of controlling pollutants in storm water discharges associated with industrial activity. New owners shall review the existing plan and make appropriate changes. Amendments to the plan may be reviewed by the department in the same manner as described in Part II F.

H. Contents of plan. The plan shall include, at a minimum, the following items:

1. Pollution prevention team. Each plan shall identify a specific individual or individuals within the facility organization as members of a storm water pollution prevention team that are responsible for developing the storm water pollution prevention plan and assisting the facility or plant manager in its implementation, maintenance, and revision. The plan shall clearly identify the responsibilities of each team member. The activities and responsibilities of the team shall address all aspects of the facility's storm water pollution prevention plan.

2. Description of potential pollutant sources. Each plan shall provide a description of potential sources which may reasonably be expected to add significant amounts of pollutants to storm water discharges or which may result in the discharge of pollutants during dry weather from separate storm sewers draining the facility. Each plan shall identify all activities and significant materials which may potentially be significant pollutant sources. Each plan shall include, at a minimum:

a. Drainage.

(1) A site map indicating an outline of the portions of the drainage area of each storm water outfall that are within the facility boundaries, each existing structural control measure to reduce pollutants in storm water run-off, surface water bodies, locations where significant materials are exposed to precipitation, locations where major spills or leaks identified under Part II H 2 c (spills and leaks) of this permit have occurred, and the locations of the following activities where such activities are exposed to precipitation: fueling stations, vehicle and equipment maintenance, vehicle and equipment and/or cleaning areas, loading/unloading areas, locations used for the treatment, storage or disposal of wastes and wastewaters, liquid storage tanks, processing areas and storage areas. The map must indicate all outfall locations. The types of discharges contained in the drainage areas of the outfalls must be indicated either on the map or in an attached narrative.

(2) For each area of the facility that generates storm water discharges associated with industrial activity with a reasonable potential for containing significant amounts of pollutants, a prediction of the direction of flow, and an identification of the types of pollutants which are likely to be present in storm water discharges associated with industrial activity. Factors to consider include the toxicity of the chemicals; quantity of chemicals used, produced or discharged; the likelihood of contact with storm water; and history of significant leaks or spills of toxic or hazardous pollutants. Flows with a significant potential for causing erosion shall be identified.

b. Inventory of exposed materials. An inventory of the types of materials handled at the site that potentially may be exposed to precipitation. Such inventory shall include a narrative description of significant materials that have been handled, treated, stored or disposed in a manner to allow exposure to storm water between the time of three years prior to the date of coverage under this general permit and the present: method and location of on-site storage or disposal; materials management practices employed to minimize contact of materials with storm water run-off between the time of three years prior to the date of coverage under this general permit and the present; the location and a description of existing structural and non-structural control measures to reduce pollutants in storm water run-off; and a description of any treatment the storm water receives.

c. Spills and leaks. A list of significant spills and significant leaks of toxic or hazardous pollutants that occurred at areas that are exposed to precipitation or that otherwise drain to a storm water conveyance at the facility after the date of three years prior to the date of coverage under this general permit. Such list shall be updated as appropriate during the term of the permit.

d. Sampling data. A summary of existing discharge sampling data describing pollutants in storm water

discharges from the facility, including a summary of sampling data collected during the term of this permit.

e. Risk identification and summary of potential pollutant sources. A narrative description of the potential pollutant sources from the following activities: loading and unloading operations; outdoor storage activities: outdoor manufacturing or processing activities; significant dust or particulate generating processes; and on-site waste disposal practices. The description shall specifically list any significant potential source of pollutants at the site and for each potential source, any pollutant or pollutant parameter (e.g., biochemical oxygen demand, etc.) of concern shall be identified.

3. Measures and controls. Each facility covered by this permit shall develop a description of storm water management controls appropriate for the facility, and implement such controls. The appropriateness and priorities of controls in a plan shall reflect identified potential sources of pollutants at the facility. The description of storm water management controls shall address the following minimum components, including a schedule for implementing such controls:

a. Good housekeeping. Good housekeeping requires the maintenance of areas which may contribute pollutants to storm waters water discharges in a clean, orderly manner. The plan shall describe procedures performed to minimize contact of materials with storm water run-off. Particular attention should be paid to areas where raw materials are stockpiled, material handling areas, storage areas, liquid storage tanks, and loading/unloading areas.

preventive Preventive maintenance. h А maintenance program shall involve timely inspection and maintenance of storm water management devices (e.g., cleaning oil/water separators, catch basins) as well as inspecting and testing facility equipment and systems to uncover conditions that could cause breakdowns or failures resulting in discharges of pollutants to surface waters, and ensuring appropriate maintenance of such equipment and systems. The maintenance program shall require periodic removal of debris from discharge diversions and conveyance systems. Permittees using settling basins to control their effluents must provide maintenance schedules for such basins in the pollution prevention plan.

c. Spill prevention and response procedures. Areas where potential spills which can contribute pollutants to storm water discharges can occur, and their accompanying drainage points shall be identified clearly in the storm water pollution prevention plan. Where appropriate, specifying material handling procedures, storage requirements, and use of equipment such as diversion valves in the plan should be considered. Procedures for cleaning up spills shall be identified in the plan and made available to the appropriate personnel. The necessary equipment to

implement a clean up should be available to personnel.

d. Inspections. In addition to or as part of the comprehensive site compliance evaluation required under Part II H 4 of this permit, [ Qualified facility personnel Facility personnel who are familiar with the mining activity, the best management practices and the storm water pollution prevention plan ] shall be identified to inspect material storage and handling areas, liquid storage tanks, hoppers or silos, vehicle and equipment maintenance areas, cleaning and fueling areas, material handling vehicles and designated equipment and processing areas of the facility at appropriate intervals specified in the plan; to inspect best management practices; and to conduct visual examinations of storm water associated with industrial activity. The inspection frequency shall be specified in the plan based upon a consideration of the level of industrial activity at the facility, but shall be a minimum of quarterly. [ Visual ] Inspections of best management practices shall include inspection of storm water discharge diversions, conveyance systems, sediment control and collection systems, containment structures, vegetation, serrated slopes, and benched slopes to determine their effectiveness, the integrity of control structures, if soil erosion has occurred, or if there is evidence of actual or potential discharge of contaminated storm water. Visual examinations of storm water discharges associated with industrial activity shall include examination of storm water samples representative of storm event discharges from the facility and observation of color, odor, clarity, floating solids, settled solids, suspended solids, foam, oil sheen, and other obvious indicators of storm water pollution. Site inspection, best management practices inspection and visual examination results must be documented and maintained on-site with the facility pollution prevention plan. Documentation for visual examinations of storm water shall include the examination date and time, examination personnel, outfall location, the nature of the discharge, visual quality of the storm water discharge and probable sources of any observed storm water contamination. [ Part II B regarding representative discharges and Part II C regarding sampling waivers shall apply to the taking of samples for visual examination except that (i) the documentation required by these sections shall be retained with the storm water pollution prevention plan visual examination records rather than submitted to the department, and (ii) substitute sampling for waivered sampling is not required if the proper documentation is maintained. ] A set of tracking or followup procedures shall be used to ensure that appropriate actions are taken in response to the inspections. Records of inspections shall be maintained.

e. Employee training. Employee training programs shall inform personnel responsible for implementing activities identified in the storm water pollution prevention plan or otherwise responsible for storm water management at all levels of responsibility of the components and goals of the storm water pollution prevention plan. Training should address topics such as spill response, good housekeeping and material management practices. A pollution prevention plan shall identify periodic dates for such training.

f. Recordkeeping and internal reporting procedures. A description of incidents such as spills, or other discharges, along with other information describing the quality and quantity of storm water discharges shall be included in the plan required under this part. Inspections and maintenance activities shall be documented and records of such activities shall be incorporated into the plan. *Ineffective best management practices must be recorded and the date of their corrective action noted.* 

g. Sediment and erosion control. The plan shall identify areas which, due to topography, activities, or other factors, have a high potential for significant soil erosion, and identify structural, vegetative, or stabilization measures to be used to limit erosion. *Permittees must indicate the location and design for proposed best management practices to be implemented prior to land disturbance activities. For sites already disturbed but without best management practices, the permittee must indicate the location and design of best management practices that will be implemented. The permittee is required to indicate plans for grading, contouring, stabilization, and establishment of vegetative cover for all disturbed areas, including road banks.* 

h. Management of run-off. The plan shall contain a narrative consideration of the appropriateness of traditional storm water management practices (practices other than those which control the generation or sources of pollutants) used to divert, infiltrate, reuse, or otherwise manage storm water runoff in a manner that reduces pollutants in storm water discharges from the site. The plan shall provide that measures that the permittee determines to be reasonable and appropriate shall be implemented and maintained. The potential of various sources at the facility to contribute pollutants to storm water discharges associated with industrial activity (see Part II H 2 (description of potential pollutant sources) of this permit) shall be considered when determining reasonable and appropriate measures. Appropriate measures may include: vegetative swales and practices, reuse of collected storm water (such as for a process or as an irrigation source), inlet controls (such as oil/water separators), snow management activities, infiltration and devices, wet detention/retention devices.

4. Comprehensive site compliance evaluation. [ Qualified personnel Facility personnel who are familiar with the mining activity, the best management practices and the storm water pollution prevention plan ] shall conduct site compliance evaluations at appropriate intervals specified in the plan, but in no case less than once a year for active sites. When annual compliance evaluations are shown in the plan to be impractical for inactive mining sites due to remote location and inaccessibility, site evaluations must be conducted at least once every three years. Such evaluations shall provide include the following:

a. Areas contributing to a storm water discharge associated with industrial activity, including material storage and handling areas; liquid storage tanks; hoppers or silos; vehicle and equipment maintenance, cleaning, and fueling areas; material handling vehicles; equipment and processing areas; and areas where aggregate is stockpiled outdoors, shall be visually inspected for evidence of, or the potential for, pollutants entering the drainage system. Measures to reduce pollutant loadings shall be evaluated to determine whether they are adequate and properly implemented in accordance with the terms of the permit or whether additional control measures are needed. Structural storm water management measures, sediment and erosion control measures, and other structural pollution prevention measures identified in the plan shall be observed to ensure that they are operating correctly. A visual inspection of equipment needed to implement the plan, such as spill response equipment, shall be made.

b. Based on the results of the inspection evaluation, the description of potential pollutant sources identified in the plan in accordance with Part II H 2 (description of potential pollutant sources) of this permit and pollution prevention measures and controls identified in the plan in accordance with Part II H 3 (measures and controls) of this permit shall be revised as appropriate within 14 days of such inspection and shall provide for implementation of any changes to the plan in a timely manner, but in no case more than 90 days after the inspection.

c. A report summarizing the scope of the inspection, personnel making the inspection, the dates of the inspection, major observations relating to the implementation of the storm water pollution prevention plan, and actions taken in accordance with Part II H 4 b of this permit shall be made and retained as part of the storm water pollution prevention plan as required in Part III  $\bigcirc B$  (records). The report shall identify any incidents of noncompliance. Where a report does not identify any incidents of noncompliance of noncompliance, the report shall contain a certification that the facility is in compliance with the storm water pollution prevention plan and this permit. The report shall be signed in accordance with Part III  $\bigcirc K$ 

(signatory requirements) of this permit and retained as required in Part III  $\subseteq B$ .

d. Where compliance evaluation schedules overlap with inspections required under Part II H 3 d (inspections), the compliance evaluation may be conducted in place of one such inspection.

5. Consistency with other plans. Storm water pollution prevention plans may reflect requirements for Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure (SPCC) plans developed for the facility under Section 311 of the Clean Water Act, Best Management Practices (BMP) Programs otherwise required by a VPDES permit for the facility or any other plans required by the board's regulations as long as such requirement is incorporated into the storm water pollution prevention plan.

5. Additional requirements for storm water discharges associated with industrial activity that discharge into or through municipal separate storm sewer systems serving a population of 100,000 or more.

a. In addition to the applicable requirements of this permit, facilities covered by this permit must comply with applicable requirements in municipal storm water management programs developed under VPDES permits issued for the discharge of the municipal separate storm sewer system that receives the facility's discharge, provided the permittee has been notified of such conditions.

b. Permittees that discharge storm water associated with industrial activity through a municipal separate storm sewer system serving a population of 100,000 or more, or a municipal system designated by the director, shall make plans available to the municipal operator of the system upon request.

Part III. MONITORING AND REPORTING.

A. Sampling and analysis methods.

1. Samples and measurements taken as required by this permit shall be representative of the volume and nature of the monitored activity.

2. Unless otherwise specified in this permit all sample preservation methods, maximum holding times and analysis methods for pollutants shall comply with requirements set forth in Guidelines Establishing Test Procedures for the Analysis of Pollutants promulgated at 40 CFR 136.

3. The sampling and analysis program to demonstrate compliance with the permit shall at a minimum, conform to Part I of this permit.

4. The permittee shall periodically calibrate and perform maintenance procedures on all monitoring and analytical instrumentation at intervals that will insure accuracy of measurements.

B. Recording of results. For each measurement or sample taken pursuant to the requirements of this permit, the permittee shall record the following information:

1. The date, exact place and time of sampling or measurements;

2. The persons who performed the sampling or measurements;

3. The dates analyses were performed;

4. The persons who performed each analysis;

5. The analytical techniques or methods used;

6. The results of such analyses and measurements.

C. Records retention. All records and information resulting from the monitoring activities required by this permit, including all records of analyses performed and calibration and maintenance of instrumentation and recording from continuous monitoring instrumentation, shall be made a part of the pollution prevention plan and shall be retained for three years from the date of the sample, measurement or report or until at least one year after coverage under this general permit terminates, whichever is later. This period of retention shall be extended automatically during the course of any unresolved litigation regarding the regulated activity or regarding control standards applicable to the permittee, or as requested by the director.

D. Additional monitoring by permittee. If the permittee monitors any pollutant at the locations designated here more frequently than required by this permit, using approved analytical methods as specified above, the results of such monitoring shall be included in the calculation and reporting of the values required in the monitoring report. Such increased frequency shall also be reported.

E. Water quality monitoring. The director may require every permittee to furnish such plans, specifications, or other pertinent information as may be necessary to determine the effect of the pollutants on the water quality or to ensure pollution of state waters does not occur or such information as may be necessary to accomplish the purposes of the Virginia State Water Control Law, Clean Water Act or the board's regulations.

The permittee shall obtain and report such information if requested by the director. Such information shall be subject to inspection by authorized state and federal representatives and shall be submitted with such frequency and in such detail as requested by the director.

F. Reporting requirements.

1. The permittee shall submit original monitoring reports of each quarter's performance to the department once per year, on or before January 10.

2. If, for any reason, the permittee does not comply with one or more limitations, standards, monitoring or management requirements specified in this permit, the permittee shall submit to the department with the monitoring report at least the following information: a. A description and cause of noncompliance;

b. The period of noncompliance, including exact dates and times or the anticipated time when the noncompliance will cease; and

c. Actions taken or to be taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence of the noncompliance.

Whenever such noncompliance may adversely affect state waters or may endanger public health, the permittee shall submit the above required information by oral report within 24 hours from the time the permittee becomes aware of the circumstances and by written report within five days. The director may waive the written report requirement on a case-by case basis if the oral report has been received within 24 hours and no adverse impact on state waters has been reported.

3. The permittee shall report any unpermitted, unusual or extraordinary discharge which enters or could be expected to enter state waters. The permittee shall provide information specified in Part III F 2 a c regarding each such discharge immediately, that is as quickly as possible upon discovery; however, in no case later than 24 hours. A written submission covering these points shall be provided within five days of the time the permittee becomes aware of the circumstances covered by this paragraph.

Unusual or extraordinary discharge would include but not be limited to (i) unplanned bypasses, (ii) upsets, (iii) spillage of materials resulting directly or indirectly from processing operations, (iv) breakdown of processing or accessory equipment, (v) failure of or taking out of service, sewage or industrial waste treatment facilities, auxiliary facilities, or (vi) flooding or other acts of nature.

If the department's regional office cannot be reached, the department maintains a 24-hour telephone service in Richmond (804) 527-5200 to which the report required above is to be made.

G. Signatory requirements. Any registration statement, report, or certification required by this permit shall be signed as follows:

1. Registration statement.

a. For a corporation: by a responsible corporate official. For purposes of this section, a responsible corporate official means (i) a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy -or decision-making functions for the corporation, or (ii) the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating facilities employing more than 250 persons or having gross annual sales or expenditures exceeding \$25,000,000 (in second quarter 1980 dollars), if authority to sign documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate procedures.

Volume 15, Issue 16

b. For a municipality, state, federal or other public agency by either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official. (A principal executive officer of a federal, municipal, or state agency includes the chief executive officer of the agency or head executive officer having responsibility for the overall operation of a principal geographic unit of the agency).

c. For a partnership or sole proprietorship, by a general partner or proprietor respectively.

2. Reports. All reports required by permits and other information requested by the director shall be signed by:

a. One of the persons described in subdivision 1 a, b, or c of this subsection; or

b. A duly authorized representative of that person. A person is a duly authorized representative only if:

(1) The authorization is made in writing by a person described in subdivision 1 a, b, or c of this subsection; and

(2) The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility or activity, such as the position of plant manager, operator of a well or a well field, superintendent, or position of equivalent responsibility. (A duly authorized representative may thus be either a named individual or any individual occupying a named position.)

(3) If an authorization is no longer accurate because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the facility, a new authorization must be submitted to the department prior to or together with any separate information, or registration statement to be signed by an authorized representative.

3. Certification. Any person signing a document under subdivision 1 or 2 of this subsection shall make the following certification: "I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is to the best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations."

H. Releases in excess of reportable quantities.

1. This permit does not relieve the permittee of the reporting requirements of 40 CFR 117 and 40 CFR 302. The discharge of hazardous substances or oil in the storm water discharges from a facility shall be prevented or minimized in accordance with the applicable storm water pellution prevention plan for the facility. Where a

release containing a hazardous substance in an amount equal to or in excess of a reporting quantity established under either 40 CFR 117 or 40 CFR 302 occurs during a 24-hour period, the storm water pollution prevention plan must be modified within 14 calendar days of knowledge of the release. The modification shall provide a description of the release, the circumstances leading to the release, and the date of the release. In addition, the plan must be reviewed to identify measures to prevent the reoccurrence of such releases and to respond to such releases, and the plan must be modified where appropriate.

2. Spills. This permit does not authorize the discharge of hazardous substances or oil resulting from an on-site spill.

Part IV. MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS.

A. Change in discharge of pollutants.

1. Any permittee proposing a new discharge shall submit a registration statement at least 60 days prior to commencing erection, construction, or expansion or employment of new processes at any facility. There shall be no construction or operation of said facilities prior to the issuance of a permit.

2. All discharges authorized by this permit shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of the permit. The permittee shall submit a new registration statement 30 days prior to all expansions, production increases, or process modifications, that will result in the discharge of new or increased pollutants. The discharge of any pollutant more frequently than, or at a level greater than that identified and authorized by this permit, shall constitute a violation of the terms and conditions of this permit.

3. The permittee shall promptly provide written notice of the following:

a. Any new introduction of pollutants, into treatment works which represents a significant increase in the discharge of pollutants which may interfere with, pass through, or otherwise be incompatible with such works, from an establishment, treatment works, or discharges, if such establishment, treatment works, or discharges were discharging or has the potential to discharge pollutants to state waters;

b. Any substantial change, whether permanent or temporary, in the volume or character of pollutants being introduced into such treatment works by an establishment, treatment works, or discharges that was introducing pollutants into such treatment works at the time of issuance of the permit;

c. Any reason to believe that any activity has occurred or will occur which would result in the discharge on a routine or frequent basis of any toxic pollutant which is not limited in the permit, if that discharge will exceed the highest of the following "notification levels":

(1) One hundred micrograms per liter (100 ug/l);

(2) Two hundred micrograms per liter (200 ug/l) for acrolein and acrylonitrile; five hundred micrograms per liter (500 ug/l) for 2, 4-dinitrophenol and for 2-methyl-4, 6-dinitrophenol; and one milligram per liter (1 mg/l) for antimony:

(3) Five times the maximum concentration value reported for the pollutant in the registration statement; or

(4) The level established in accordance with regulation under Section 307(a) of the Clean Water Act and accopted by the director;

d. Any activity has occurred or will occur which would result in any discharge on a nonroutine or infrequent basis of a toxic pollutant which is not limited in the permit if that discharge will exceed the highest of the following "notification levels":

(1) Five hundred micrograms per liter (500 ug/l);

(2) One milligram per liter (1 mg/l) for antimony;

(3) Ten times the maximum concentration value reported for that pollutant in the registration statement; or

(4) The level established by the director.

Such notice shall include information on: (i) the characteristics and quantity of pollutants to be introduced into or from such treatment works; (ii) any anticipated impact of such change in the quantity and characteristics of the pollutants to be discharged from such treatment works; and (iii) any additional information that may be required by the director.

B. Treatment works operation and quality control.

1. Design and operation of facilities or treatment works and disposal of all wastes shall be in accordance with the registration statement filed with the department and in conformity with the conceptual design, or the plans, specifications, or other supporting data accepted by the director. The acceptance of the treatment works conceptual design or the plans and specifications does not relieve the permittee of the responsibility of designing and operating the facility in a reliable and consistent manner to meet the facility performance requirements in the permit. If facility deficiencies, design or operational, are identified in the future which could affect the facility performance or reliability, it is the responsibility of the permittee to correct such deficiencies.

2. All waste collection, control, treatment, and disposal facilities shall be operated in a manner consistent with the following:

a. At all times, all facilities shall be operated in a prudent and workmanlike manner so as to minimize upsets and discharges of excessive pollutants to state waters;

b. The permittee shall provide an adequate operating staff which is duly qualified to carry out the operation, maintenance and testing functions required to insure compliance with the conditions of this permit;

c. Maintenance of treatment facilities shall be carried out in such a manner that the monitoring and limitation requirements are not violated; and

d. Collected solids shall be stored and disposed of in such a manner as to prevent entry of those wastes, or runoff from the wastes, into state waters.

C. Adverse impact. The permittee shall take all feasible steps to minimize any adverse impact to state waters resulting from noncompliance with any limitations or conditions specified in this permit, and shall perform and report such accelerated or additional monitoring as is necessary to determine the nature and impact of the noncomplying limitations or conditions.

D. Duty to halt, reduce activity or to mitigate.

1. It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit.

2. The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize, correct or prevent any discharge in violation of this permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the environment.

E. Structural stability. The structural stability of any of the units or parts of the facilities here permitted is the sole responsibility of the permittee and the failure of such structural units or parts shall not relieve the permittee of the responsibility of complying with all terms and conditions of this permit.

F. Bypassing. Any bypass ("Bypass means intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a treatment works") of the treatment works here permitted is prohibited unless:

1. Anticipated bypass. If the permittee knows in advance of the need for a bypass, the permittee shall notify the department promptly at least 10 days prior to the bypass. After considering its adverse effects the director may approve an anticipated bypass if:

a. The bypass is unavoidable to prevent a loss of life, personal injury, or severe property damage ("Severe property damage" means substantial physical damage to property, damage to the treatment facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural resources which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not mean economic loss caused by delays in production.); and

b. There are no feasible alternatives to bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities, retention of untreated waste, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment down-time. However, if a bypass

Volume 15, Issue 16

occurs during normal periods of equipment down-time, or preventive maintenance and in the exercise of reasonable engineering judgment the permittee could have installed adequate backup equipment to prevent such bypass, this exclusion shall not apply as a defense.

2. Unplanned bypass. If an unplanned bypass occurs, the permittee shall notify the department as soon as possible, but in no case later than 24 hours, and shall take steps to halt the bypass as early as possible. This notification will be a condition for defense to an enforcement action that an unplanned bypass met the conditions in Part IV F 1 above and in light of the information reasonably available to the permittee at the time of the bypass.

G. Conditions necessary to demonstrate an upset. A permittee may claim an upset as an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance for only technology-based effluent limitations. In order to establish an affirmative defense of upset, the permittee shall present properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs or other relevant evidence that shows:

1. That an upset occurred and that the cause can be identified;

2. The facility permitted here was at the time being operated efficiently and in compliance with proper operation and maintenance procedures;

3. The permittee submitted a notification of noncompliance as required by Part III F; and

4. The permittee took all reasonable steps to minimize or correct any adverse impact to state waters resulting from noncompliance with the permit.

H. Compliance with state and federal law. Compliance with this permit during its term constitutes compliance with the State Water Control Law and the Clean Water Act except for any toxic standard imposed under Section 307(a) of the Clean Water Act.

Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action under, or relieve the permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties established pursuant to any other state law or regulation or under authority preserved by Section 510 of the Clean Water Act.

I. Property rights. The issuance of this permit does not convey any property rights in either real or personal property, or any exclusive privileges, nor does it authorize any injury to private property or any invasion of personal rights, nor any infringement of federal, state, or local laws or regulations.

J. Severability. The provisions of this permit are severable.

K. Duty to reregister. If the permittee wishes to continue to discharge under a general permit after the expiration date of this permit, the permittee must submit a new registration statement at least 120 days prior to the expiration date of this permit. L. Right of entry. The permittee shall allow, or secure necessary authority to allow, authorized state and federal representatives, upon the presentation of credentials:

1. To enter upon the permittee's premises on which the establishment, treatment works, or discharges are located or in which any records are required to be kept under the terms and conditions of this permit;

2. To have access to inspect and copy at reasonable times any records required to be kept under the terms and conditions of this permit;

3. To inspect at reasonable times any monitoring equipment or monitoring method required in this permit;

4. To sample at reasonable times any waste stream, discharge, process stream, raw material or by-product; and

5. To inspect at reasonable times any collection, treatment, or discharge facilities required under this permit.

For purposes of this section, the time for inspection shall be deemed reasonable during regular business hours, and whenever the facility is discharging. Nothing contained herein shall make an inspection time unreasonable during an emergency.

M. Transferability of permits. This permit may be transferred to another person by a permittee if:

1. The current permittee notifies the department 30 days in advance of the proposed transfer of the title to the facility or property;

2. The notice to the department includes a written agreement between the existing and proposed new permittee containing a specific date of transfer of permit responsibility, coverage and liability between them; and

3. The department does not within the 30-day time period notify the existing permittee and the proposed permittee of the board's intent to modify or revoke and reissue the permit.

Such a transferred permit shall, as of the date of the transfer, be as fully effective as if it had been issued directly to the new permittee.

N. Public access to information. Any secret formulae, secret processes, or secret methods other than effluent data submitted to the department may be claimed as confidential by the submitter pursuant to § 62.1-44.21 of the Code of Virginia. Any such claim must be asserted at the time of submission in the manner prescribed on the application form or instructions or, in the case of other submissions, by stamping the words "secret formulae, secret processes or secret methods" on each page containing such information. If no claim is made at the time of submission, the department may make the information available to the public without further notice. If a claim is asserted, the information will be treated in accordance with the procedures in the Virginia Freedom of Information Act (§§ 2.1-340 et seq. and 62.1-44.21 of the Code of Virginia).

Claims of confidentiality for the following information will be denied:

1. The name and address of any permit applicant or permittee; and

2. Registration statements, permits, and effluent data.

Information required by the registration statement may not be claimed confidential. This includes information submitted on the forms themselves and any attachments used to supply information required by the forms.

O. Permit modification. The permit may be modified when any of the following developments occur:

1. When a change is made in the promulgated standards or regulations on which the permit was based;

2. When an effluent standard or prohibition for a toxic pollutant must be incorporated in the permit in accordance with provisions of Section 307(a) of the Clean Water Act (33 USC §§ 1251 et seq.); or

3. When the level of discharge of a pollutant not limited in the permit exceeds applicable water quality standards or the level which can be achieved by technology-based treatment requirements appropriate to the permittee.

P. Permit termination. After public notice and opportunity for a hearing, the general permit may be terminated for cause.

Q. When an individual permit may be required. The director may require any permittee authorized to discharge under this permit to apply for and obtain an individual permit. Cases where an individual permit may be required include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. The discharger(s) is a significant contributor of pollution;

2. Conditions at the operating facility change altering the constituents or characteristics of the discharge such that the discharge no longer qualifies for a general permit;

3. The discharge violates the terms or conditions of this permit;

4. A change has occurred in the availability of demonstrated technology or practices for the control or abatement of pollutants applicable to the point source;

5. Effluent limitation guidelines are promulgated for the point sources covered by this permit; or

6. A water quality management plan containing requirements applicable to such point sources is approved after the issuance of this permit.

This permit may be terminated as to an individual permittee for any of the reasons set forth above after appropriate notice and an opportunity for a hearing.

R. When an individual permit may be requested. Any permittee operating under this permit may request to be excluded from the coverage of this permit by applying for an individual permit. When an individual permit is issued to a permittee the applicability of this general permit to the individual permittee is automatically terminated on the effective date of the individual permit. When a general permit is issued which applies to a permittee already covered by an individual permit, such permittee may request exclusion from the provisions of the general permit and subsequent coverage under an individual permit.

S. Civil and criminal liability. Except as provided in permit conditions on "bypassing" (Part IV F), and "upset" (Part IV G) nothing in this permit shall be construed to relieve the permittee from civil and criminal penalties for noncompliance with the terms of this permit.

T. Oil and hazardous substance liability. Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action or relieve the permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties to which the permittee is or may be subject under Section 311 of the Clean Water Act (33 USC § 1321) or §§ 62.1-44.34:14 through 62.1-44.34:23 of the Code of Virginia.

U. Unauthorized discharge of pollutants. Except in compliance with this permit, it shall be unlawful for any permittee to:

1. Discharge into state waters sewage, industrial wastes, other wastes or any noxious or deleterious substances; or

2. Otherwise alter the physical, chemical or biological properties of such state waters and make them detrimental to the public health, or to animal or aquatic life, or to the uses of such waters for domestic or industrial consumption, or for recreation, or for other uses.

# Part III. CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL VPDES PERMITS.

### A. Monitoring.

1. Samples and measurements taken as required by this permit shall be representative of the monitored activity.

2. Monitoring shall be conducted according to procedures approved under 40 CFR Part 136 or alternative methods approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, unless other procedures have been specified in this permit.

3. The permittee shall periodically calibrate and perform maintenance procedures on all monitoring and analytical instrumentation at intervals that will ensure accuracy of measurements.

#### B. Records.

1. Records of monitoring information shall include:

a. The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;

b. The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements;

- c. The date(s) and time(s) analyses were performed;
- d. The individual(s) who performed the analyses;
- e. The analytical techniques or methods used; and
- f. The results of such analyses.

2. Except for records of monitoring information required by this permit related to the permittee's sewage sludge use and disposal activities, which shall be retained for a period of at least five years, the permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to complete the registration statement for this permit, for a period of at least three years from the date of the sample, measurement, report or request for coverage. This period of retention shall be extended automatically during the course of any unresolved litigation regarding the regulated activity or regarding control standards applicable to the permittee, or as requested by the board.

C. Reporting monitoring results.

1. The permittee shall submit the results of the monitoring required by this permit not later than the 10th day of the month after monitoring takes place, unless another reporting schedule is specified elsewhere in this permit. Monitoring results shall be submitted to the department's regional office.

2. Monitoring results shall be reported on a Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) or on forms provided, approved or specified by the department.

3. If the permittee monitors any pollutant specifically addressed by this permit more frequently than required by this permit using test procedures approved under 40 CFR Part 136 or using other test procedures approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or using procedures specified in this permit, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the calculation and reporting of the data submitted in the DMR or reporting form specified by the department.

4. Calculations for all limitations which require averaging of measurements shall utilize an arithmetic mean unless otherwise specified in this permit.

D. Duty to provide information. The permittee shall furnish to the department, within a reasonable time, any information which the board may request to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this permit or to determine compliance with this permit. The board may require the permittee to furnish, upon request, such plans, specifications, and other pertinent information as may be necessary to determine the effect of the wastes from his discharge on the quality of state waters, or such other information as may be necessary to accomplish the purposes of the State Water Control Law. The permittee shall also furnish to the department, upon request, copies of records required to be kept by this permit.

E. Compliance schedule reports. Reports of compliance or noncompliance with, or any progress reports on, interim and final requirements contained in any compliance schedule of this permit shall be submitted no later than 14 days following each schedule date.

F. Unauthorized discharges. Except in compliance with this permit or another permit issued by the board, it shall be unlawful for any person to:

1. Discharge into state waters sewage, industrial wastes, other wastes, or any noxious or deleterious substances; or

2. Otherwise alter the physical, chemical or biological properties of such state waters and make them detrimental to the public health, or to animal or aquatic life, or to the use of such waters for domestic or industrial consumption, or for recreation, or for other uses.

G. Reports of unauthorized discharges. Any permittee who discharges or causes or allows a discharge of sewage, industrial waste, other wastes or any noxious or deleterious substance into or upon state waters in violation of Part III F (unauthorized discharges); or who discharges or causes or allows a discharge that may reasonably be expected to enter state waters in violation of Part III F, shall notify the department of the discharge immediately upon discovery of the discharge, but in no case later than 24 hours after said discovery. A written report of the unauthorized discharge shall be submitted to the department within five days of discovery of the discharge. The written report shall contain:

1. A description of the nature and location of the discharge;

2. The cause of the discharge;

3. The date on which the discharge occurred;

- 4. The length of time that the discharge continued;
- 5. The volume of the discharge;

6. If the discharge is continuing, how long it is expected to continue;

7. If the discharge is continuing, what the expected total volume of the discharge will be; and

8. Any steps planned or taken to reduce, eliminate and prevent a recurrence of the present discharge or any future discharges not authorized by this permit.

Discharges reportable to the department under the immediate reporting requirements of other regulations are exempted from this requirement.

H. Reports of unusual or extraordinary discharges. If any unusual or extraordinary discharge including a bypass or upset should occur from a treatment works and the discharge enters or could be expected to enter state waters,

the permittee shall promptly notify, in no case later than 24 hours, the department by telephone after the discovery of the discharge. This notification shall provide all available details of the incident, including any adverse affects on aquatic life and the known number of fish killed. The permittee shall reduce the report to writing and shall submit it to the department within five days of discovery of the discharge in accordance with Part III 1 2. Unusual and extraordinary discharges include but are not limited to any discharge resulting from:

1. Unusual spillage of materials resulting directly or indirectly from processing operations;

2. Breakdown of processing or accessory equipment;

3. Failure or taking out of service some or all of the treatment works; and

4. Flooding or other acts of nature.

*I.* Reports of noncompliance. The permittee shall report any noncompliance which may adversely affect state waters or may endanger public health.

1. An oral report shall be provided within 24 hours from the time the permittee becomes aware of the circumstances. The following shall be included as information which shall be reported within 24 hours under this subdivision:

a. Any unanticipated bypass; and

b. Any upset which causes a discharge to surface waters.

2. A written report shall be submitted within 5 days and shall contain:

a. A description of the noncompliance and its cause;

b. The period of noncompliance, including exact dates and times, and if the noncompliance has not been corrected, the anticipated time it is expected to continue; and

c. Steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the noncompliance.

The board may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis for reports of noncompliance under Part III I if the oral report has been received within 24 hours and no adverse impact on state waters has been reported.

3. The permittee shall report all instances of noncompliance not reported under Parts III I 1 or 2, in writing, at the time the next monitoring reports are submitted. The reports shall contain the information listed in Part III I 2.

NOTE: The immediate (within 24 hours) reports required in Parts III G, H and I may be made to the department's regional office. Reports may be made by telephone or by fax. For reports outside normal working hours, leave a message and this shall fulfill the immediate reporting requirement. For emergencies, the Virginia Department of Emergency Services maintains a 24-hour telephone service at 1-800-468-8892.

J. Notice of planned changes.

1. The permittee shall give notice to the department as soon as possible of any planned physical alterations or additions to the permitted facility. Notice is required only when:

a. The permittee plans alteration or addition to any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is or may be a discharge of pollutants, the construction of which commenced:

(1) After promulgation of standards of performance under § 306 of the federal Clean Water Act which are applicable to such source; or

(2) After proposal of standards of performance in accordance with § 306 of the federal Clean Water Act which are applicable to such source, but only if the standards are promulgated in accordance with § 306 within 120 days of their proposal;

b. The alteration or addition could significantly change the nature or increase the quantity of pollutants discharged. This notification applies to pollutants which are subject neither to effluent limitations nor to notification requirements specified elsewhere in this permit; or

c. The alteration or addition results in a significant change in the permittee's sludge use or disposal practices and such alteration, addition, or change may justify the application of permit conditions that are different from or absent in the existing permit, including notification of additional use or disposal sites not reported during the permit application process or not reported pursuant to an approved land application plan.

2. The permittee shall give advance notice to the department of any planned changes in the permitted facility or activity which may result in noncompliance with permit requirements.

K. Signatory requirements.

1. Registration statement. All registration statements shall be signed as follows:

a. For a corporation: by a responsible corporate officer. For the purposes of this section, a responsible corporate officer means: (i) a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policyor decision-making functions for the corporation, or (ii) the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating facilities employing more than 250 persons or having gross annual sales or expenditures exceeding \$25 million (in second-quarter

1980 dollars), if authority to sign documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate procedures;

b. For a partnership or sole proprietorship: by a general partner or the proprietor, respectively; or

c. For a municipality, state, federal, or other public agency: by either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official. For purposes of this section, a principal executive officer of a public agency includes: (i) the chief executive officer of the agency or (ii) a senior executive officer having responsibility for the overall operations of a principal geographic unit of the agency.

2. Reports, etc. All reports required by permits, and other information requested by the board, shall be signed by a person described in Part III K 1 or by a duly authorized representative of that person. A person is a duly authorized representative only if:

a. The authorization is made in writing by a person described in Part III K 1;

b. The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility or activity such as the position of plant manager, operator of a well or a well field, superintendent, position of equivalent responsibility, or an individual or position having overall responsibility for environmental matters for the company. A duly authorized representative may thus be either a named individual or any individual occupying a named position; and

c. The written authorization is submitted to the department.

3. Changes to authorization. If an authorization under Part III K 2 is no longer accurate because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the facility, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of Part III K 2 shall be submitted to the department prior to or together with any reports or information to be signed by an authorized representative.

4. Certification. Any person signing a document under Parts III K 1 or 2 shall make the following certification:

"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations." L. Duty to comply. The permittee shall comply with all conditions of this permit. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the State Water Control Law and the federal Clean Water Act, except that noncompliance with certain provisions of this permit may constitute a violation of the State Water Control Law but not the federal Clean Water Act. Permit noncompliance is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or modification; or denial of a permit renewal application.

The permittee shall comply with effluent standards or prohibitions established under § 307(a) of the federal Clean Water Act for toxic pollutants and with standards for sewage sludge use or disposal established under § 405(d) of the federal Clean Water Act within the time provided in the regulations that establish these standards or prohibitions or standards for sewage sludge use or disposal, even if this permit has not yet been modified to incorporate the requirement.

M. Duty to reapply. If the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by this permit after the expiration date of this permit, the permittee shall submit a new registration statement at least 180 days before the expiration date of the existing permit, unless permission for a later date has been granted by the board. The board shall not grant permission for registration statements to be submitted later than the expiration date of the existing permit.

N. Effect of a permit. This permit does not convey any property rights in either real or personal property or any exclusive privileges, nor does it authorize any injury to private property or invasion of personal rights or any infringement of federal, state or local laws or regulations.

O. State law. Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action under, or relieve the permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties established pursuant to, any other state law or regulation or under authority preserved by § 510 of the federal Clean Water Act. Except as provided in permit conditions on "bypass" (Part III U), and "upset" (Part III V) nothing in this permit shall be construed to relieve the permittee from civil and criminal penalties for noncompliance.

P. Oil and hazardous substance liability. Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action or relieve the permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties to which the permittee is or may be subject under §§ 62.1-44.34:14 through 62.1-44.34:23 of the State Water Control Law.

Q. Proper operation and maintenance. The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit. Proper operation and maintenance also includes effective plant performance, adequate funding, adequate staffing, and adequate laboratory and process controls, including appropriate quality assurance procedures. This provision requires the operation of back-up or auxiliary facilities or

similar systems which are installed by the permittee only when the operation is necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit.

R. Disposal of solids or sludges. Solids, sludges or other pollutants removed in the course of treatment or management of pollutants shall be disposed of in a manner so as to prevent any pollutant from such materials from entering state waters.

S. Duty to mitigate. The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge or sludge use or disposal in violation of this permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the environment.

T. Need to halt or reduce activity not a defense. It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit.

### U. Bypass.

1. "Bypass" means the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a treatment facility. The permittee may allow any bypass to occur which does not cause effluent limitations to be exceeded, but only if it also is for essential maintenance to ensure efficient operation. These bypasses are not subject to the provisions of Parts III U 2 and U 3.

### 2. Notice.

a. Anticipated bypass. If the permittee knows in advance of the need for a bypass, prior notice shall be submitted if possible at least 10 days before the date of the bypass.

b. Unanticipated bypass. The permittee shall submit notice of an unanticipated bypass as required in Part *III I (reports of noncompliance).* 

### 3. Prohibition of bypass.

a. Bypass is prohibited, and the board may take enforcement action against a permittee for bypass, unless:

(1) Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property damage;

(2) There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. This condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance; and

(3) The permittee submitted notices as required under Part III U 2.

b. The board may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse effects, if the board determines that it will meet the three conditions listed in Part III U 3 a.

# V. Upset.

1. An upset constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with technology-based permit effluent limitations if the requirements of Part III V 2 are met. A determination made during administrative review of claims that noncompliance was caused by upset, and before an action for noncompliance, is not a final administrative action subject to judicial review.

2. A permittee who wishes to establish the affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate, through properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs or other relevant evidence that:

a. An upset occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the upset;

b. The permitted facility was at the time being properly operated;

c. The permittee submitted notice of the upset as required in Part III I; and

d. The permittee complied with any remedial measures required under Part III S.

3. In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to establish the occurrence of an upset has the burden of proof.

*W.* Inspection and entry. The permittee shall allow the director or an authorized representative, upon presentation of credentials and other documents as may be required by law, to:

1. Enter upon the permittee's premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of this permit;

2. Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions of this permit;

3. Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit; and

4. Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purposes of ensuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by the federal Clean Water Act and the State Water Control Law, any substances or parameters at any location.

For purposes of this section, the time for inspection shall be deemed reasonable during regular business hours and whenever the facility is discharging. Nothing contained

Volume 15, Issue 16

herein shall make an inspection unreasonable during an emergency.

X. Permit actions. Permits may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause. The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit condition.

Y. Transfer of permits.

1. Permits are not transferable to any person except after notice to the department. Except as provided in Part III Y 2, a permit may be transferred by the permittee to a new owner or operator only if the permit has been modified or revoked and reissued, or a minor modification made, to identify the new permittee and incorporate such other requirements as may be necessary under the State Water Control Law and the federal Clean Water Act.

2. As an alternative to transfers under Part III Y 1, this permit may be automatically transferred to a new permittee if:

a. The current permittee notifies the department at least 30 days in advance of the proposed transfer of the title to the facility or property;

b. The notice includes a written agreement between the existing and new permittees containing a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage, and liability between them; and

c. The board does not notify the existing permittee and the proposed new permittee of its intent to modify or revoke and reissue the permit. If this notice is not received, the transfer is effective on the date specified in the agreement mentioned in Part III Y 2 b.

Z. Severability. The provisions of this permit are severable, and if any provision of this permit or the application of any provision of this permit to any circumstance is held invalid, the application of such provision to other circumstances and the remainder of this permit shall not be affected thereby.

<u>NOTICE:</u> The forms used in administering 9 VAC 25-190-10 et seq., Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (VPDES) General Permit Regulation for Nonmetallic Mineral Mining, are listed below. Any amended or added forms are reflected in the listing and are published following the listing.

# **FORMS**

Department of Environmental Quality Water Division Permit Application Fee [ (rev. 6/99) ].

Local Government Ordinance Form (eff. 8/93).

Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination System General Permit Registration Statement - Nonmetallic Mineral Mining.

Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination System General Permit Notice of Termination for Nonmetallic Mineral Mining.

VPDES Industrial Major		MODIFICATION
VONCE Municipal Major	\$8,000	\$4,000
Vruce municipal major	\$7,100	\$3,550
VPDES Municipal Storm Water	\$7,100	\$3,550
VPDES Industrial Minor, No Standard Limits	\$3,400	\$1,700
VPDES Industrial Minor, Standard Limits	\$2,200	\$1,100
VPDES Industrial Storm Water	\$2,400	\$1,200
VPDES Municipal Minor, 100,000 GPD or More	\$2,500	\$1,250
VPDES Municipal Minor, More than 10,000 GPD but Less than 100,000 GPD	\$2,000	\$1,000
VPDES Municipal Minor, More than 1,000 GPD but 10,000 GPD or Less	\$1,800	006 \$
VPDES Municipal Minor, 1,000 GPD or Less	\$1,400	\$ 700
VPA Industrial Wastewater Operation	\$3,500	\$1,750
VPA Industrial Sludge Operation	\$2,500	\$1,250
VPA Municipal Wastewater Operation	\$4,500	\$2,250
VPA Municipal Studge Operation	\$2,500	\$1,250
GWW Initial Permit for an Existing Withdrawal	\$ 400	\$ 200
GWW Permit for a New or Expanded Withdrawal	\$2,000	\$1,000
SWW Certificate for an Existing Withdrawal	\$2,000	\$1,000
SWW Permit for a New or Expanded Withdrawal	\$3,000	\$1,500
FEE SCHEDULE-APPLICATIONS FOR INDIVIDUAL VIRGINIA WATER PROTECTION PERMITS (APPLICANT WILL BE NOTIFIED OF FEE DUE BY DEQ)	WATER PROTECTI	ON PERMITS
I: TYPE OF PERMIT	ISSUANCE/ REISSUANCE	MODIFICATION
VWP Category   Project	\$3,000	\$1,500
VWP Catagory II Project	\$2,100	\$1,050
VWP Category III Project	\$ 800	\$ 400
VWP Walver	\$ 300	\$ 150

mum file for registration for general permit coverage is \$200. The specific amount of the fee depends not of time the general permit will remain in effect. These context the DEO Office to which registration are to be submitted for assistance in determining the amount of the fee due.

WATER DIVISION PERMIT APPLICATION FEE		
INSTRUCTIONS Applicants for individual Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (VPDES), Virginia Pollution Abatement (VPA), Virginia Water Protection (VWP), Surface Water Withdrawal (SWW), and Ground Water Withdrawal (GWW) Pollution for several (SWW) and Ground Water Withdrawal (GWW) Pollution for pay permit application fees except farming operations engaged in production for market. Fees are also required for registration for coverage under General Permits accept for the general permits for severage treatment systems with discharges of 1,000 galons per dev (GPD) or less and for Corrective Action Plans for leaking underground storage tanks. Except for VWP permits, fees must be paid when applications for permit issuance, raissuance or modification are ubmittad. Applicants for VWP permits will be notified by the DEO of the fee due. Applications will be considered incomplete if the proper fee is not paid and will not be processed until the fee is received.	tion be be	
The permit fee schedule can be found on the back of this form. Fees for permit issuance or the reissuance and for permit modification are included. Once you have determined the fee for the type of application you are submitting, complete this form. The white and youk copies of the form and your check on money order payale to "Commonwealth of Virginia–DEC" should be mailed to the Department of Environmental Quality, Receipts Control, P.O. Box 10160, Ritchmond, VA 23240. The pink copy of the form and a copy of your check or money order states and a copy of your check or money order should be mailed to the Department of Environmental Quality, Receipts Control, P.O. Box 10150, Ritchmond, VA 23240. The pink copy of the form and a copy of your records. Please direct any questions regarding this form or fee payment to the DEC Office to which you are submitting your application.	or or the of the d be der rder ct any ing	
APPLICANT NAME: SSN/FIN:		
ADDRESS: DAYTIME PHONE: ( ) Area Code		
FACILITY/ACTIVITY NAME:		
LOCATION:		
TYPE OF PERMIT APPLIED FOR (from Fee Schedule):		
TYPE OF ACTION: New Issuance Reissuance Modification	Ę	
AMOUNT OF FEE SUBMITTED (from Fee Schedule):		
EXISTING PERMIT NUMBER (if applicable):		
DEQ OFFICE TO WHICH APPLICATION SUBMITTED (check one)		
Abingdon/SWR0     Bridgeweter/VR0     Kimamock/K0     Prince Willem/MR0     Richmond/PR0     Richmond/PR0     Richmond/PR0     Virgina Baech/TR0	<u>م</u> ۵	
FOR DEC USE ONLY White and Yellow Copies - DEC Accounting Office Date:		

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-105; Filed April 7,1999, 11:49 a.m.

# GENERAL NOTICES/ERRATA

# STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

<u>EDITOR'S NOTICE:</u> Appendices A and B referenced in the following order are not being published. However, these appendices are available for public inspection at the State Corporation Commission, Document Control Center, Tyler Building, 1st Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia, from 8:15 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday.

AT RICHMOND, MARCH 19, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

CASE NO. PUC970113

Ex Parte: Investigation of the termination of local exchange for failure to pay for long distance services

# ORDER GRANTING PETITIONS FOR RECONSIDERATION

On March 17, 1999, the Virginia Telecommunications Industry Association ("VTIA") filed its Petition for Reconsideration of the Commission's Final Order of February 26, 1999. On March 17, 1999, Central Telephone Company of Virginia and United Telephone-Southeast, Inc. ("Centel/United") filed their Joint Petition for Reconsideration and Clarification. On March 18, 1999, AT&T Communications of Virginia, Inc. ("AT&T") also filed a Petition for Reconsideration.

Pursuant to the terms of the Commission's Rule of Practice and Procedure 8:9, the Commission has determined that the Petitions for Reconsideration should be granted in order to allow the Commission to retain jurisdiction over this matter while the issues raised by VTIA, Centel/United, and AT&T are reviewed. All parties are invited to respond to issues raised in the Petitions for Reconsideration on or before April 2, 1999. Accordingly,

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:

(1) The Petitions for Reconsideration filed by VTIA on March 17, 1999, Centel/United on March 17, 1999, and by AT&T on March 18, 1999, are hereby granted.

2) All parties may respond to the issues raised in the Petitions for Reconsideration on or before April 2, 1999.

(3) Pending the Commission's reconsideration, no provision of the order of February 26, 1999, is suspended or altered and this matter is continued generally until further order of the Commission.

AN ATTESTED COPY hereof shall be sent by the Clerk of the Commission to each local exchange company subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission as set out in Appendix A attached hereto; each interexchange carrier certificated in Virginia as set out in Appendix B attached hereto; Division of Consumer Counsel, Office of the Attorney General, 900 East Main Street, Second Floor, Richmond, Virginia 23219; Cox Virginia Telecom, Inc., Edward L. Petrini, Esquire, and John D. Sharer, Esquire, Christian & Barton, L.L.P., 909 East Main Street, Suite 1200, Richmond, Virginia 23219-3095; Warner F. Brundage, Jr., Esquire, Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, Bell Atlantic-Virginia, Inc., 600 East Main Street, 11th Floor, Richmond, Virginia 23219; Wilma R. McCarey, Esquire, AT&T Communications of Virginia, Inc., 3033 Chainbridge Road, Room 3-D, Oakton, Virginia 22185-0001: Virginia Telecommunications Industry Association, Michelle K. Walsh, Esquire, and Richard D. Gary, Esquire, Hunton & Williams, Riverfront Plaza, East Tower, 951 East Byrd Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219-4074; Stephen C. Spencer, Regional Director-External Affairs, GTE South Incorporated, Three James Center, Suite 1200, 1051 East Cary Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219; MCI Telecommuni-cations WorldCom, James R.J. Scheltema, Esquire, 1133 Nineteenth Street, N.W., Room 437, Washington, D.C. 20036; James B. Wright, Senior Attorney, Sprint Mid-Atlantic Telecom, 14111 Capital Boulevard, Wake North Carolina 27587-5900: Forest. Hyperion Telecommunications of Virginia, Inc., Janet S. Livengood, Esquire, DDI Plaza Two, 500 Thomas Street, Suite 400, Bridgeville, Pennsylvania 15107-2838; J. Scott Nicholls and Heather Troxell, LCI International, 8180 Greensboro Drive, Suite 800, McLean, Virginia 22102; Catherine L. Caddy, President, Bottom Line Solutions, Inc., P.O. Box 8791, Roanoke, Virginia 24014; Joseph S. Terrell, Sr., President, John Grier Construction Company, P.O. Box 191, Williamsburg, Virginia 23187-0191: MCI Telecommunications Corporation, Eric M. Page, Esquire, LeClair Ryan, 4201 Dominion Boulevard, Suite 200, Glen Allen, Virginia 23060; Hyperion Telecommunications of Virginia, Inc., Dana Frix, Esquire, and Jonathan D. Draluck. Esquire, Swidler & Berlin, 3000 K Street, N.W., Suite 300, Washington, D.C. 20007-5116: Jean Ann Fox, Vice President, Virginia Citizens Consumer Council, 6 North 6th Street, Suite 402, Richmond, Virginia 23219; Andrew D. Lipman, Esquire, and Jean L. Kiddoo, Esquire, Swidler & Berlin, 3000 K Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20007-5116; Operator Service Providers, Mr. Paul Gamberg, 6611 Valjean Avenue, #201, Van Nuys, California 91406; Lois Hash, 3328 Williamson Road, Roanoke, Virginia 24012; David Altizer, 301 Memorial Boulevard, Narrows, Virginia 24124; Hilda Isaacs, 4601 Mayflower Road, Apartment 4K, Norfolk, Virginia 23508; Louise Gwaltney, 100 Tricia Lane, Apartment 1A. Newport News, Virginia 23601: W. Charles Cox. 4612 Sanders Drive. Roanoke. Virginia 24019-5836: Janelle K. Hamric, 5034 Sugar Grove Highway, Sugar Grove, Virginia 24375-3160; Mr. and Mrs. James C. Eure, 1916 Redgate Drive, Portsmouth, Virginia 23702; Horace and Arline McClellan, 480 Wassona Drive, Marion, Virginia 24354; Elizabeth D. Prater, 4885 Sugar Grove Highway, Sugar Grove, Virginia 24375-3166; Perry A. Rivkind, 11164 Park Place, Smithfield, Virginia 23430; Ann M. Hills, Worthington Hanon, Ltd., 469 South Five Fork Road, Monroe, Virginia 24574-2753; David F. Johnston, Sr., President, Antique Properties, Inc., P.O. Box 1265, Bowling Green, Virginia 22427: Carol L. Bavnes, 1105-D North Hamilton Street, Richmond, Virginia 23221; Elizabeth R. Price, 13060 Northridge Road, Abingdon, Virginia 24210: the Commission's Office of General Counsel and the

Commission's Divisions of Communications, Public Utility Accounting, and Economics and Finance.

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

# Notice of Public Comment Muddy Creek TMDL

The Department of Environmental Quality and the Department of Conservation and Recreation seek written comment from interested persons on the draft Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) for fecal coliform bacteria on a 10.36 mile segment of Muddy Creek. This impaired segment is located in Rockingham County and extends from the headwaters of Muddy Creek to the confluence with Dry River. Muddy Creek is identified in Virginia's 1998 303(d) TMDL Priority List and Report as impaired due to violations of the state's water quality standard for fecal coliform bacteria.

Section 303(d) of the federal Clean Water Act and § 62.1-44.19:7 C of the Code of Virginia require the development and implementation of TMDLs for pollutants responsible for each impaired water contained in Virginia's 303(d) TMDL Priority List and Report.

The public comment period will end on Wednesday, May 26, 1999. A copy of the revised draft TMDL for fecal coliform bacteria on Muddy Creek is available upon request. Questions or information requests should be addressed to the person listed below. Written comments should include the name, address, and telephone number of the person submitting the comments and should be sent to Mr. Charles Martin, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, Virginia 23240-0009, telephone (804) 698-4462, Fax (804) 698-4136, or e-mail chmartin@deq. state.va.us.

# GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF VIRGINIA 1999 SESSION

# House Joint Resolution No. 741

Expressing the sense of the General Assembly of Virginia that state agencies and institutions avoid certain dates for the implementation of new programs or procedures as they prepare for the Year 2000.

Agreed to by the House of Delegates, February 8, 1999 Agreed to by the Senate, February 18, 1999

WHEREAS, the transition to the new millennium on January 1, 2000, is an exciting event and much is being done, and will continue to be done, to ensure that computers, software programs, databases, networks, information systems, firmware, and other devices make a smooth transition to the new millennium; and

WHEREAS, in addition to the date of January 1, 2000, other dates have been identified that may be affected by "the millennium bug"; and

# General Notices/Errata

WHEREAS, included among those dates are April 1, 1999, the first day of fiscal year 2000 for some government and corporate entities; April 9, 1999, the 99th day of 1999, read as "9999" on a Julian calendar, and used by many programmers as a "holding date"; July 1, 1999, the first day of fiscal year 2000 for 46 of 50 states, including Virginia; September 9, 1999, read as "9999" on the more common Gregorian calendar; October 1, 1999, the first day of fiscal year 2000 for the federal government; December 31, 1999, the last day of the 20th century, which is used by many programmers as a "holding date"; February 29, 2000, a leap year date; March 1, 2000, a potential problem if the date of February 29, 2000, is not properly processed; December 31, 2000, the 366th day of 2000 and another potential problem if the date of February 29, 2000, is not properly processed; and January 1, 2001, for computers based on cycles starting from 1901 instead of 1900, the year 2001 will appear as "00" in the date field; and

WHEREAS, to date, the Commonwealth has made a significant investment in money and personnel to ensure that its computers, software programs, databases, networks, information systems, firmware, and other devices are compliant with the Year 2000 date change; and

WHEREAS, state employees and other personnel will continue to work on repairing, renovating, modifying, converting, and testing computers, software programs, databases, networks, information systems, firmware, and other devices through 1998 and 1999 and well into the Year 2000; and

WHEREAS, as the new millennium approaches, it is expected that more and more financial and human resources will be expended to ensure Year 2000 readiness; and

WHEREAS, whenever any organization implements a new program or procedure, it is time consuming and resource intensive; and

WHEREAS, implementation of a new program or procedure on or around January 1, 2000, or the other dates that may be affected by "the millennium bug" could detract from the financial or personnel resources that should be expended on the Year 2000 effort or, conversely, could detract from the financial or personnel resources that should be expended on the new program or procedure; and

WHEREAS, if problems or difficulties are encountered in implementing a new program or procedure on or about January 1, 2000, or the other dates that may be affected by "the millennium bug," it would be difficult to determine whether the problems or difficulties were related to the new program or procedure itself or a lack of Year 2000 readiness; and

WHEREAS, in recognition of these realities, the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, the organization representing state insurance regulators, voted in September 1998 to refrain from adopting or recommending model laws or regulations that would hinder insurance companies' efforts to achieve Year 2000 compliance; and

# General Notices/Errata

WHEREAS, the National Coalition of Insurance Legislators and the National Conference of State Legislators endorsed this moratorium, which is in effect from July 1, 1999, to June 30, 2000; and

WHEREAS, the action of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners was an example of prudent policy making and recognizes that organizations, such as insurance companies, need to expend their financial and personnel resources on Year 2000 readiness without the distractions of new programs or procedures; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED by the House of Delegates, the Senate concurring, That state agencies and institutions be encouraged to avoid certain dates for the implementation of new programs or procedures as they prepare for the Year 2000. Such dates are those on or about April 1, 1999; April 9, 1999; July 1, 1999; September 9, 1999; October 1, 1999; December 31, 1999; January 1, 2000; February 29, 2000; March 1, 2000; December 31, 2000; and January 1, 2001; and, be it

RESOLVED FURTHER, That the Clerk of the House of Delegates transmit copies of this resolution to His Excellency, the Governor of the Commonwealth, and the Secretaries of Administration, Commerce and Trade, Education, Finance, Health and Human Resources, Natural Resources, Public Safety, Technology, and Transportation, requesting that they further disseminate copies of this resolution to the respective agency heads and information technology personnel at the agencies so that they may be apprised of the sense of the General Assembly of Virginia in this matter.

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

# **Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program**

# Drinking Water Funding

Several opportunities for drinking water funding are made available by the Department of Health's Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program. Funds for items 1 and 2 are available now by submitting applications available from the contact person listed below.

1. Planning & Design Grants – (Gray application) Must be postmarked by May 27, 1999.

Private and public owners of community waterworks are eligible to apply for these grant funds. Grants can be up to \$25,000 per project, especially for small, rural, financially stressed, community waterworks serving fewer than 3,300 persons. Eligible projects may include preliminary engineering planning, design of plans and specifications, performance of source water quality and quantity studies, drilling test wells to determine source feasibility, or other similar technical assistance projects. These funds could assist the waterworks owner in future submittals for construction funds. 2. 1452(k) Source Water Protection Initiatives - (a) Land or Conservation Easement Loans or (b) Voluntary Incentive-based Protection Measures Loans – (Yellow application) Must be postmarked by May 27, 1999.

This provision allows VDH to loan money for activities to protect important drinking water resources. Loan funds are available to: (1) community and nonprofit noncommunity waterworks to acquire land/conservation easements and (2) community waterworks, only, to establish local, voluntary incentive-based protection measures.

Funds for items 3 and 4 should be available January 2000 and will come from federal appropriations in FY 2000 for items authorized by the Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996. Our FY 2000 Intended Use Plan will be developed using your input on these issues.

3. FY 2000 Construction Funds – (Cream application) Must be postmarked by June 15, 1999.

Private and public owners of community waterworks and nonprofit noncommunity waterworks are eligible to apply for construction funds. VDH makes selections based on criteria described in the Program Design Manual, such as existing public health problems, noncompliance, affordability, regionalization, the availability of matching funds, etc. Readiness to proceed with construction is a key element.

4. FY 2000 Set-Aside Suggestion Forms – (White form) Must be postmarked by June 15, 1999.

The FY 2000 funds bring anyone the opportunity to suggest new or continuing set-aside (nonconstruction) activities such as items 1 and 2 above, small system technical assistance, viability enhancements, operator programs and general technical assistance. Set-aside funds help VDH assist waterworks owners to prepare for future drinking water challenges and assure the sustainability of safe drinking water.

The VDH's Program Design Manual describes the features of the above opportunities for funding. After receiving the aforementioned public input, VDH will develop a draft Intended Use Plan for public review and comment. When developed in August 1999, the draft Intended Use Plan will describe specific details for use of the FY 2000 funds. A public meeting will be planned for the fall of 1999 and written comments will also be accepted before we submit a final version to the USEPA for approval.

Agency contact: The applications, set-aside suggestion form, Program Design Manual and information may be obtained from Thomas B. Gray, P.E., Special Projects Manager, Department of Health, 1500 East Main Street, Room 109, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-1768, FAX (804) 786-5567 or (804) 786-1089/TTY **2**.

# STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

# Proposed Consent Special Order Canaan Valley Estates

The State Water Control Board proposes to enter into a consent special order with Canaan Valley Estates (Canaan) to resolve violations of the State Water Control Law and regulations at the Canaan sewage treatment plant. Canaan discharges treated wastewater into Linkswiler Branch in Rockbridge County under authority of a VPDES Permit. Since approximately April 1997 the Canaan sewage treatment plant has experienced difficulty complying with biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) and total suspended solids (TSS) permit effluent limitations.

The proposed consent special order settles outstanding Notices of Violation and incorporates a schedule of compliance to upgrade the sewage treatment plant in order to gain consistent compliance with all the permit requirements.

The board will receive written comments relating to the proposed consent special order until May 26, 1999. Comments should be addressed to Steven W. Hetrick, Department of Environmental Quality, Post Office Box 1129, Harrisonburg, Virginia 22801, and should refer to the consent special order.

The proposed order may be examined at the Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Road, Harrisonburg, Virginia 22801. A copy of the order may be obtained in person or by mail from this office.

# Proposed Consent Special Order Holtzman Oil Company

The State Water Control Board proposes to enter into a consent special order with Holtzman Oil Company (Holtzman) to resolve violations of the State Water Control Law and regulations at the Berryville Chevron (Red Apple) service station. Holtzman discharged petroleum contaminated groundwater to Dog Run in the Town of Berryville and failed to report a suspected release of petroleum at this site.

The proposed consent special order settles an outstanding Notice of Violation and incorporates a schedule of compliance requiring Holtzman to develop and institute proper procedures for de-watering underground storage tank basins, ensure proper inventory recordkeeping at its facilities, address outstanding compliance issues, and pay a civil charge.

The board will receive written comments relating to the proposed consent special order until May 26, 1999. Comments should be addressed to Steven W. Hetrick, Department of Environmental Quality, Post Office Box 1129, Harrisonburg, Virginia 22801, and should refer to the consent special order.

The proposed order may be examined at the Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Road, Harrisonburg, Virginia 22801. A copy of the order may be obtained in person or by mail from this office.

# Proposed Consent Special Order Massanutten Public Service Corporation

The State Water Control Board proposes to enter into a consent special order with Massanutten Public Service Corporation (Massanutten PSC) to resolve violations of the State Water Control Law and regulations at Massanutten PSC's sewage treatment plant in Rockingham County. Massanutten PSC discharges treated wastewater into Quail Run under authority of a VPDES permit. DEQ has conducted a biological stream survey of Quail Run below Massanutten PSC's outfall which indicated that Quail Run appeared to be adversely impacted downstream of the Massanutten PSC's discharge in violation of the board's Water Quality Standards regulations. Also, Massanutten PSC has experienced biochemical oxygen demand effluent limitation violations.

The proposed consent special order settles the outstanding Notices of Violation and incorporates a schedule of compliance to evaluate the facility's performance, conduct a stream model to assist in the determination of whether the permit limitations are appropriately set, and provide for identification and elimination of any component of the Massanutten PSC discharge or its treatment scheme that may be causing a toxicity problem. The order also includes a civil charge.

The board will receive written comments relating to the proposed consent special order until May 26, 1999. Comments should be addressed to Steven W. Hetrick, Department of Environmental Quality, Post Office Box 1129, Harrisonburg, Virginia 22801, and should refer to the consent special order.

The proposed order may be examined at the Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Road, Harrisonburg, Virginia 22801. A copy of the order may be obtained in person or by mail from this office.

# VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

# Notice to State Agencies

**Mailing Address:** Virginia Code Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219. You may FAX in your notice; however, we ask that you FAX two copies and do not follow up with a mailed copy. Our FAX number is: (804) 692-0625.

# Forms for Filing Material for Publication in The Virginia Register of Regulations

All agencies are required to use the appropriate forms when furnishing material for publication in *The Virginia Register of Regulations*. The forms may be obtained from: Virginia Code Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591.

**Internet:** Forms and other *Virginia Register* resources may be printed or downloaded from the *Virginia Register* web page:

http://legis.state.va.us/codecomm/register/regindex.htm

FORMS:

NOTICE of INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION - RR01 NOTICE of COMMENT PERIOD - RR02 PROPOSED (Transmittal Sheet) - RR03 FINAL (Transmittal Sheet) - RR04 EMERGENCY (Transmittal Sheet) - RR05 NOTICE of MEETING - RR06 AGENCY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE OBJECTIONS - RR08

# CALENDAR OF EVENTS

Symbol Key

† Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register
 Location accessible to handicapped
 Teletype (TTY)/Voice Designation

# NOTICE

Only those meetings which are filed with the Registrar of Regulations by the filing deadline noted at the beginning of this publication are listed. Since some meetings are called on short notice, please be aware that this listing of meetings may be incomplete. Also, all meetings are subject to cancellation and the *Virginia Register* deadline may preclude a notice of such cancellation.

For additional information on open meetings and public hearings held by the standing committees of the legislature during the interim, please call Legislative Information at (804) 698-1500 or Senate Information and Constituent Services at (804) 698-7410 or (804) 698-7419/TTY<sup>2</sup>, or visit the General Assembly web site's Legislative Information System (http://leg1.state.va.us/lis.htm) and select "Meetings."

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

# EXECUTIVE

# BOARD FOR ACCOUNTANCY

### April 26, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 5W, Richmond, Virginia.

The board will conduct routine business. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting.

**Contact:** David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8505, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY **2** 

### COMMONWEALTH COUNCIL ON AGING

April 29, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting

Department for the Aging, 1600 Forest Avenue, Suite 102, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to elect officers and establish bylaws, and to present an overview of the Department of Social Services and the Department of Medical Assistance Services.

**Contact:** Ann Y. McGee, Ed.D., Commissioner, Department for the Aging, 1600 Forest Ave., Suite 102, Richmond, VA 23229, telephone (804) 662-9333, FAX (804) 662-7052, toll-free 1-800-552-3402, or (804) 662-9333/TTY

# BOARD OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

May 12, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, 2nd Floor Board Room, Richmond, Virginia. A regular meeting to discuss Virginia agriculture and consumer protection. The board will entertain public comment at the conclusion of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who needs any accommodation in order to participate at the meeting should contact Roy E. Seward at least five days before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

**Contact:** Roy E. Seward, Secretary to the Board, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 1100 Bank St., Room 211, P.O. Box 1163, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 786-3535 or FAX (804) 371-7679.

# DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

# † May 5, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, 2nd Floor, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

An organizational meeting of the Virginia Charity Food Assistance Advisory Board with the Commissioner of the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services. The board will entertain public comment at the conclusion of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who needs any accommodation in order to participate at the meeting should contact Steven W. Thomas at least five days before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

**Contact:** Steven W. Thomas, Program Manager, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Washington Bldg., 1100 Bank St., Room 809, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-0532 or FAX (804) 371-7788.

Volume 15, Issue 16

# Virginia Farmers Market Board

# **† April 29, 1999 - 1:30 p.m.** – Open Meeting

Southeast Agricultural and Extension Center, 6321 Holland Road, Suffolk, Virginia.

A meeting to hear and approve the minutes from the prior meeting and to review the board's financial statement. In addition to routine business, the board will review and vote on operational and management procedures and guidelines prior to the 1999 fruit and vegetable harvest season for wholesale and shipping point markets in the system. The board will entertain public comment at the conclusion of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who needs any accommodation in order to participate at the meeting should contact Susan K. Simpson at least one day before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

**Contact:** Susan K. Simpson, Program Director, Division of Marketing, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Washington Bldg., 1100 Bank St., 10th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-2112 or FAX (804) 371-7786.

# STATE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

### May 11, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room C, Richmond, Virginia.

A quarterly meeting.

**Contact:** Cindy M. Berndt, Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4378.

# BOARD FOR ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, LAND SURVEYORS, CERTIFIED INTERIOR DESIGNERS AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

### April 28, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Architect Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

**Contact:** Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# May 5, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Professional Engineer Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# May 12, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Land Surveyor Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# May 19, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Landscape Architect Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

### May 26, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Certified Interior Designer Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements

can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# **COMMISSION FOR THE ARTS**

**† May 4, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Smyth Bland Regional Library, Main Street, Conference Room, Marion, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Area I Advisory Panel to review grant applications from southwest Virginia. Contact the commission for complete agenda, directions to the meeting and other details.

Contact: Peggy Baggett, Executive Director, Commission for the Arts, 223 Governor St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-3132, FAX (804) 225-4327 or (804) 225-3132/TTY ☎

# VIRGINIA BOARD FOR ASBESTOS AND LEAD

May 13, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 5W, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct routine business. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

**Contact:** David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-2176, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# BOARD OF AUDIOLOGY AND SPEECH-LANGUAGE PATHOLOGY

**† May 20, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting. Public comments will be heard at the beginning of the meeting for 15 minutes.

Contact: Senita Booker, Administrative Staff Assistant, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9111, FAX (804) 662-9523 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

# BOARD FOR BRANCH PILOTS

May 3, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. – Open Meeting Virginia Port Authority, 600 World Trade Center, Norfolk, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The board will conduct examinations.

**Contact:** Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

May 4, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting

Virginia Port Authority, 600 World Trade Center, Norfolk, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

**Contact:** Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY **2** 

# **CEMETERY BOARD**

# **† May 12, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Delivery Committee. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact Karen O'Neal at least two weeks prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8552, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# **† May 12, 1999 - 9:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A joint meeting of the Cemetery Board and the Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact Karen O'Neal at least two weeks prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8552, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

Volume 15, Issue 16

# CHILD DAY-CARE COUNCIL

# **† May 13, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Social Services, Theater Row Building, 730 East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss issues and concerns that impact child day centers, camps, school-age programs, and preschool/nursery schools. Public comment will be received at noon. Please call Rhonda Harrell prior to the meeting date for possible change in meeting time.

**Contact:** Rhonda Harrell, Division of Licensing Programs, Department of Social Services, Theatre Row Bldg., 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1775 or FAX (804) 692-2370.

# STATE BOARD FOR COMMUNITY COLLEGES

# May 12, 1999 - 2:30 p.m. - Open Meeting

Virginia Western Community College, 3095 Colonial Avenue, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Meetings of the Academic and Student Affairs Committee, the Budget and Finance Committee, and the Audit Committee.

**Contact:** Dr. Joy S. Graham, Assistant Chancellor for Public Affairs, Virginia Community College System, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 15th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2126, FAX (804) 371-0085, or (804) 371-8504/TTY **2** 

# May 12, 1999 - 3:30 p.m. - Open Meeting

Virginia Western Community College, 3095 Colonial Avenue, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Meetings of the Facilities Committee and the Personnel Committee.

**Contact:** Dr. Joy S. Graham, Assistant Chancellor for Public Affairs, Virginia Community College System, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 15th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2126, FAX (804) 371-0085, or (804) 371-8504/TTY ☎

# May 13, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Virginia Western Community College, 3095 Colonial Avenue, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular meeting of the board.

**Contact:** Dr. Joy S. Graham, Assistant Chancellor for Public Affairs, Virginia Community College System, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 15th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2126, FAX (804) 371-0085, or (804) 371-8504/TTY ☎

# **COMPENSATION BOARD**

**† May 27, 1999 - 11 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Ninth Street Office Building, 202 North 9th Street, 10th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Monthly board meeting.

**Contact:** Cindy Waddell, Administrative Assistant, Compensation Board, P.O. Box 710, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 786-0786, FAX (804) 371-0235 or (804) 786-0786/TTY

# COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES FOR AT-RISK YOUTH AND THEIR FAMILIES

# State Executive Council

April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting May 21, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting June 25, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting Theater Row Building, 730 East Broad Street, Lower Level, Training Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting. The council provides for interagency programmatic and fiscal policies, oversees the administration of funds appropriated under the Comprehensive Services Act, and advises the Governor.

**Contact:** Alan G. Saunders, Director, State Executive Council, 1604 Santa Rosa Road, Suite 137, Richmond, VA 23229, telephone (804) 662-9815 or FAX (804) 662-9831.

# **State Management Team**

**† May 4, 1999 - 9:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

St. Joseph's Villa, 8000 Brook Road, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss recommendations for policies and procedures to the State Executive Council on the Comprehensive Services Act. Public comments will be received beginning at 9:45 for 15 minutes.

**Contact:** Elisabeth Hutton, Secretary, Department of Health, P.O. Box 2448, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 371-4099.

# BOARD OF CONSERVATION AND RECREATION

# April 26, 1999 - 1 p.m. – Open Meeting

First Landing/Seashore State Park, 2500 Shore Drive, Visitor's Center, Virginia Beach, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular business meeting.

**Contact:** Leon E. App, Acting Deputy Director, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite

302, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6124, FAX (804) 786-6141 or (804) 786-2121/TTY 🕿

# DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND RECREATION

# Chippokes Plantation Farm Foundation

June 28, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. – Open Meeting Chippokes Plantation State Park, Mansion, 695 Chippokes Park Road, Conference Room, Surry, Virginia.

A general business meeting.

**Contact:** Katherine R. Wright, Executive Secretary, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 326, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-7950 or FAX (804) 371-8500.

# Board of Conservation and Development of Public Beaches

**† May 25, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Hampton City Hall, Hampton City Council Chambers, Hampton, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss proposed projects by localities requesting matching grant funds, to review the board's budget and expenses for the 1998-2000 biennium, and to receive public comments about public beaches or the activities of the board. Requests for an interpreter for the deaf must be made to Carlton Lee Hill by May 11.

**Contact:** Carlton Lee Hill, Staff Advisor, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 206, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3998 or FAX (804) 786-1798.

### Falls of the James Scenic River Advisory Board

#### † May 6, 1999 - Noon - Open Meeting

City Hall, 900 East Broad Street, Planning Commission Conference Room, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss river issues. A public comment period will follow the business meeting. Requests for an interpreter for the deaf should be made in advance of the meeting to Richard Gibbons.

**Contact:** Richard G. Gibbons, Environmental Program Manager, Department of Conservation and Recreation, Division of Planning and Recreation Resources, 203 Governor St., Suite 326, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4132, FAX (804) 371-7899 or (804) 786-2121/TTY

# **BOARD FOR CONTRACTORS**

# **† April 27, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Tradesman Committee to consider items of interest relating to the tradesman section of the Board for Contractors. Special interest will be on the backflow prevention device workers regulations. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact George Bridewell at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: George O. Bridewell, Regulatory Board Administrator, Board for Contractors, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-2607, FAX (804) 367-2474 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# **BOARD OF CORRECTIONS**

**† May 11, 1999 - 9:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia

A meeting of the Correctional Services Committee to discuss correctional services matters which may be presented to the full board.

**Contact:** Barbara Fellows, Administrative Assistant to the Board, Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr., Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3235 or FAX (804) 674-3130.

#### **† May 12, 1999 - 8:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Administration Committee to discuss administration matters which may be presented to the full board.

**Contact:** Barbara Fellows, Administrative Assistant to the Board, Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr., Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3235 or FAX (804) 674-3130.

# **† May 12, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the full board. Public comment will be received.

**Contact:** Barbara Fellows, Administrative Assistant to the Board, Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr., Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3235 or FAX (804) 674-3130.

# CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES BOARD

**† May 4, 1999 - 11 a.m.** – Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room D, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting to review various grant applications.

**Contact:** Karen Cress, Board Secretary, Department of Criminal Justice Services, 805 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-7841 or FAX (804) 786-0588.

**† May 4, 1999 - 12:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, 4th Floor West Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Victim/Witness Issues Advisory Committee to conduct business related to victim/witness issues within the Commonwealth. The meeting will begin immediately after the adjournment of the full Criminal Justice Services Board meeting.

**Contact:** Mandie Patterson, Section Chief, Victims' Services, Department of Criminal Justice Services, 805 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3923 or FAX (804) 786-7980.

# **BOARD OF DENTISTRY**

April 29, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A panel of the board will conduct formal administrative hearings in the matter of disciplinary cases. This is a public meeting; however, no public comment will be taken.

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9906 or (804) 662-7197/TTY

April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Legislative/Regulatory Committee to address (i) finalizing emergency regulations regarding applications and renewal fees for restricted volunteer licenses for dentists and dental hygienists, (ii) petition for rulemaking regarding dental hygiene services in nursing homes, (iii) § 54.1-2718 of the Code of Virginia providing advertising, and (iv) the use of Class II lasers. Public comment will be taken at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9906 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

April 30, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to receive committee reports and review consent orders, minutes and general requests made to the board. Public comment will be taken at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9906 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

# VIRGINIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP

April 27, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting

Virginia Economic Development Partnership, 901 East Byrd Street, West Tower, 19th Floor, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Board of Directors to discuss issues relating to economic development in Virginia.

**Contact:** Pandy Brazeau, Administrative Assistant, Virginia Economic Development Partnership, 901 E. Byrd St., P.O. Box 798, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 371-8106 or FAX (804) 371-8112.

# **BOARD OF EDUCATION**

**† May 18, 1999 - 7 p.m.** – Public Hearing John Marshall High School, 4225 Old Brook Road, Richmond, Virginia.

**† May 18 1999 - 7 p.m.** – Public Hearing Minnie Howard High School, 3801 West Braddock Road, Alexandria, Virginia.

**† May 18 1999 - 7 p.m.** – Public Hearing Lake Taylor High School, 1384 Kempsville Road, Norfolk, Virginia.

**† May 18 1999 - 7 p.m.** – Public Hearing Virginia Middle School, 501 Piedmont Avenue, Bristol, Virginia.

**† May 25, 1999 - 7 p.m.** – Public Hearing Patrick Henry High School, 2102 Grandin Road, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia.

**† May 25, 1999 - 7 p.m.** – Public HearingRobert E. Lee High School, 1200 North Coalter Street, Staunton, Virginia.

The Board of Education announces its intention to develop measures addressing school accountability. As a part of the process, the board will conduct a series of public hearings to receive public comment on key education issues including rewards and consequences for schools which achieve, or fail to achieve, accreditation under Virginia's new Regulations

Establishing Standards for Accrediting Public Schools in Virginia (8 VAC 20-131-10 et seq.). Following this initial round of public hearings, the board will initiate the process to amend its accreditation regulations pursuant to the Administrative Process Act and applicable executive orders. The board will hold an extensive second round of public hearings after its draft proposals are published in the Virginia Register.

Contact: Dr. Margaret N. Roberts. Executive Assistant for Board Relations, Department of Education, Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., P.O. Box 2120, Richmond, VA 23218-2120, telephone (804) 225-2540, FAX (804) 225-2524 or toll-free 1-800-292-3820.

# STATE EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD

May 7, 1999 - 1 p.m. - Open Meeting

Embassy Suites Hotel, 2925 Emerywood Parkway, Richmond, Virginia.

A quarterly meeting.

Contact: Irene Hamilton, Executive Secretary Senior, Office of Emergency Medical Services, Department of Health, 1583 E. Parham Rd., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 371-3500, FAX (804) 371-3543 or toll-free 1-800-523-6019.

# DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

† April 28, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street, Training Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Citizens Wetlands Advisory Committee to review, revise and develop a wetlands strategy for the Commonwealth which addresses the administration's commitment to a net-gain in wetland acreage. The committee will address questions related to meeting the commitment and wetlands protection and restoration goals of the Chesapeake Executive Council Directive There will be an opportunity for public No. 97-2. comment at the end of the meeting. Additional meetings are scheduled for May 26, June 30, July 28, August 25 and September 29, 1999. These dates and locations are subject to change and persons interested in attending should confirm with William K. Norris.

Contact: William K. Norris, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4022 or FAX (804) 698-4019.

# **† May 6, 1999 - 7 p.m.** – Public Hearing

1 County Complex Court, Occoquan Room, Prince William, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on the proposed modification of the Prince William County Sanitary Landfill Permit #29. The facility is located on State Route 234, 0.4 miles east of the junction of State Route 646 and 234 near Independent Hill in Prince William

County. The proposal includes modifications to the liner design, the relocation of two ground water monitoring wells, and the establishment of ground water protection standards.

Contact: Michael J. Dieter, Department of Environmental Quality, Office of Waste Permitting, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4146.

**† May 12, 1999 - 7 p.m.** – Public Hearing Liberty High School, 6300 Independence Avenue, Auditorium, Bealeton, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on an application from Virginia Electric and Power Company to construct and operate a simple cycle combustion turbine station located off Route 655, approximately two miles northeast of Remington in Fauquier County, Virginia.

Terry Darton, Department of Environmental Contact: Quality, Fredericksburg Satellite Office, 806 Westwood Office Park, Fredericksburg, VA 22401, telephone (540) 899-4600.

# Virginia Ground Water Protection Steering Committee

May 18, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss ground water protection issues. Meeting minutes and agenda may be obtained from Marv Ann Massie.

Mary Ann Massie, Environmental Program Contact: Planner, Department of Environmental Quality, P. O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 698-4042.

# Virginia Pollution Prevention Advisory Committee

May 26, 1999 - 10:30 a.m. - Open Meeting Department of Environmental Quality, Piedmont Regional Office, 4949-A Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia

A meeting to discuss the voluntary pollution prevention program.

Contact: Sharon K. Baxter, Pollution Prevention Manager, Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street. Richmond, VA 23221, telephone (804) 698-4344 or toll-free 1-800-592-5482.

# VIRGINIA FIRE SERVICES BOARD

## † June 10, 1999 - 8:30 a.m. - Open Meeting

Holiday Inn Fair Oaks, 11787 Lee Jackson Memorial Highway, Fairfax, Virginia.

Committees will meet as follows to discuss fire training and policies. The meetings are open to the public for input and comments.

Fire/EMS Education and Training Committee - 8:30 a.m. Legislative Liaison Committee - 10 a.m. Fire Prevention and Control Committee - 1 p.m.

**Contact:** Troy H. Lapetina, Executive Director, Department of Fire Programs, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 18th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-0220.

#### **† June 11, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Holiday Inn Fair Oaks, 11787 Lee Jackson Memorial Highway, Fairfax, Virginia.

A business meeting to discuss fire training and policies. The meeting is open to the public for comments and input.

**Contact:** Troy H. Lapetina, Executive Director, Department of Fire Programs, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 18th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-0220.

# BOARD OF FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND EMBALMERS

#### **† May 5, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Special Conference Committee to hold informal hearings. Public comment will not be received.

**Contact:** Cheri Emma-Leigh, Administrative Staff Assistant, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9907, FAX (804) 662-9523 or (804) 662-7197/TTY **2** 

# **† May 12, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 5W, Richmond, Virginia.

A joint meeting of the board and the Cemetery Board to discuss related issues. There will be a 15-minute public comment period.

**Contact:** Cheri Emma-Leigh, Administrative Staff Assistant, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9907, FAX (804) 662-9523 or (804) 662-7197/TTY

# **† May 25, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 3, Richmond, Virginia

A meeting of the Legislative Committee to discuss legislative issues for 2000. There will be a 15-minute public comment period.

**Contact:** Cheri Emma-Leigh, Administrative Staff Assistant, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9907, FAX (804) 662-9523 or (804) 662-7197/TTY **2** 

# **BOARD OF GAME AND INLAND FISHERIES**

May 6, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

May 7, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, 4000 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The board will meet to consider for final adoption wildlife regulations to be effective from July 1999 through June 2001. Under board procedures, regulatory actions occur over two sequential board meetings. At the May 6, 1999, meeting, the board will determine whether the amendments to regulations for game wildlife, hunting and trapping, including the length of seasons, bag limits and methods of take for game, which were proposed at its March 4, 1999, board meeting, will be adopted as final regulations. The board will solicit comments from the public during the public hearing portion of the meeting on May 6, at which time any interested citizen present shall be heard. The board reserves the right to adopt final amendments which may be more liberal than, or more stringent than, the regulations currently in effect or the regulation amendments proposed at the March 4, 1999, board meeting, as necessary for the proper management of wildlife resources.

Additional information on this review of regulations, including a list of the specific regulations subject to review and additional details on opportunities for public involvement, was published in a separate announcement in the "General Notices" section of the February 15, 1999, *Virginia Register*.

The board may discuss general and administrative issues. The board may hold an executive session before the public session begins on May 6. If the board completes its agenda on May 6, it may not convene on May 7, the second of the scheduled two days of the meeting. The board may elect to hold a dinner Wednesday evening, May 5, at a location and time to be determined.

**Contact:** Phil Smith, Policy Analyst, Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, 4010 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-1000 or FAX (804) 367-2311.

# HAMMOND COMMISSION

April 29, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting Crystal Towers Building, 145 West Campbell Avenue, Roanoke, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting on substance abuse and addiction services. Public comment will be received at 10 a.m. Following the meeting commission members will visit some of the programs operating in Roanoke.

**Contact:** Fran M. Sadler, Administrative Assistant, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1108 or FAX (804) 692-1123.

# STATE BOARD OF HEALTH

April 29, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting Carilion New River Valley Medical Center, 2900 Tyler Road, Christiansburg, Virginia.

A work session of the board.

**Contact:** Paul W. Matthias, Staff to the Board, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main St., Room 227, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-2909 or FAX (804) 786-4616.

# April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Carilion New River Valley Medical Center, 2900 Tyler Road, Christiansburg, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A business meeting.

**Contact:** Paul W. Matthias, Staff to the Board, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main St., Room 227, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-2909 or FAX (804) 786-4616.

# DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

**† April 28, 1999 - 6 p.m.** – Open Meeting

The Central Library, 201 East Market Street, Charlottesville, Virginia 🗟 (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Virginia HIV Community Planning Committee to assess community needs for HIV prevention.

**Contact:** Elaine G. Martin, Coordinator, HIV Prevention Services, Department of Health, P.O. Room 112, Box 2448, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-0877 or toll-free 1-800-533-4148.

# **BOARD FOR HEARING AID SPECIALISTS**

NOTE: CHANGE IN MEETING TIME

May 11, 1999 - 8 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss regulatory review and other matters requiring board action, including disciplinary cases. All meetings are subject to cancellation. Time of meeting is subject to change. Call the board's office at least 24 hours in advance. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

**Contact:** Nancy Taylor Feldman, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone

(804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-2474 or (804) 367-9753/TTY☎

# STATE COUNCIL OF HIGHER EDUCATION FOR VIRGINIA

### **† May 18, 1999 - 8 a.m.** – Open Meeting

James Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A monthly meeting of the council and its committees.

**Contact:** Pamela H. Landrum, Administrative Staff Assistant, State Council of Higher Education, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 9th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2602 or FAX (804) 371-7911.

# HOPEWELL INDUSTRIAL SAFETY COUNCIL

May 4, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

June 1, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Hopewell Community Center, 100 West City Point Road, Hopewell, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Local Emergency Preparedness Committee meeting on emergency preparedness as required by SARA Title III.

**Contact:** Robert Brown, Emergency Services Coordinator, 300 N. Main St., Hopewell, VA 23860, telephone (804) 541-2298.

# COUNCIL ON INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

**† May 6, 1999 - 1 p.m.** – Open Meeting Location to be announced.

A regular business meeting of the Virginia Geographic Information Network.

**Contact:** Bill Shinar, Virginia Geographic Information Network Coordinator, Council on Information Management, 110 S. 7th St., Suite 135, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-3622.

May 14, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting Location to be announced.

The council's final meeting.

**Contact:** Linda Hening, Administrative Staff Specialist, Council on Information Management, 110 S. 7th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-3622.

# STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

May 12, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Northern Virginia Detention Home, 200 South Whiting Street, Alexandria, Virginia.

The Secure Program Committee and the Nonsecure Program Committee will meet at 9 a.m. The full board will meet at 10 a.m. to act on matters relating to the certification of residential and nonresidential juvenile justice programs and to consider such other matters as may come before the board.

**Contact:** Donald R. Carignan, Policy Analyst Senior, Department of Juvenile Justice, 700 E. Franklin St., P.O. Box 1110, Richmond, VA 23218-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743 or FAX (804) 371-0773.

# DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

# Virginia Apprenticeship Council

**† May 6, 1999 - 9:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Labor and Industry, Powers-Taylor Building, 13 South 13th Street, Mezzanine, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Virginia Apprenticeship Council Subcommittee.

**Contact:** Beverly Donati, Assistant Program Director, Department of Labor and Industry, Powers-Taylor Bldg., 13 S. 13th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-2382, FAX (804) 786-8418 or (804) 786-2376/TTY **2** 

#### Safety and Health Codes Board

#### May 17, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room C, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Safety and Health Codes Board to discuss:

1. 16 VAC 25-90-1910.178, Powered Industrial Truck (PITS) Operator Training, Final Rule, Parts 1910, 1915, 1917, 1918 and 1926; and

2. 16 VAC 25-90-1910.146, Permit-Required Confined Spaces, Final Rule, and Correction.

**Contact:** Regina P. Cobb, Agency Management Analyst Senior, Department of Labor and Industry, Powers-Taylor Bldg., 13 S. 13th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-0610, FAX (804) 786-8418 or (804) 786-2376.

# VIRGINIA MANUFACTURED HOUSING BOARD

May 20, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting Department of Housing and Community Development, 501 North 2nd Street, The Jackson Center, 2nd Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular monthly meeting.

**Contact:** Curtis L. McIver, Associate Director, Department of Housing and Community Development, Manufactured Housing Office, The Jackson Center, 501 N. 2nd St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-7160 or (804) 371-7089/TTY ■

# MARINE RESOURCES COMMISSION

April 27, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. – Open Meeting May 25, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. – Open Meeting June 22, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. – Open Meeting

Marine Resources Commission, 2600 Washington Avenue, Room 403, Newport News, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The commission will hear and decide the following marine environmental matters at 9:30 a.m.: permit applications for projects in wetlands, bottom lands, coastal primary sand dunes and beaches; appeals of local wetland board decisions; and policy and regulatory issues. The commission will hear and decide the following fishery management items at approximately noon: regulatory proposals; fishery management plans; fishery conservation issues; licensing; and shellfish leasing. Meetings are open to the public. Testimony will be taken under oath from parties addressing agenda items on permits and licensing. Public comments will be taken on resource matters, regulatory issues and items scheduled for public hearing.

**Contact:** LaVerne Lewis, Secretary to the Commission, Marine Resources Commission, P.O. Box 756, Newport News, VA 23607-0756, telephone (757) 247-2261, toll-free 1-800-541-4646 or (757) 247-2292/TTY

# **BOARD OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES**

May 11, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss medical assistance services policy and to take action on issues pertinent to the board.

**Contact:** Leah D. Hamaker, Board Liaison, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4626 or FAX (804) 371-4981.

# **BOARD OF MEDICINE**

May 5, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Committee on Acupuncturists will discuss regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-110-10 et seq., Licensed Acupuncturists, and such other issues which may be

presented. The committee will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

# May 5, 1999 - 1 p.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Committee on Radiologic Technologists will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding 18 VAC 85-101-10 et seq., Regulations Governing the Licensure of Radiologic Technologists and Radiologic Technologists-Limited, and such other issues which may be presented. The advisory committee will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

### May 6, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Board on Occupational Therapy will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding the regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-80-10 et seq., Regulations for Licensure of Occupational Therapists, and such other issues which may be presented. The advisory board will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

### May 6, 1999 - 1 p.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Board on Respiratory Care will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding the regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-40-10 et seq., Regulations Governing the Practice of Respiratory Care Practitioners, and such other issues which may be presented.

**Contact:** Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY 🕿

# May 7, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Board on Physical Therapy will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding the regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-31-10 et seq., Regulations Governing the Practice of Physical Therapy, and such other issues which may be presented. The advisory board will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

# May 7, 1999 - 1 p.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Committee on Physician Assistants will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding the regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-50-10 et seq., Regulations Governing the Practice of Physician Assistants, and such other issues which may be presented. The committee will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

### **† May 21, 1999 - 1 p.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Legislative Committee to discuss legislative issues related to board activities and regulations, to review any pending regulations pursuant to regulatory review or legislative action, and to consider any other information that may come before the committee. The committee will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

- **† June 3, 1999 8 a.m.** Open Meeting
- † June 4, 1999 8 a.m. Open Meeting

† June 5, 1999 - 8 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The full board will meet on June 3, in open session, to conduct general board business, receive committee and board reports, and discuss any other items which may come before the board. The board will also meet on June 3, 4 and 5 to review reports, interview licensees/applicants, conduct administrative proceedings, and make decisions on disciplinary matters. The board will review any regulations that may come before it. The board will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9943 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

# Informal Conference Committee

# April 28, 1999 - 8 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

# April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Williamsburg Marriott, 50 Kingsmill Road, Williamsburg, Virginia.

### May 6, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Sheraton Inn, 2801 Plank Road, Fredericksburg, Virginia.

A meeting to inquire into allegations that certain practitioners may have violated laws and regulations governing the practice of medicine and other healing arts in Virginia. The committee will meet in open and closed sessions pursuant to § 2.1-344 A 7 and A 15 of the Code of Virginia. Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Karen W. Perrine, Deputy Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 786-7693, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

# STATE MENTAL HEALTH, MENTAL RETARDATION AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES BOARD

May 14, 1999 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the State Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services Board intends to adopt regulations entitled: 12 VAC 35-171-10 et seq. Certification of Providers of Mental Health/Mental Retardation Case Management **Services.** The proposed regulation defines the qualifications that mental health and mental retardation case managers must have for Medicaid reimbursement.

Statutory Authority: § 37.1-182.2 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until 5 p.m. on Friday, May 14, 1999, to Cathy Rowe, Office of Mental Retardation Services, Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services, P.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 23218.

**Contact:** Marion Greenfield, Policy Analyst, Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services, P.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 23218-1797, telephone (804) 786-6431 or FAX (804) 371-0092.

# **VIRGINIA MILITARY INSTITUTE**

May 8, 1999 - 8:30 a.m. – Open Meeting Virginia Military Institute, Preston Library, Turman Room, Lexington, Virginia.

A meeting of the Board of Visitors to (i) hear committee reports; (ii) approve the budget, (iii) approve awards, distinctions and diplomas; (iv) discuss personnel changes; and (v) elect a president pro tem. Public comment will not be received.

**Contact:** Colonel Edwin L. Dooley, Jr., Secretary to the Board, Virginia Military Institute, Superintendent's Office, Lexington, VA 24450, telephone (540) 464-7206 or (540) 464-7660/TTY **2** 

# MILK COMMISSION

#### **† May 19, 1999 - 10:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting Department of Forestry, 900 Natural Resources Drive, Training Room, 1st Floor, Charlottesville, Virginia.

A regular meeting to discuss industry issues, distributor licensing, Virginia base transfers, Virginia baseholding license amendments, regulations, and fiscal matters and to review reports from the staff of the Milk Commission. The commission may consider other matters pertaining to its responsibilities. Any persons who require accommodations in order to participate in the meeting should contact Edward C. Wilson, Jr., at least five days prior to the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

**Contact:** Edward C. Wilson, Jr., Deputy Administrator, Milk Commission, 200 N. 9th St., Suite 915, Richmond, VA 23219-3414, telephone (804) 786-2013, FAX (804) 786-3779 or (804) 786-2013/TTY **2** 

# BOARD OF NURSING

**† April 28, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

**† May 10, 1999 -9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A Special Conference Committee will conduct informal conferences with licensees and certificate holders. Public comments will not be received.

**Contact:** Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512 or (804) 662-7197/TTY **2** 

#### **† May 10, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Education Special Conference Committee will review proposals and reports from nursing and nurse aide education programs and prepare recommendations for the board. Public comments will not be received.

Contact: Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

#### **† May 10, 1999 - 1 p.m.** – Open Meeting

**† May 13, 1999 - 8:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A panel of the board will conduct formal hearings with licensees and certificate holders. Public comments will not be received.

**Contact:** Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512 or (804) 662-7197/TTY **2** 

### † May 11, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the full board to conduct regular business.

Contact: Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

### **† May 11, 1999 - 1 p.m.** – Public Hearing

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A public hearing on the Mutual Recognition Model of Nursing Regulation.

Contact: Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

#### **† May 12, 1999 - 8:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to conduct formal hearings with licensees and certificate holders. Beginning at 1 p.m., two panels of the board will conduct formal hearings with licensees and certificate holders. Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

# **BOARD OF NURSING HOME ADMINISTRATORS**

**† April 27, 1999 - 9:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting. Public comments will be heard at the beginning of the meeting for 15 minutes.

Contact: Senita Booker, Administrative Staff Assistant, Board of Nursing Home Administrators, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9111, FAX (804) 662-9523 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

### VIRGINIA OUTDOORS FOUNDATION

**† May 12, 1999 - 10:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting Chamber of Commerce, Conference Room, Lynchburg, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Trust Fund Advisory Board (Region 5) to conduct the general business of the board, review applications received for funding under the Open-Space Lands Preservation Trust Fund, and make recommendations on funding. Public comment will be received after the conclusion of the regular business meeting.

**Contact:** Sherry Buttrick, Director, Virginia Outdoors Foundation, 1010 Harris St., #4, Charlottesville, VA 22903, telephone (804) 293-3423 or FAX (804) 293-3859.

# **BOARD OF PHARMACY**

† April 29, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting
† May 11, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

A Special Conference Committee will hear informal conferences. Public comments will not be received.

Volume 15, Issue 16

Contact: Elizabeth Scott Russell, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9911, FAX (804) 662-9313 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

**† May 6, 1999 - 12:30 p.m.** – Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Regulation Committee. Public comments will not be received.

Contact: Elizabeth Scott Russell, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9911, FAX (804) 662-9313 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

# POLYGRAPH EXAMINERS ADVISORY BOARD

June 15, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Conference Room 4-West, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A public hearing to receive comments on existing regulations, followed by the board's regular meeting. The board will discuss regulatory review and other matters requiring board action, including disciplinary cases. The polygraph licensing examination will also be conducted.

**Contact:** Nancy Taylor Feldman, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-2474 or (804) 367-9753/TTY

# BOARD OF LICENSED PROFESSIONAL COUNSELORS, MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPISTS AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT PROFESSIONALS

### **† April 26, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia

An informal conference will be held pursuant to § 9-6.14:11 of the Code of Virginia. No public comment will be received.

**Contact:** Evelyn Brown, Executive Director, or Joyce Williams, Administrative Assistant, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9912 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

**† May 12, 1999 - 2 p.m.** – Open Meeting **† May 13, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting The Mountain Lake Hotel, Mountain Lake, Virginia. A meeting of the Regulatory Committee to discuss ways to improve consistency among its regulations and address issues pertaining to education requirements for certified substance abuse counselors. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

**Contact:** Janet Delorme, Deputy Executive Director, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9575, FAX (804) 662-9943 or (804) 662-7197/TTY

# BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL REGULATION

May 13, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A public hearing in connection with the board's study of the need to regulate nonprofit cemeteries. The study is a result of House Joint Resolution 745, which passed in the 1999 General Assembly Session. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

**Contact:** Debra L. Vought, Agency Management Analyst, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8519 or (804) 367-9753.

### May 13, 1999 - 1:30 p.m. – Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A public hearing in connection with the board's study of the need to increase the regulation of landscape architects from certification to licensure. The study is a result of Senate Joint Resolution 431, which passed in the 1999 General Assembly Session. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

**Contact:** Debra L. Vought, Agency Management Analyst, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8519 or (804) 367-9753.

# DEPARTMENT OF PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL REGULATION

May 4, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on proposed changes to the Public Participation Guidelines for the Polygraph Examiners Advisory Board which will incorporate the Virginia boxing and wrestling events regulatory program into the guidelines. At 10:30, public comment will be heard regarding the regulatory program of Virginia boxing and wrestling events.

**Contact:** David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8595, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \*

### May 4, 1999 - 10:30 a.m. – Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

May 28, 1999 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation intends to adopt regulations entitled: **18 VAC 120-40-10 et seq. Virginia Professional Boxing and Wrestling Events Regulations.** The purpose of the proposed regulations is to regulate professional boxing and wrestling in Virginia. The proposed regulations replace the emergency regulations that became effective on August 11, 1998. Aside from a few editorial changes, the language of the proposed regulations is unchanged from the emergency regulations.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-201 and 54.1-831 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: David Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8507, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGY

**† April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Regulatory Committee to discuss issues pertaining to continuing education, inactive licensure and temporary licensure. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting. **Contact:** Janet Delorme, Deputy Executive Director, Board of Psychology, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9575, FAX (804) 662-9913 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

#### **† May 7, 1999 - 10:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia

A meeting of the Examination Committee to review examinations administered on April 14, 1999. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: La Donna Duncan, Administrative Assistant, Board of Psychology, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9913, FAX (804) 662-9943 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

#### † June 8, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the full board to discuss general business and receive committee reports. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: La Donna Duncan, Administrative Assistant, Board of Psychology, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9575, FAX (804) 662-9943 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

# VIRGINIA RECYCLING MARKETS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

### † May 11, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority, 2104 West Laburnum Avenue, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A quarterly meeting. Meetings are dependent on a quorum of 10. Subcommittee meetings may be held prior to or after the general council meeting.

**Contact:** Michael P. Murphy, Director, Environmental Enhancement, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 698-4003, FAX (804) 698-4319, (804) 698-4021/TTY **a**, toll free 1-800-592-5482 or e-mail mpmurphy@deq.state.va.us.

# STATE REHABILITATION COUNCIL

# May 10, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Woodrow Wilson Rehabilitation Center, Fishersville, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

#### A regular business meeting.

Contact: Kay Magill, State Rehabilitation Council Liaison, Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms Dr., Richmond, VA 23288, telephone (804) 662-7527, FAX (804) 662-7696, or toll-free 1-800-552-5019 or 1-800-464-9950/TTY ☎

# BOARD OF REHABILITATIVE SERVICES

June 10, 1999 -10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms Drive, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly business meeting.

**Contact:** Barbara G. Tyson, Administrative Staff Assistant, Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms Dr., P.O. Box K-300, Richmond, VA 23288-0300, telephone (804) 662-7010, toll-free 1-800-552-5019 or (804) 662-7000/TTY

# VIRGINIA RESOURCES AUTHORITY

#### May 11, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting

Virginia Resources Authority, Mutual Building, 909 East Main Street, Suite 700, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to approve minutes of the prior meeting, to review the authority's operations for the prior month, and to consider other matters and take other actions as the authority may deem appropriate. The planned agenda of the meeting will be available at the offices of the authority one week prior to the date of the meeting.

**Contact:** Robert W. Lauterberg, Executive Director, Virginia Resources Authority, P.O. Box 1300, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 644-3100 or FAX (804) 644-3109.

# **RICHMOND HOSPITAL AUTHORITY**

May 28, 1999 - 11 a.m. – Open Meeting Richmond Nursing Home, 1900 Cool Lane, 2nd Floor Classroom, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners to discuss nursing home operations and related matters.

**Contact**: Marilyn H. West, Chairman, Richmond Hospital Authority, 700 E. Main St., Suite 904, P.O. Box 548, Richmond, VA 23218-0548, telephone (804) 782-1938 or FAX (804) 782-9771.

# VIRGINIA SMALL BUSINESS FINANCING AUTHORITY

April 27, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Business Assistance, 707 East Main Street, 3rd Floor, Main Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Loan Committee to review applications for loans submitted to the authority for approval. The time will be moved to 8:30 a.m. if the VSBFA Board of Directors decides to combine meeting dates with the VSBFA Loan Committee.

**Contact:** Cathleen M. Surface, Executive Director, Virginia Small Business Financing Authority, P.O. Box 446,

Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-8254 or FAX (804) 225-3384.

# DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

May 8, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Public Hearing J. Sargeant Reynolds Community College, 1651 East Parham Road, Building A, Room 132, Richmond, Virginia.

#### May 15, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Public Hearing

Jefferson Center Foundation, Junior League of Roanoke Valley, 541 Luck Avenue, Atrium, Roanoke, Virginia.

A public hearing held in accordance with federal regulations for the Child Care and Development Fund Plan (CCDF). Every two years the Department of Social Services, lead agency for CCDF, is required to prepare a plan for administration and implementation of the Child Care and Development Fund Program. This includes (i) the process used in developing the plan; (ii) a description of child care services offered, including payment rates and eligibility criteria: (iii) processes with parents to inform them of the availability of child care services and the application process; (iv) activities and services to improve the quality of child care; and (v) health and safety requirements for providers. Prior to May 1, 1999, each local department of social services will receive a copy of the plan. Written comments may be submitted from May 1 through May 30, 1999.

**Contact:** Wenda Singer, Human Services Resource Consultant, Child Day Care Unit, Department of Social Services, Child Day Care Unit, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219-1849, telephone (804) 692-2201, FAX (804) 692-2209 or toll-free 1-800-552-7096/TTY ☎

# **BOARD OF SOCIAL WORK**

May 6, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

May 7, 1999 - 1 p.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

An informal administrative hearing will be held pursuant to § 9-6.14:11 of the Code of Virginia. Public comments will not be received.

**Contact:** Evelyn Brown, Executive Director, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9914 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

### May 7, 1999 - 1 p.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular board meeting. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

**Contact:** Evelyn Brown, Executive Director, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9914 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

# VIRGINIA SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION BOARD

**† May 20, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting Virginia Colonial Farm Credit, 7104 Mechanicsville Turnpike, Mechanicsville, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular business meeting.

Contact: Leon App, Acting Deputy Director, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 302, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6124, FAX (804) 786-6141 or (804) 786-2121/TTY ☎

# COUNCIL ON TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

# **† May 27, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

State Capitol, Capitol Square, 1st Floor, House Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

A monthly business meeting.

Contact: Jamie Breeden, Administrative Staff Specialist, Department of Information Technology, 110 S. 7th St., 3rd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone or FAX (804) 371-5506 or (804) 371-8076/TTY ☎

# VIRGINIA TOURISM CORPORATION

# April 28, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

The Homestead, Hot Springs, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Marketing Development Committee to review applications submitted for cooperative marketing program funds for FY 2000. Public comment will be taken at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Judy H. Bulls, Assistant to the President and CEO, Virginia Tourism Corporation, 901 East Byrd St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-8174, FAX (804) 786-1919 or (804) 371-0327/TTY ☎

# April 29, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

The Homestead, Hot Springs, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Board of Directors to discuss strategic planning and budgets. Public comment will be taken at the beginning of the meeting.

**Contact:** Judy H. Bulls, Assistant to the President and CEO, Virginia Tourism Corporation, 901 East Byrd St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-8174, FAX (804) 786-1919 or (804) 371-0327/TTY **2** 

# TRANSPORTATION SAFETY BOARD

May 4, 1999 - 11 a.m. - Open Meeting

Sheraton Waterside Hotel, Norfolk, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss transportation safety issues.

**Contact:** Angelisa Jennings, Management Analyst, Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 W. Broad St., Room 405, Richmond, VA 23269, telephone (804) 367-2026.

# COMMONWEALTH TRANSPORTATION BOARD

# **† May 19, 1999 - 2 p.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Transportation, 1401 East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A work session of the board and the Department of Transportation staff.

**Contact:** Shirley J. Ybarra, Secretary of Transportation, 1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6675.

# **† May 20, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Transportation, 1401 East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A monthly meeting of the board to vote on proposals presented regarding bids, permits, additions and deletions to the highway system, and any other matters requiring board approval. Public comment will be received at the outset of the meeting on items on the meeting agenda for which the opportunity for comment has not been afforded the public in another forum. Remarks will be limited to five minutes. Large groups are asked to select one individual to speak for the group. The board reserves the right to amend these conditions. Separate committee meetings may be held on call of the chairman. Contact Department of Transportation Public Affairs at (804) 786-2715 for schedule.

**Contact:** Shirley J. Ybarra, Secretary of Transportation, 1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6675.

# DEPARTMENT FOR THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

# Statewide Rehabilitation Council for the Blind

† June 5, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department for the Visually Handicapped, 397 Azalea Avenue, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly meeting of the council to advise the department on matters related to vocational

rehabilitation services for the blind and visually impaired citizens of the Commonwealth.

**Contact:** James G. Taylor, Vocational Rehabilitation Program Director, Department for the Visually Handicapped, 397 Azalea Ave., Richmond, VA 23227, telephone (804) 371-3111, FAX (804) 371-3351, toll-free 1-800-622-2155 or (804) 371-3140/TTY

# **Vocational Rehabilitation Services**

April 27, 1999 - 6:30 p.m. – Public Hearing Virginia Rehabilitation Center for the Blind and Visually Impaired, 401 Azalea Avenue, Richmond, Virginia.

Meetings to invite comments from the public regarding vocational rehabilitation services for persons with visual disabilities. All comments will be considered in developing the state plan for this program.

**Contact:** James G. Taylor, Vocational Rehabilitation Program Director, Department for the Visually Handicapped, 397 Azalea Ave., Richmond, VA 23227, telephone (804) 371-3111, FAX (804) 371-3351 or toll-free 1-800-622-2155.

# VIRGINIA VOLUNTARY FORMULARY BOARD

**† May 13, 1999 - 10:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, 2nd Floor Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to review product data and other material for products being considered for inclusion in the Virginia Voluntary Formulary.

**Contact:** James K. Thomson, Director, Bureau of Pharmacy Services, Virginia Voluntary Formulary Board, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., Room S-45, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4326 or FAX (804) 371-0236.

# VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD

April 29, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Public Hearing

Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street, Training Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on the Virginia Waste Management Board's Notice of Intended Regulatory Action for Amendment 15 to the Virginia Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, 9 VAC 20-60-12 et seq. Amendment 15 will update the Commonwealth's regulations to coordinate with recent changes to federal regulations, replace existing text with incorporation of federal regulations, correct errors, and improve clarity.

**Contact:** Robert G. Wickline, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4213 or FAX (804) 698-4327.

**† May 4, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

**† May 17, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting

Department of Environmental Quality, Piedmont Regional Office, 4949-A Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee to discuss the development of the proposed Regulation for Transportation of Solid and Medical Wastes on State Waters, 9 VAC 20-170-10 et seq.

**Contact:** Lily Choi, Environmental Engineer Senior, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4054 or FAX (804) 698-4032.

# BOARD FOR WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITY OPERATORS

May 20, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 5 West, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct routine board business. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting.

**Contact:** David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8595, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

# STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

April 27, 1999 - 7 p.m. – Public Hearing

Weyers Cave Community Center, 1.5 miles east of I-81, 683 Weyers Cave Road (SR 256), Weyers Cave, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on the proposed issuance of the Virginia Pollution Abatement Permit for Houff's Feed Fertilizer Company, Inc., land application of both municipal and industrial sludge to agricultural fields in both Augusta and Rockingham counties.

**Contact:** Kemper Loyd, Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Rd., Harrisonburg, VA 22801, telephone (540) 574-7800.

### \* \* \* \* \* \* \* \*

**May 5, 1999 - 3 p.m.** – Public Hearing Alleghany County Administration Building, 110 Rosedale Avenue, Covington, Virginia.

May 28, 1999 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the State Water Control Board intends to amend regulations entitled: **9 VAC 25-260-5 et seq.** Water Quality Standards. The purpose of the proposed

amendments is to correct the downstream limits of a stocked trout stream classification for the Jackson River in Covington, Virginia. If adopted as proposed, the amendment would change 1.7 miles of stream from a stocked trout designation to mountainous zone waters.

<u>Question and Answer Period</u>: A question and answer period will be held one-half hour prior to the beginning of the public hearing at the same location. Department of Environmental Quality staff will be present to answer questions regarding the proposed action.

Accessibility to Persons with Disabilities: The meeting will be held at a public facility believed to be accessible to persons with disabilities. Any person with questions on the accessibility of the facilities should contact Elleanore Daub, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, or by telephone at (804) 698-4111 or 1-800-592-5482 or TTY (804) 698-4261. Persons needing interpreter services for the deaf must notify Ms. Daub no later than April 28, 1999.

The agency requests comments on any aspect of the proposal and also on the costs and benefits of the proposal.

Other Pertinent Information: The department has conducted analyses on the proposed action related to basis, purpose, substance, issues, need, estimated impacts, applicable federal requirements and alternative approaches and schedule for reevaluation. These analyses as well as copies of the amendments may be viewed at the Department of Environmental Quality, West Central Regional Office, 3019 Peters Creek Road, Roanoke, VA 24019, or obtained from Elleanore Daub, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, or by telephone at (804) 698-4111 or toll free at 1-800-592-5482 or TTY (804) 698-4261.

Statutory Authority: § 62.1-44.15 of the Code of Virginia.

**Contact:** Elleanore Daub, Environmental Program Planner, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 698-4111, FAX (804) 698-4522 or toll-free1-800-592-5482.

# May 6, 1999 - 7 p.m. – Public Hearing

Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Road, Harrisonburg, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on the proposed reissuance of a VPDES permit for Vesper View Sewage Treatment Plant located in Crimora.

**Contact:** Jay Roberts, Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Rd., Harrisonburg, VA 22801, telephone (540) 574-7800.

# † May 19, 1999 - 7 p.m. – Public Hearing

Louisa County High School, 757 Davis Highway, Auditorium, Mineral, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on the proposed issuance of a Virginia Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit for a sanitary discharge to Lake Anna from the Stonewall Hillside Villas Sewage Treatment Plant.

**Contact:** Beveraly Carver, Valley Regional Office, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 1129, Harrisonburg, VA 22801, telephone (540) 574-7805.

**† June 15, 1999 - 9:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room C, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting.

**Contact:** Cindy Berndt, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4378.

# COLLEGE OF WILLIAM AND MARY

April 29, 1999 - Noon – Open Meeting April 30, 1999 - 8 a.m. – Open Meeting Blow Memorial Hall, Richmond Road, Williamsburg, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Visitors to approve the budgets and fees of the College of William and Mary and Richard Bland College, to receive reports from several committees of the board, and to act on those resolutions that are presented by the administrations of the College of William and Mary and Richard Bland College. An informational release will be available four days prior to the board meeting for those individuals and organizations who request it.

**Contact:** William T. Walker, Jr., Director, Office of University Relations, College of William and Mary, 312 Jamestown Rd., P.O. Box 8795, Williamsburg, VA 23187-8795, telephone (757) 221-2624.

# INDEPENDENT

# STATE LOTTERY BOARD

**† April 28, 1999 - 9:30 a.m.** – Open Meeting State Lottery Department, 900 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the board. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

**Contact:** Barbara L. Robertson, Board, Legislative and Regulatory Coordinator, State Lottery Department, 900 E. Main St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-7105 or FAX (804) 692-7775.

# LEGISLATIVE

# VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

June 21, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, Speaker's Conference Room, 6th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to (i) receive 1999 legislative update, (ii) receive a working draft of the title revision (Titles 2.1 and 9), (iii) receive a report from the Administrative Law Advisory Committee, (iv) consider possible replacement volumes to the Virginia Administrative Code, and (v) conduct any other business that may come before the commission. A brief public comment period is scheduled at the end of the meeting.

**Contact:** Jane D. Chaffin, Registrar of Regulations, General Assembly Bldg., 910 Capitol St., 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591, FAX (804) 692-0625 or e-mail jchaffin@leg.state.va.us.

# JOINT COMMISSION ON HEALTH CARE

**† May 18, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting

† June 29, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

**† July 27, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, Senate Room A, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular meeting. Individuals requiring interpreter services or other special assistance should contact Kimberly Rockhold at least 10 working days prior to the meeting. You can also access information on the Internet at http://legis.state.va.us/jchc/jchchome.htm.

**Contact:** Kimberly Rockhold, Committee Operations, House of Delegates, State Capitol, P.O. Box 406, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 698-1540 or (804) 786-2369/TTY

# JOINT LEGISLATIVE AUDIT AND REVIEW COMMISSION

**† May 10, 1999 - 10 a.m.** – Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, Senate Room A, Richmond, Virginia.

A staff briefing on the update to the Legislators' Guide to VRS Fiscal Analysis Unit Progress Report #1.

**Contact:** Philip A. Leone, Director, Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission, General Assembly Bldg., Suite 1100, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-1258.

# CHRONOLOGICAL LIST

# **OPEN MEETINGS**

### April 26

Accountancy, Board for

Conservation and Recreation, Board of

† Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, Board of Licensed

# April 27

† Contractors, Board for

- Tradesman Committee
- Economic Development Partnership, Virginia - Board of Directors
- Marine Resources Commission
- † Nursing Home Administrators, Board of
- Small Business Financing Authority, Virginia
- Loan Committee

# April 28

- Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, Board for
  - Architect Section
- † Education, Board of
- † Environmental Quality, Department of
- † Health, Department of
- Virginia HIV Community Planning Committee
- + Lottery Board, State
- Medicine, Board of
  - Informal Conference Committee
- † Nursing, Board of
- Special Conference Committee
- Tourism Corporation, Virginia
  - Marketing Development Committee

# April 29

Aging, Commonwealth Council on

- Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of
   Virginia Farmers Market Board
- Dentistry, Board of
- † Education, Board of
- Hammond Commission
- Health. State Board of
- † Pharmacy. Board of
- Tourism Corporation, Virginia
- Board of Directors
- William and Mary, College of
  - Board of Visitors

# April 30

Comprehensive Services for At-Risk Youth and Their Families

- State Executive Council
- Dentistry, Board of
- Legislative/Regulatory Committee
- † Education, Board of
- Health, State Board of
- Medicine, Board of
- Informal Conference Committee

Psychology, Board of
 Regulatory Committee
 Tourism Corporation, Virginia

- Board of Directors
- William and Mary, College of
- Board of Visitors

# May 3

Branch Pilots, Board for

# May 4

† Arts, Virginia Commission for the

- Area I Advisory Panel

- Branch Pilots, Board for
- † Comprehensive Services for At-Risk Youth and Their Families,
  - State Management Team
- † Criminal Justice Services Board

- Victim/Witness Issues Advisory Committee Hopewell Industrial Safety Council

- Transportation Safety Board
- † Waste Management Board, Virginia
- Technical Advisory Committee

# May 5

- † Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of - Virginia Charity Food Assistance Advisory Board
- Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, Board for
  - Professional Engineer Section
- † Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of
- Special Conference Committee
- Medicine, Board of
  - Advisory Committee on Acupuncturists
  - Advisory Committee on Radiologic Technologists

# May 6

- † Conservation and Recreation, Department of
- Falls of the James Scenic River Advisory Board Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of
- † Information Management, Council on
- Virginia Geographic Information Network
- † Labor and Industry, Department of
- Virginia Apprenticeship Council
- Medicine, Board of
  - Informal Conference Committee
  - Advisory Board on Occupational Therapy
- Advisory Board on Respiratory Care
- † Pharmacy, Board of Social Work, Board of

# May 7

Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board, State Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of Medicine, Board of

- Advisory Board on Physical Therapy
- Advisory Committee on Physician Assistants
- † Psychology, Board of
- Examination Committee Social Work. Board of

# May 8

- Military Institute, Virginia - Board of Visitors
- May 10
  - † Legislative Audit and Review Commission, Joint
  - † Nursing, Board of
    - Education Special Conference Committee
  - Special Conference Committee
  - Rehabilitation Council, State

# May 11

- Air Pollution Control Board, State
- † Corrections, Board of
- Correctional Services Committee
- Hearing Aid Specialists, Board for
- Medical Assistance Services, Board of
- † Nursing, Board of
- † Pharmacy, Board of
- Special Conference Committee
- † Recycling Markets Development Council, Virginia
- Resources Authority, Virginia
  - Board of Directors

# May 12

Agriculture and Consumer Services, Board of Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, Board for

- Land Surveyor Section
- † Cemetery Board
  - Delivery Committee
- Community Colleges, State Board for
- Facilities Committee
- Personnel Committee
- † Corrections, Board of
- Administration Committee
- † Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of
- Juvenile Justice, State Board of
- † Nursing, Board of
- † Outdoors Foundation, Virginia
- Trust Fund Advisory Board (Region 5)
- Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, Board of Licensed
   Regulatory Committee
- May 13
  - Asbestos and Lead, Virginia Board for
  - † Child Day-Care Council
  - Community Colleges, State Board for
  - † Nursing, Board of
  - Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, Board of Licensed
     Regulatory Committee
  - † Voluntary Formulary Board, Virginia

# May 14

Information Management, Council on

# May 17

Labor and Industry, Department of - Safety and Health Codes Board

† Waste Management Board, Virginia - Technical Advisory Committee

#### May 18

- Environmental Quality, Department of - Virginia Ground Water Protection Steering Committee
- † Health Care, Joint Commission on
- † Higher Education, State Council of

#### May 19

- Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, Board for
  - Landscape Architect Section
- † Milk Commission
- † Transportation Board, Commonwealth

### May 20

- † Audiology and Speech-Language Pathology, Board of Manufactured Housing Board, Virginia
- † Soil and Water Conservation Board, Virginia
- † Transportation Board, Commonwealth
- Waste Management Facility Operators, Board for

### May 21

- Comprehensive Services for At-Risk Youth and Their Families
  - State Executive Council
- † Medicine, Board of
  - Legislative Committee

### May 25

- Conservation and Recreation, Department of
   Board of Conservation and Development of Public Beaches
- Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of
   Legislative Committee
- Marine Resources Commission

### May 26

- Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers and Landscape Architects, Board for - Certified Interior Designers Section
- Pollution Prevention Advisory Committee, Virginia

#### May 27

- † Compensation Board
- † Technology Services, Council on

### May 28

Richmond Hospital Authority - Board of Commissioners

#### June 1

Hopewell Industrial Safety Council

### June 3

† Medicine, Board of

### June 5

- † Visually Handicapped, Department for the
- Statewide Rehabilitation Council for the Blind

### June 8

† Psychology, Board of

### June 10

- † Fire Services Board, Virginia
  - Fire/EMS Education and Training Committee
  - Fire Prevention and Control Committee
  - Legislative Liaison Committee
- Rehabilitative Services, Board of

# June 11

† Fire Services Board, Virginia

#### June 15

Polygraph Examiners Advisory Board † Water Control Board, State

### June 21

Code Commission, Virginia

### June 22

Marine Resources Commission

# June 25

Comprehensive Services for At-Risk Youth and Their Families

- State Executive Council

### June 28

Conservation and Recreation, Department of - Chippokes Plantation Farm Foundation

### June 29

† Health Care, Joint Commission on

### July 27

† Health Care, Joint Commission on

### **PUBLIC HEARINGS**

### April 27

Visually Handicapped, Department for the - Vocational Rehabilitation Services Water Control Board, State

### April 29

Waste Management Board, Virginia

### May 4

Professional and Occupational Regulation, Department of

### May 6

† Environmental Quality, Department of Water Control Board, State

### May 8

Social Services, Department of

### May 11

† Nursing, Board of

### May 12

† Environmental Quality, Department of

### May 13

Professional and Occupational Regulation, Board for

### May 15

Social Services, Department of

### May 19

† Water Control Board, State